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the next few speakers so that you have some
warning as to when it is your opportunity to
speak.

Once again thank you for coming. Your testimony
is very helpful in helping us do our job and
evaluating the legislation before us. And we
will be considering it whether it’s written or
live and that goes for the members of this
committee. And I look forward to a lively
debate. Thank you.

SENATOR DOYLE: Thank you, Chairman Taborsak. And I

would just like to point one other thing. Some
of you may think three minutes is a short amount
of time and it’s maybe even harsh but of course
the legislators of the committee can ask
unlimited questions so anybody that presents
testimony that provides or intrigues the
question of a legislator you may get more time
than you anticipated.

So you may think three minutes is short but if a
particular legislator has questions for you, you
may end up there quite a bit longer. So again -
- and questions are of course it’s a sign of a
legislator’s interest so it may be better off if
you get questions. So again at this point we’re
going to start with the public officials.

The first public official is Commissioner
William Rubenstein of the Department of Consumer
Protection. The next list of public officials,
number two is Representative Bets,
Representative Jutila, Representative Miller,
Representative Urban, Senator Kelly. All right,
Commissioner. Good morning, Commissioner.

000142

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: Good morning, EEZ 50;'

chairs, Senator Doyle and Representative
Taborsak, ranking member Senator Witkos and
Representative Rebimbas and distinguished
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members of the general law committee. I’'m here
today to offer testimony regarding House Bill
5021, AN ACT CONCERNING COMPETITIVE ALCOHOL --
ALCOHOL LIQUOR PRICING AND HOURS OF OPERATION
FOR PERMITEES.

What I’'d like to do today is rather than offer
my own direct testimony other than to answer
your questions as we go through, I would like to
deliver to you the testimony of Governor Malloy
on this bill. He’s asked me to present his
testimony to you directly and I will.

Regardless of how any of us feel about
Connecticut’s liquor laws there’s no denying
that most are complex and longstanding. Many
date back to the days of prohibition with
countless provisions and nuances that have been
added along the way. Now in putting together a
package of liquor law reforms it is not my aim
to completely do away with or rewrite the
system.

Alcohol is a unique product and transparent and
accountability -- accountable system of sale is
important. However as the years have gone by
and other states have continued to modify their
own laws to reflect modern day realities our
statutes have collected dust.

Not only do Connecticut businesses lose hundreds
of millions of dollars every year to our
neighboring states but the consumers who do shop
here are paying exorbitantly higher prices as
the examples attached to the testimony provided
to the committee demonstrate.

How long are we going to allow the parking lots
in Massachusetts, New York and Rhode Island to
fill up with Connecticut license plates every
weekend? How long are we going to watch our
residents cross the borders to buy in other
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states the exact same products that they could
be buying here in Connecticut from local
Connecticut retailers?

And how long are we going to continue to cheat
the consumers who do shop here with exorbitant
prices and inconvenient hours? We should not
wait any longer. The bill before you would do
the following for Connecticut consumers and
Connecticut businesses; bring hours and days of
sale in line with our neighboring states, allow
package stores to sell a wider variety of
complimentary products, give convenience stores
that sell a large quantity of grocery items the
opportunity to serve beer as well, get our shelf
prices in line with neighboring states but
allowing wholesalers to offer quantity discounts
and by removing minimum bottle price posting
that unfairly inflate prices to consumers, and
to create a medallion system for current package
store owners that will add real value to the
investment they’ve already made in their
business.

That’s what this proposal does. And I want to
highlight a few things that it doesn’t do. It
does not harm Connecticut’s three tier system of
distribution. It does not allow for the sale of
wine or spirits inside grocery stores but rather
allows for grocery stores owners to operate a
separate package store if they so choose and
only if they purchase a medallion from an
existing package store owner.

And it does not completely remove the cap on how
many licenses one person may operate as some
states have done. Of course there are many more
things that it doesn’t do but I wanted to
mention a few to make the following point, while
this proposal is expansive it is far from
extreme. Other than a new medallion system
there is not a single concept or idea contained
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in this bill that is not current practice in one
or all of the three states we border.

These changes do nothing except catch us up with
our neighboring states in an effort to keep
Connecticut dollars here in Connecticut. But
the package only seems extreme when compared to
our own outdated system.

In addition my Office has continued to discuss
this package with representatives from every
level of Connecticut’s liquor industry and also
with members of the general law committee and
the General Assembly at large. That positive
dialogue has led to a number of suggested
modifications to the original bill as proposed.

I suggest my Office and the Department of
Consumer Protection with your input and guidance
work with your staff in the days ahead to
construct substitute language based on these
compromises. Attached to the testimony you will
find there’s a list of proposed changes for your
consideration.

The conversations that led to these suggested
changes have demonstrated one thing very clearly
while progress is always possible change can
still be hard. 1If it weren’t Connecticut
wouldn’t be the only state other than Indiana
that bans the off premise sale of alcohol on
Sundays. By the way earlier this year Indiana’s
General Assembly didn’'t act on their Sunday
sales bill but many are hopeful it will pass
next vyear.

This may very well be Connecticut’s last chance
not to be dead last in this regard. I know that
there are people here today who are concerned
about change and how this bill might impact
them. I want to briefly respond to a few of the
concerns we'’ve heard.
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First there is nothing in this bill that
purposely favors large retailers over small. 1In
fact even if this bill becomes law there would
still be more protections in place for smaller
operators in this State than in any other single
industry in Connecticut. Those protections
include a controlled pricing structure and a
limit how many stores one person can own.

There is simply no other product we handle in a
similar way including the sale of guns. Does
this bill increase competition on the retail
level? Yes. But I refuse to believe that
Connecticut’s many small package stores are only
in business today because of the protections
provided by the State.

They are in business because of the hard work
and commitment of their owners and because of
the unmatched level of customer service that
they can -- that can only be found in a small
retailer. Connecticut residents including
myself will continue to patronize stores where
we get the best service. Second, the changes in
this bill can and will grow jobs in this State.

Recapturing approximately 570 million dollars in
sales each year that we’re losing over our
borders will help not just package stores but
other businesses as well because we will be
keeping shoppers in Connecticut. Third, there
are those who believe lowering sales and excise
taxes will bring us in line with neighboring
states’ prices.

Again, as the attached examples dictate even
completely doing away with these taxes wouldn'’t
close the gap on most items. That being said I
absolutely agree that Connecticut’s tax rates
must remain competitive with the region.
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If this bill passes and we can see that the
impact has a -- and we can see the impact it has
on the overall sales in the State I will commit
to working with the General Assembly to review
the taxes on these items. The bottom line is
this, our laws are outdated and they
artificially increased the price of alcohol to
Connecticut consumers. This proposal is
proconsumer. It’s pro mom and pop and pro
dollars being spent within Connecticut.

By allowing Sunday sales, by lessening
distribution and sale restrictions and by
amending permit regulations we’re going to help
Connecticut regain its competitive edge in this
industry and we’re going to give consumers a
break at the same time.

Thank you for hearing my testimony. I
respectfully ask you to support this bill.
Those are the words of the Governor. 1I'd like
to briefly go over the attachment A to the
Governor'’s testimony which are the suggested
bill revisions that were the product of many
discussions with many -- at every level of the
industry.

And so the first suggested bill revision
involves -- involves price posting. Right now
the bill removes price -- price posting at the
wholesale level by including the minimum bottle
posted price and the amending period. What the
revisions will do will reinstate price posting
for wholesalers but without minimum bottle and
by allowing a wholesaler amendment period or
rather without the wholesaler amendment period.

The suggested changes will also reinstate much
of the language in section 12B regarding price
discrimination among different permittees. And
the suggestions also include a channel pricing
system so that wholesalers can react in their
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volume discount policies to distinguish between
the special needs of on premise retailers and
off premise retailers.

The second set of suggested bill revisions have
to deal with the -- the number of package store
permits in this State and who can own them. The
permit bill language moves the cap from two to
nine permits that can be held by a single
entity.

The suggested revisions would pair that back and
raise the cap from two to six with a gradual
phase in over the next three years. 1In addition
the suggested revisions will restore the one
permit per 2,500 cap of any -- of the number of
permits in any given town so that the number of
permits in any given town will not increase
above those that would be available today.

Thirdly with regard to retail pricing, the
current language removes rules that set minimum
retail pricing. The suggested revision would --
would place back in a sales below cost
provisions that would prohibit the sales below
actual costs excepting two circumstances.

One, where there are lower posted wholesale
prices available in the marketplace a retailer
would be able to -- to sell it at the lower
price that his competitors are now purchasing
at. And we will also permit retailers to choose
up to five items but only up to five items --
that is individual stock keeping units, per
month per store that may be sold below cost but
only no more than ten percent below cost which
would allow pricing flexibility and marketing
opportunities for retailers and alleviate
concerns over excessive below cost pricing.

And finally with regard to quantity discounts
the current language removes any restrictions on
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wholesalers offering quantity discounts to
retailers. The suggested revisions would --
would work with industries and legislatures to
define a structure for quantity discounts that -
- that protects competitive opportunities for
retailers and makes sure that -- that any volume
discounts and quantity discounts are provided on
a fair basis to retailers.

So those are a summary of the suggested bill
revisions that are attached to the Governor'’s
testimony. And I’'d be happy to answer any
questions that you may have.

SENATOR DOYLE: Thank you, Commissioner. Any

REP.

questions from committee members?
Representative.

REED: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Just quickly it
occurs to me that the medallion system could be
turned into financial instruments, bundled and
sort of accumulated by a third party who would
then resell them. And I'm just wondering what
your office is creating as a program to keep
that from happening.

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: The -- the proposal

REP.

requires that medallions be purchased for use.
It is a requirement that upon the purchase or
the opportunity be a contract to purchase a
medallion that a permit application at a
particular location be made within six months or
the permit would be forfeited back to the State.

That’s a cap and check on people either
accumulating these medallions in order to -- in
order to remove competitors from market or
accumulating these medallions for the purpose of
speculation.

REED: Just one quick follow up. It appears to
me because it’s a six month trigger and then

000149
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there could be a resale and then a six month
trigger for the new -- the new individuals who
bought them that there was a lot of room to
maneuver within that.

Just -- just a feeling that your office might
want to drill down on that a little bit and take
a look because I'm sure there’'s some speculators
out there who are looking at our new medallion
system if indeed it passes.

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: I mean what we

REP.

tried to do was balance the commercial needs of
the package store owner that owns medallion in
order to have an orderly market in which to sell
the medallion but make sure that the concerns
you have about speculations don’t occur.

We think we’ve achieved that balance in the bill
but I'm sensitive to the point that you raised
and it is something that we will cue to.

REED: Thank you, Commissioner. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

SENATOR DOYLE: Thank you. Representative Rebimbas.

REP.

REBIMBAS: Thank you, Mr. Chair and good
morning, Commissioner. Looking at attachment B
that’s attached to the Governor'’s testimony
looking at that chart I was just interested in
having a little bit more information regarding
some of these items. Were there any items in
the months -- and it looks like this is for the
month of February.

Were there any items in these -- well the
minimum pricing in Connecticut and this
particular liquor store that you identify here
as Yankee Spirits. Was there any items --
liquor items in the Connecticut liquor store

000150
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that was at a lower price than the one at the
Yankee Spirits?

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: That wasn’t the

REP.

focus of the exercise so -- I mean, you know --

'so I'm not sure a comparison is done the way

that you suggest. I mean the concern when this
chart was being developed and being looked at
was -- was the, you know, trying to compare the
effect of having a inflexible minimum price in
Connecticut that’s set by wholesalers vis-a-vis
a retailer set price that’s unconstrained by a
wholesaler control in Massachusetts.

These are not meant to be a study of price
comparisons but an indication of the kinds of
savings that Connecticut consumers can achieve
if we eliminate the artificial minimum pricing.

REBIMBAS: Thank you and I appreciate your
response. And I understand the intent of the
chart. I was just curious if that was also
looked at because that would be helpful then for
this committee to determine where the
discrepancy really lies as to what is being
represented.

Also regarding attachment A under item one for
price posting, if you could just tell me the
understanding as to what the purpose would be in
order to allow posting for wholesale --
wholesalers but yet eliminate the minimum bottle
posting.

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: The posting for

wholesalers would give a stability to retailers
to understand what their purchase costs are in
the following month and hold that price steady
for a month because that’s the posting.

Minimum bottle posting is an artificial price
posted under the current system by wholesalers

000151
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REP.

which restrict -- that don’t set the purchase
price that a retailer can purchase for.

What it does is set the minimum price at a
retailer can resell for which we believe should
be a decision made by the retailer given their
own business structure.

REBIMBAS: And currently -- under the current
law what are the requirements regarding posting?
Who posts? Who must post?

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: There are two

REP.

levels of posting. There’s a manufacturer, the
suppliers must post. That’s the price that they
charge the following month to wholesalers and
wholesalers must post to set out the prices that
they will charge to the retailer the following
month.

REBIMBAS: So under the current proposed
legislation then there’s an elimination of the
requirement for manufacturers to post. Is that
correct?

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: That is not

REP.

correct.

REBIMBAS: That’s not.

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: The manufacturers

REP.

will still be required to post.

REBIMBAS: Commissioner, since there’s been
considerable legislation that we passed last
session regarding some changes to our liquor
laws in the sense of probably even creating some
certain situations where there would be more
sales for whether that’s baskets -- gift baskets
et cetera.

000152
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Has there been any type I guess pressure in the
sense of on your department, the Department of
Consumer Protection to regulate or enforce any
of the current laws that were passed from the
past legislation and the laws that were already
on the books. So in other words did you have
enough staff and manpower to properly see that
that was implemented and or enforced?

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: The short answer is
yes. The background to that is that the main
change with the advent of gift basket license
permits for certain entities we’d gotten less
than a handful of applications for those kinds
of permits.

REP. REBIMBAS: What kind of an impact would a
proposal such as this have on your department
regarding monitoring it, investigating it, and
enforcing it?

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: The bill doesn’'t --
does not change the -- the regulatory and
accountability commitment of the State to
ensuring things like restrictions on sales to
minors and restrictions on intoxes, making sure
alcohol’s only sold to permittees.

We believe these changes will not impact our
ability to guarantee those -- that -- those
regulatory objectives or accountability. We've
already been developing ways in which we can
streamline the way in which we do enforcement.
You know our enforcement efforts to date have
been very effective, not completely at goal but
we have over the past several years for example
reduced the number of noncompliance with our
sales (inaudible) 1laws, our ~-- we’ve been able
to garner a fair amount of grants that enable us
to do that.
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REP.

We’ve reconfigured the -- you know we constantly
look at the statistics and figure out where is
the best bang for our enforcement buck in terms
of likely places of potential violations and are
therefore able to be smarter in the way that we
enforce.

We’'re not expecting that any of the changes that
are in the proposed bill will diminish or blunt
our ability to effectively enforce those
regulatory objectives.

REBIMBAS: Thank you. And if I may, Mr. Chair,
just a few follow up questions. Removing the
cap from two to six gradually phasing into the
number of permits allowed for liquor package
store, what is the understanding behind that?

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: The gradual phasing

REP.

portion?

REBIMBAS: The reason for the increase.

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: The reason for the

REP.

increase is to allow those package store owners
who choose to to develop more efficiency in
their operations by being able to -- to spread
their cost over a larger number of stores while
recognizing that what we’d like to retain in
Connecticut is package stores being operated
largely by smaller operators.

REBIMBAS: Thank you for your testimony. No
further questions at this time.

SENATOR DOYLE: Thank you. And please keep your

thoughts to yourself, please. Senator Leone.

SENATOR LEONE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Good

morning, Commissioner. I know we have a lot of
ground to cover so I won’'t go in too many
directions but I did want to understand a little



17 February 28, 2012 000155
law/cd/gbr GENERAL LAW COMMITTEE 11:00 A.M.

bit more about the concept of medallions and how
we came to that. Have -- did we look elsewhere
ouRside of states for where the medallion system
has been used and it has been proven to be
successful or not successful?

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: The medallion

system is -- is unique as far as I know for
liquor regulation in any state. It’s a new
proposal. 1It’s the one proposal in this package

that has not been adopted in other places.
There are models out there for state granted
franchises such as the medallion systems New
York City taxicab is the one that most people
are familiar with.

But what it is is it’s a way of protecting the
investment that package store owners make in
their store. Right now permits are not personal
or property rights of any package store owner.
Under the medallion system a package store owner
who has invested in operating a package store
now would have a personal property right in that
business, would make it a much more wvaluable
commodity. More stability in terms of the
ultimate value of the package store.

SENATOR LEONE: And there wouldn’'t prevent any of the
smaller package store owners from purchasing
more than one so that they could compete with
the big box stores. Would that be correct?

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: They -- under the
proposal they’d be able to purchase up to six
medallions which would be effective -- up to six
permits. And this is certainly -- there’s a
bunch of things that the package stores can do
if they wanted to be larger in size, one of
which is to individually buy additional
medallions and have additional businesses.
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But there’s also an opportunity for small
package stores to change somewhat their
structure of ownership so that they can joint
venture into -- into larger groups of stores
under six under these regulations.

SENATOR LEONE: Excuse me, is it six of nine the cap
for medallions?

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: The current -- the
current proposal is nine. The bill before you
has nine. The suggested revisions that I
outlined today that the Governor has been in
discussions with various member groups would cap
that at six instead of nine.

SENATOR LEONE: Okay. So it’'s a reduction. Okay.
And -- and you mentioned the taxicab medallion
service, how has that moved along? I mean
what’s the value of -- what was the value of a
medallion when it was first enacted and what'’s
the value of it now?

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: I haven’t looked at
the dollar numbers. What I understand from
popular press is medallions are a very valuable
commodity in the City of New York.

SENATOR LEONE: Okay. Thank you. 1I’ll follow up at
some other time but 1’11l defer so other folks
can ask questions. Thank you.

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: Sure.

SENATOR DOYLE: Thank you, Senator Leone. Senator
Kissel.

SENATOR KISSEL: Thank you very much, Chairman Doyle.
Commissioner, great to see you.

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: You too.

000156
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SENATOR KISSEL: Just a couple things very briefly

because I know we have a lot of folks that want
to testify. In the Governor’s testimony he
states that he wants to recapture approximately
570 million dollars in sales each year that we
are losing over our borders.

Over the years as this issue has been debated in
this building program review and investigations
has done a study, Office of Fiscal Analysis.
There has always been a debate as to whether
we’re actually losing dollars across the border
and in turn losing tax revenues as well. And
I'm wondering what the 570 million dollars is
based upon.

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: There -- there’s a

study out there that studies this precise issue
which is (inaudible) Connecticut which we can
provide to the committee. But there are several
studies over time which always put the number in
hundreds of millions of dollars whether it’s,
you know, each study comes out at precisely 570
million, you know, is not the case but it’s a
significant amount in hundreds of millions of
dollars in lost sales.

Program review who looked at this issue in 2009
was primarily focusing on what the increased
revenues to the State would be, that is the tax
portion of lost liquor sales as opposed to other
sales. And they pegged a number at eight
million dollars in lost revues to the State. If
you start to extrapolate that out you get up to
hundreds of millions of dollars in actual lost
sales easily -- very easily.

SENATOR KISSEL: Thank you. Because back at that

time I was lucky enough to be cochair of program
review and investigations and as part of one the
studies that they had done I had asked for them
to look into that subject.

000157
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So I'm glad that that hard work that that staff
did is coming back to form the basis for this
analysis. The other thing is when the Governor
came to Enfield and spoke at the town hall
announcing that he wanted to do some bold
changes one of the things that he suggested I
recall was trying to allow new merchandise in
package stores to try to open it up, stack foods
and things like that.

But I haven’'t -- I don’'t really see that in here
unless I'm missing it. Is that sort of off --
off the table right now?

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: No. There is a
section in the proposed bill which expands the
part of the statute that limits what package --
what kinds of products package stores can sell.

!
So the new language allows package stores to
increase the kind of its goods to include
complimentary fresh foods -- fresh fruits for
drinks, wine and cheese -- I mean rather cheese
and crackers, snack foods, nuts, and chips that
are currently not being permitted to sell. So
it expands in meaningful ways the kinds of
products that can be sold in package stores.

SENATOR LEONE: And my last question is sort of, you
know, the Governor in the last 24, 48 hours has
come up with some revised suggestions to the
underlying bill. It seems like the Package
Store Association has come up with some
counterproposals.

I'm sure there’s a lot of other groups out there
as well. One of the issues that’s always been
of paramount importance up in north central
Connecticut for an awful lot of folks is the
Sunday sales issue.
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And right now is it you position that the
Governor wants unlimited Sunday sales because I
believe that what the Package Store Association
is willing to do is to sort of open it up for
one shift, maybe 11 to five or 11 to six or 12
to six or something like that. And are there
ongoing negotiations regarding that aspect of
the proposal?

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: The Governor
proposed what he thought was appropriate. I was
surprised and actually delighted to read in the
paper this morning that the Package Store
Association was coming around on the issue of
Sunday sales. But I don’t believe there have --
there have been discussions yet on that issue.

You know it came out in the paper this morning.
That’s when I read it.

SENATOR LEONE: Thank you, Commissioner. Thank you,
Mr. Chairman.

SENATOR DOYLE: Thank you. Senator Witkos.

SENATOR WITKOS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Good
morning, Commissioner.

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: Good morning.

SENATOR WITKOS: I wanted to touch base on this --
your testimony in that it’s -- it touches all
aspects of alcohol regulations in the State but
one of the things that I found interesting that
was not really mentioned or mentioned in a
fleeting moment was that well we’ll talk about
the taxes, excise taxes, sales tax at a later
date.

And I'm of the opinion that consumer price
drives a lot of behaviors to consumers. Living
in a town that’s very close to the border people
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will drive half hour, 45 minutes to save two
cents in a gallon of gas. And I think that'’s
one of the reasons why folks drive to the north
or to our west to -- to save money. And we're
not -- we have the unique opportunity to look at
addressing those concerns while in the whole
encompassing part of this bill.

And I happened to look at our excise tax for
beer at 20 cents compared to Massachusetts at
12-- at 11 cents. And also in Massachusetts
they had a -- as you know a ballot question back
in 2010 that their citizens said we want you to
repeal the alcohol tax, sales tax in
Massachusetts.

And those folks saw a five to ten percent
increase in sales. So it certainly shown if
we're comparing to our neighbors and that’s
stated several times in your testimony that
we’'re -- we want to be competitive with our
neighbors, that removing taxes will allow for a
better product to be sold.

And more people tend to gravitate towards their
own state. So would you entertain possibly
having some further discussions as the bill
moves forward as to putting some -- some type of
a tax reduction in this bill?

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: The Governor has
consistently said that Connecticut tax structure
must be competitive with the tax structure of
its neighbors across a wide variety of areas.
The Governor’s testimony said that alcohol --
alcoholic beverage tax rates are something that
ought to be looked at.

I think his preference was to implement the
changes in the marketplace operations, see where
that ultimately plays out in terms of both
volume and business and then discuss what is the



23 February 28, 2012 000161
law/cd/gbr GENERAL LAW COMMITTEE 11:00 A.M.

\

appropriate balance of the tax rate vis a vis
our neighbors.

You know I will point out that our beverage tax
with regard to distilled spirits for example is
higher than it is in Massachusetts, it’s lower
than it is in New York. So there’s a balance to
be had.

SENATOR KISSEL: Well the balance would be also no
sales tax on this as well. You know we can
speak to say what we want to do but then when
it’s in the written language it’s a different
story, Sir. And no offense but this is very
confusing to a lot of folks, the bill but if
people -- it’s very easily understood to say
we’'re going to cut your taxes. Boom.

I mean there’s not many people that have a hard
time grasping that concept that we’re doing away
with alcohol sales tax or we’re reducing your
excise tax from 11 cents or the four dollars and
50 cents on the liquor to two dollars and fifty
cents. I mean that’s not that difficult to
understand. I wanted to follow up on Senator
Leone’s question regarding the medallion
program.

I'm aware that in Connecticut we examined the
medallion system for taxi services many years
ago and Connecticut opted not to follow through
with that.

And one of the reasons why I heard, and I just
wanted to ask you if you had heard the same
thing, was that a medallion is a piece of
property that if the entity were to be sued
somebody could actually take that medallion
because it’s a piece of valued property wherein
your liquor permit cannot be -- somebody can’t
sue you as a package store owner or a restaurant
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owner and get your permit. Is -- have you heard

anything similar to that?
COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: Well you know --
SENATOR KISSEL: Or speak to that.

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: It’s unclear what
the circumstance of the suit would be but the
value of any business owned by a package store
owner would be subject to -- to a judgment in
any other way. Now the permit can’t be
transferred because it’s not the personal
rights.

But the business itself, that is whatever the
bill or inventory would be equally subject to
the judgment as would the medallion. You know,
on top of that the medallion would for a
judgment creditor might have less value. Of
course remember this a requirement when you buy
the medallion that you have to then apply for
the permit.

So it’s only valuable to somebody who actually
wants to operate a package store in the State.
That being said, you know, there is a difference
between a nonpersonal right in permit and
property right in value.

SENATOR KISSEL: We currently have -- this document
I'm referring to was given at least to the
chairs and the ranking members on the committee
from your agency, that there are 1,228 package
stores in the State of Connecticut right now.
We have available -- under the current statutes
and regulations we have the availability to
expand by another 171 packages stores.

If we moved the medallion system how would that
impact those numbers? 1Is it anybody, any
entity, one individual owner can own up to six
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and we would remove this limit or would it be
those that currently have a permit, they’d be
allowed to own up to six medallions? I'm trying
to understand the scope of the growth.

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: So the number per
medallions that we’d issue would be one for each
currently held permit which is one thousand two
hundred -- and I think you said 28. I think
that’s the right number. The 171 available
permits that are not extant at the moment would
be not -- would not have a medallion attached to
it.

So anybody that wanted to open a package store
in town that had cap room for those extra
permits would have to buy a medallion from an
existing package store owner or they wouldn’t be
able to. So what will happen is is that the
number of package stores will freeze at the
number -- the number of permissible permits will
freeze at the cap is the number that there are
now because there won't be any more medallions
available than the 1,228 that are currently
available.

Any -- each permit will require a separate
medallion to operate. And no owner of any
medallion or any permit can own more than six.
You look confused so I'd be happy to clarify you
a little more.

SENATOR KISSEL: No, I'm not confused. You know, we
are in a heavy regulated industry and I -- I
just have some reservations that we would freeze
that number and, you know, right now it’'s
governed by population.

And unfortunately we’ve seen our population
decrease over the past few censuses and what
happens if it goes in the other direction? 1I'd
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hate to see us have, you know, being held to a
specific number.

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: What we’ve learned
from last census is that while -- regardless of
what happens statewide in population or
population shifts within towns.

And so the number of permits available in each
town under the current formula has shifted in

the last census where some towns increased the
number of permits and some towns now had more

permits than they would otherwise be entitled.
But that’s -- that’s the nature of pegging the
permit caps to population.

SENATOR KISSEL: And that’s my other concern that if
we, you know -- you were asked earlier and
testified that part of the reason for this is
efficiencies so that if somebody wants to, you
know, they can own more than two package stores.

This creates efficiencies within their own
business that eventually we may see towns that
don’'t have package stores that there may be
folks that it’s been a family business for a
long time and they sell their medallion to a
larger corporation and they just decide well
we're going to hold onto that medallion but
we're not going to continue operating that
store. And I think after a while you start
seeing competition go by the wayside and I'm
just concerned about that.

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: Well the medallion
system would solve that problem because it would
not permit anyone to purchase a medallion and
not seek a permit within six months and operate
-- and operate a store. If they failed to seek
the permit in the permissible period of time
they would forfeit their medallion to the State
and the State would then be in a position -- the
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department would be in a position to auction off
that forfeited permit to a bidder. Yes, Sir.

SENATOR DOYLE: Thank you. Representative Tallarita.

REP. TALLARITA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Thank you,
Commissioner for being here today. And I want
to thank the Governor’s Office for his testimony
and his courage to stand up to an industry that
I believe is highly regulated in our State. And
that leads me to my question. Is -- do you know
off hand if there’s any other State that
regulates their liquor laws the way Connecticut
does?

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: Well since
prohibition and the constitutional delegation of
liquor authority to states, the states have all
gone their separate ways in terms of how they
regulate liquor. There’s some common elements
and common themes. But Connecticut is one of
the last states to change some central behaviors
in their regulatory process, Sunday sales being
one of them. We are one of two states now that
don’t permit Sunday sales for all premise
consumption.

REP. TALLARITA: Thank you very much. Just a couple
of other issues that are in the bill that were
not touched upon in testimony here. The -- the
Sunday sales portion that would be not
mandatory. It is optional. Correct?

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: Yes.
REP. TALLARITA: The Sunday -- allowing the package
stores to go from nine to ten P.M.’ Again,

optional not mandatory.

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: Yes.
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REP. TALLARITA: And with the restaurants allowing
them to go from one A.M. to two A.M. that is
again not mandatory but optional.

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: That is correct.

REP. TALLARITA: Okay. And we had -- I had heard
some people talk about with the restaurants
being -- going from one AM to two A.M. I had
heard that their insurance rates were going to
go through the roof, they weren’'t going to be
able to support that. Have you heard anything
to -- about that happening?

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: I have not heard
that but you know as with all cost structures
everybody makes their business decision based on
what their cost structure would be and whether
or not it’s economically profitable.

And as you point out the extra hours of
operations are not mandatory. They're
permissive. Each restaurant will determine
whether or not it'’s economic for them to -- to
open extra hours or not.

REP. TALLARITA: So again this bill would allow
business to run business the way they see it
being profitable for them.

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: Yes. That’s one of
its principal goals. Yes.

REP. TALLARITA: Thank you. And just to touch upon
what Representative Rebimbas had asked about the
Governor’s price comparison here. We do have --
we did do a price comparison last year when this
bill -- when the Sunday sales portion of this
bill was up before us and I would be happy to
share that with your Office and also with the
members of this committee.
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And it was pretty extensive and there were some --

some beers and some products that were on that
comparison that actually were a little bit
cheaper in the State of Connecticut. So I’'d be
happy to share that with you. But again, thank
you for your testimony today.

SENATOR DOYLE: Thank you. Representative Baram.

REP.

BARAM: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Good morning,
Commissioner. A couple of questions. First
with regard to medallions, when somebody
forfeits a medallion and it’s auctioned off by
the State who receives the money from the
auction?

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: That would be the

General Fund. The incentive in the proposal is
to have the purchaser of the medallion actually
operate a package store in the State. And so
this is the incentive for them to follow through
on their obligation.

BARAM: As you may know when somebody sells a
package store just like a piece of real estate
there are oftentimes contingencies for zoning,
permitting, financing, even employment
agreements with the prior owner. Would the
individual package store owners still have total
discretion to negotiate the sale of his or her
package store in whatever manner they want even
if they have this medallion?

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: Yes.

REP.

BARAM: And the purchaser of the medallion, is
it your understanding that they would only apply
to the State for transfer of the medallion after
they had satisfied all of the contingencies like
zoning, financing, what not or does the purchase
of the medallion take place first?
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COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: The statute before

REP.

you provides for an opportunity to enter into a
contract for sale of the medallion that could be
contingent upon a suitable location and permit
process.

BARAM: And is that why the statute I believe
allows for an extra six month period if somebody
needs that extra time to get everything lined

up.

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: That’s one of the

REP.

purposes. The idea is to have the process
flexible. What we want is people to use these
medallions in permitted locations and the
statute sets up a system that asks people to ask
the holder of the medallion to move forward
promptly with the application that does not
penalize the medallion holder either for
slowness in the regulatory process or in the
uncertainty of zoning or other contractual
requirements.

BARAM: If hypothetically somebody purchased a
medallion and for many different reasons decided
not to go through with the purchase of the
package store maybe a personal tragedy or issue,
whatever. Is there a way for them to give the
medallion back to the State to auction and
receive the monies from that auction to make
them whole for what they had paid for it?

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: The proposed

REP.

language would allow them to actually resell the

unused medallion to a package store owner -- to
somebody else who is willing to -- so that
auction that you’re considering -- that you're

thinking about would actually take place in the
private sector not the public sector.

BARAM: So the auction of the medallion is really
a last step where the State receives the funding
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from the purchase of that medallion. So it’s
truly a forfeiture.

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: We do not want the
medallion back.

REP. BARAM: Another area I wanted to ask a couple of
questions to clarify and that has to do with gas
station, convenience stores. If you could
correct me if I'm wrong, I thought current law
had a formula based upon grocery sales that
allowed for sale of beer and from reading the
Governor'’s proposed bill it appears that stores
now are viewed for square footage -- how much
square footage is for groceries, how large is
the convenience store. So my question is does
volume of grocery sales have anything to do with
whether or not you’re entitled to a beer permit?

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: There are two ways
in which you can obtain a beer permit under the
proposed statute. One of which is if you are a
grocery store -- that is you are primarily
engaged in the sale of groceries which is the
current test. You’'re entitled to a grocery beer
permit.

If your primary sales are not groceries and many
of these large convenience stores don’t meet
that definition because they sell things other
than groceries, tobacco sales is a big part of
it. They don’t meet the primarily sales. But
yet -- so the new convenience store permit would
allow those businesses that -- that are -- are
significantly devoted to the sale of groceries
that are small enough in size yet big enough in
size to have the added opportunity to sell beer
along with these additional grocery items even
though they don’t meet the current technical
definition of a grocery store.
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REP. BARAM: And that -- is that because they meet --

they would meet the new definition of size of
the store?

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: That’s correct.
The proposal would be to limit convenience store
operators to convenience stores that are not
bigger than 5,000 square feet. These are your
mom and pop convenience store kind of operations
but yet -- but yet devote a significant amount
of their square footage to sales of groceries,
that is convenience stores that have a minimum
sales area of 1,500 square feet or so.

I think it’s 1,500 in the statute and 400 square
of that, that is a significant investment and
commitment to the sale of groceries -- dedicated
to the sale of groceries.

REP. BARAM: Would the square footage requirement
usurp local zoning if for instance a local
zoning board decided they did not want for
whatever reason beer to be sold at a gas station
convenience store. Could they in effect negate
the statute even if the convenience store met
the other criteria?

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: Local zoning rules
would still need to be complied with and so in
order to get a permit you’d not only have to
meet our statutory definition but you have to be
a suitable location in terms of zoning.

So there are towns right now who limit where and
what kinds of permittees can be had in the town.
For example some towns have restrictions in
terms of square footage of the size of the
building, distance between package stores, the
kinds of on premise entities that are
permissible in their town. This will not usurp
your local zoning option that that requires.
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REP. BARAM: A number of constituents have contacted

me expressing concern about the idea of gas
station convenience stores selling beer because
of the proximity for somebody driving, filling
up with gas and then buying something and
perhaps opening it in the car and drinking. Did
the Governor’s Office or your office do any
studies to determine whether any such dangers or
increased occurrences are related to convenience
stores at gas stations where beer is permitted
to be purchased?

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: I haven’t seen such

REP.

studies but intuitively it would seem to me that
the same exact problem could -- would be of
concern in any off premise location where people
drive to pick up their beer or liquor whether
it’s a grocery store. People are driving to the
parking lot and purchasing beer in the same way.

BARAM: My last question, I'm a little confused.
I'm assuming that many of my colleagues are
confused. It seems that the proposed
legislation allows for various types of
discounts, ten percent discount, no bottle price
to allow the retailer to sell a particular
bottle for whatever price they want and then
there’s this volume discount.

I'm wondering if briefly if it’s possible to
kind of put different discount factors in line
to explain exactly how -- how this all works.
And with regard to the volume discount would it
be possible for package stores to form a co-op
where they could get together as a group and
qualify in the same way a large retailer like a
supermarket should be able to achieve that --
that volume discount. I believe they do that in
Massachusetts.

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: Let me start at the

-- the last question and then I’ll move

000171



34 February 28, 2012 000172
law/cd/gbr GENERAL LAW COMMITTEE 11:00 A.M.

backwards. With regard to buying co-ops, you
know Connecticut has and is committed to a three
tier distribution structure which has a
wholesale level to it which by law are not
permitted to have any interest in the retail
operation.

Buying co-ops essentially as they operate
everywhere in every line of retailer are
essentially wholesaling operations that would
not be permitted to have a set of retailers also
operate a wholesaling operation. That’s not to
say that it’s not an opportunity in this bill as
we expand the number of permits that can be
owned by a single owner, for smaller package
stores to change their form of ownership into a
joint venture and do joint purchasing as they
are doing joint operating forming essentially
their own mini six store chain. That’s a
possibility.

I'm not suggesting that people want to do it or
would do it but that might be an opportunity for
people to take advantage of those kinds of
things. With regard to the pricing question
that you had which was pretty broad based,
currently under price posting wholesalers are
not permitted to offer volume discounts of any
kind. And they set a price below which a
retailer may not resell any product that is
different than the actual acquisition cost by
the retailer.

What the bill would do would remove the
wholesaler restriction, the wholesaler setting

the price -- the floor price upon which a
retailer can sell and we will set that floor at
actual cost -- cost available to others in the

marketplace at the time or this five product,
you know, special that people can run to sell at
some little bit -- little margin ten percent
below cost if they so choose. So that would
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replace the wholesaler setting the floor. The
floor would be set by retailer cost or cost
options or marketing considerations for these
five products.

With regard to volume discounts what we would
envision is volume discounts -- and we're
committed to identifying some more guiding
principles for what volume discounts could be
permitted but volume discounts are already
currently in every other industry regulated by
our antitrust laws in the federal it's the
Robinson-Patman Act, in the State it’s the
Connecticut Antitrust Act, section 35-45. And
it does not permit and it would not for liquor
permit volume discounts that harm competition.

So in all areas and it would be true in
including liquor, volume discounts could only
occur really in two sets of broad circumstances
one of which is where the volume is reasonably
available to most players in the market, that is
we're not requiring you to buy a hundred cases
where most players really can’t find more than
ten.

Or where the volume discount is tethered
precisely no more -- no less -- or no greater
than the actual cost savings in the mode or
method of manufacturer delivery. So in the
supermarket industry if you’re buying a train
load of merchandise you might be able to get a
discount because the train is cheaper than the
truck.

But other than that you’re not permitted to
provide a discount which would be greater than
that cost savings. So we would expect those
same kind of rules and the Governor said he'’s
willing to flesh those out in a little more
detail in revised language which would set
volume discounts which would provide incentives



36 February 28, 2012
law/cd/gbr GENERAL LAW COMMITTEE 11:00 A.M.

for people to save money and find efficient ways
of coming to market but not in harm in any way
the competitive opportunities of our package
stores.

REP. BARAM: Thank you very much.

SENATOR DOYLE: Thank you. Senator Musto.
SENATOR MUSTO: Good afternoon.

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: Good afternoon.

SENATOR MUSTO: Thanks for coming out. It sounds
like there are some good things in the bill.
One of my concerns that I’ve had, if we’re going
to start talking about how we’re really going to
lower prices and save consumers money shouldn’t
we be talking about the distributor system here
in the State of Connecticut, especially the beer
distributor system which seems to have some
monopolistic elements, a territory system, et
cetera that are potentially raising prices.

It doesn’t seem like either the liquor
distributors or beer distributors are giving up
a heck of a lot in this bill. And I was
wondering what the thought was on why it’s so
focused on the retail level and not on the
system as a whole.

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: Well there are
-- there are -- there are parts of the bill that
impact the way in which wholesalers have to
compete with each other differently than they
compete with each other now. But, you know,
what we’re trying to do is to unlock in basic
ways the opportunities for retailers to set
their own path in terms of how they compete.

And that is to decide for themselves what hours
of operation might be most convenient to their
customers and operate during those times.
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And to decide for themselves what prices and
margins and services they would like to offer to
their consumers in exchange for those prices.
And those were the principle -- that was the
principle focus and genesis of most of the
proposals in the bill. And so we were -- that’s
where we focused.

We didn’t see any need to get there, to upset
the expectations currently invested -- invested
expectations of all three levels of the system.
And we've left those largely untouched in terms
of how they interrelate to each other;in terms
of the complete separation of these tiers.

SENATOR MUSTO: You raise two questions, first the
investment based system. Could you tell me what
you’'re referring to?

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: What -- to the
extent a wholesaler has invested for example in
developing his business and buying its trucks
and hiring its people and having a -- a business
operation that employs people one has to be
careful when you’'re looking to change that
system whether or not you are unfairly and too
quickly and in too great a way altering the
nature of that business.

So that’s what I was referring to. And I wasn’'t
suggesting anything you proposed did that, I
just said those are considerations not only
mindful in -- at the wholesale but this
proposal’s very, very mindful of that at the
retail level.

SENATOR MUSTO: I think we might disagree on that a
little bit as far as the -- as far as --

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: Will you give me
the opportunity to expand on that.
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SENATOR MUSTO: Sure. But can I finish my sentence
first?

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: Yes. You may. I’'m
Sorry.

SENATOR MUSTO: Okay. I think we disagree on that.
I think this bill is overly dependent on the
retail levels as far as trying to find savings
and I'm not sure that it -- it adequately takes
into account even with this medallion system
which I'm skeptical of as well, I'm not sure it
adequately takes into account the investments
that small businesses created in their own
communities. And so that -- that’s my primary
concern with this.

The stated goal of this bill is to lower -- cut
prices for consumers. I don’'t see why we'’re not
looking at levels. Why we’re really just
looking at retail levels and -- which -- and
I'l]l certainly make sure you have as much time
as you want to expand. The other thing that you
asked or I think you mentioned is that you
weren’'t really looking at the three levels.

And again, I mean if we’re looking to change the
system my question would be why didn’t we look
at all three levels rather than just really the
retail level? So I guess those are two
questions. You can expand as much as you wish
and then if you could just answer, you know,
again, what was the rationale for not looking at
all three levels?

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: Sure. And you
raise really not only an important issue but
it’s an issue that is really central to a lot of
people in this room. 1It’s quite palpable that
this -- what you raised is an issue of great
important concern.
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So let’s kind of start with kind of bedrock
principles of our economic system which I think
everybody in this room agrees with is that
markets operate ultimately for the benefit of
consumers.

And that is to make sure that consumers get the
goods and services that they want, that they get
the goods and services that they want at the

lowest -- at the best -- at highest quality in
the form that they desire it and better at the
lowest possible prices. And we -- when we do

that the benefit rebounds back of course to a
healthy economy.

So that’s kind of the -- we -- I think an
operating principle that we all agree on. And
so what we tried -- what the Governor tried to

do in this proposal is to reflect this bedrock
principle without undermining either the
regulatory oversight and accountability of what
we do but also with the mind towards
understanding that we don’t want to upset the
entire apple cart of the way in which we’ve come
to market to -- to alcohol and particularly
understanding that important piece of delivery
of these goods and services to consumers or our
package stores, our retailers, our other
permittees, our grocery beer permittees, our off
premise permittees and the like. So change --
if you’'re going to change something though it
always creates a degree of anxiety.

And the anxiety in this room as I said is
palpable. BAnd -- but I -- what I want to be
very clear about is that the proposals,
especially the ones -- including the changes
that we outlined today do not shift ground in
ways that really undermine our package stores
when you -- we look at the package as a whole.
So first, you know, let’s -- the existing
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system, you know, provides package stores with
significant advantages in the marketplace that
other retail entities across the board do not
enjoy in this State.

And those advantages currently that exist for
package stores are largely retained in this
bill. Unlike many retailers in other areas we
have protections for our local retailers from
national and international competition
particularly through the internet, except in
some small areas regarding wine.

Package stores in Connecticut unlike any other
retailer in the State of Connecticut is not
threatened by competition from national,
international internet businesses. There’s a
statutory limitation on the number of
competitors. And with the medallion system that
limitation will absolutely enhance for spirits
and wine.

That'’'s not enjoyed by any other type of retailer
in the State. And there’s a statutory
limitation on the size of chains. Another
advantage that local retailers in -- for liquor
enjoy but other retailers throughout the State
do not enjoy. Even under this proposal the
number of common ownership stores can increase
from two to only six, hardly the kind of large
chain that we see in other industries and are
concerned for other small businesses in the
State.

And the three tier system works for retailers.
And they work for retailers because the protect
package stores from competition by wholesalers
or distillers. They protect retailers from
large competitors being able to cut nationwide
deals directly with distillers. And these
protections are all retained.
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So the current level of protection which is

unique to the liquor package stores aren’t

enjoyed -- not enjoyed by other retailers in the

State are retained by this proposal. I want to

add to that that the proposal goes further to
..assist these package stores. Okay.

So one of the proposals as was earlier pointed
out allows package stores to increase the
product mix that they currently sell so they can
have other profit centers and other ability to
attract consumers into their store whether it'’s
by selling, you know, crackers and cheese or
complimentary fruits or snack products.

That’s an advantage that they have not enjoyed
to date and they will enjoy under the new
proposal. Secondly, you know, for the first
time package store owners under the medallion
system will have a personal property right in
their business.

That’s a value to package store owners and I
dare say when we look back on this package store
owners when they decide to exit the business
will reap a substantial value that they now
cannot unlock from the businesses they spent
years and years developing and investing in.

And then significantly by allowing package store
owners to be competitive in terms of their
hours, in terms of how they come to market, in
terms of pricing, we’re going to stop the
hemorrhaging the loss of sales across our State
borders.

We're going to retain those sales in Connecticut
and those sales are going to be made by
Connecticut package stores that are not
currently available to them because they cannot
be price competitive, they cannot be convenience
competitive. The bill does that.
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It adds that additional advantage to existing
package stores. And the third point that I want
to make here is that I have faith in our package
store owners. They’'re good business people.
They know how to compete. They know how to
compete with each other. The small shops know
how to compete with the big shops.

I live in a town -- the Town of West Hartford
and we have, you know, whatever, 20 package
stores thereabouts, of varying different sizes
and varying different qualities. We have
everything from -- from the mom and pop on the
corner that has a small store that caters to the
local walk in trade of the neighborhood to Crazy
Bruce’s to wine stores that cater mostly --
mostly to wine connoisseurs. And each of these
select different ways in which they decide to
come to market.

They exist competitively side by side. I can go
into a large package store in my town and buy
for price. I can go into a small wine store and
get the service and expertise of the different
wines that I want. I can walk -- I can go to a
small package store on my corner by walking and
not getting in my car.

And citizens in my town do all those things and
I think they do those things in all other towns.
So I have faith our package stores know how to
compete with each other if we give them the
opportunity and tools to make those decisions
for themselves.

And then finally the last thing that I want to
say here is that the experience in other states
when you move from -- into a more price
competitive environment or when you move to
Sunday sales -- if we look at our neighboring
states that moved to Sunday sales a half decade
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ago or more and we look at the number of package
stores that were operating in that state prior
to Sunday sales coming in and how many were
operating -- I think the numbers I looked at
were 2010. The numbers are identical. They
have not lost a single permittee in terms of
numbers in those states.

That’s not to say there aren’t ultimately
winners and losers in every industry. But the
number of opportunities out there remain the
same. They don’'t -- we don’t cannibalize these
businesses. They thrive. They’ve thrived in
other states. I have every confidence they will
thrive here. So when we look at this -- to
answer your last question, Senator Musto, when
we look at that we said on balance is the three
tier system operating sufficiently?

Do we have strong enough players at each level
that we think the market is operating
sufficiently fairly that we want to do is just

take out some -- a couple of central elements
from an overly regulated -- in an overly
regulative way and allow our -- the strength of

our businesses to figure out how to come to
market and the best way for consumers. And that
is the guts of the proposal.

SENATOR MUSTO: Thank you. It seems to me that
liquor stores -- and I know this because as an
attorney I’'ve helped them, can sell their stores
now without any doubt. They have to still get a
permit personally but you still have a location,
a sign, a clientele, 1,500 feet from a school,
whatever the requirements are.

There’s restriction that’s going to be lost as
well which is the 200-- 2,500 person limit in
municipalities. But you’‘re right liquor is
different in a lot of ways and we treat it
differently under the constitutional provisions
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you’ve cited. But one of the things that is
different is they -- liquor store owners get a
much more expensive permit than most stores get
when they decide to open. And you know, Wal-
Mart doesn’t have sting operations come in
because it’s a controlled item like liquor is,
you’re selling a pair of pants or a shirt.

So we treat liquor store owners differently as
well. I mean they’re subject to a lot of
regulations that other industries are not as
well as some protections that other industries
are not. But what I still haven’t heard is what
the -- you mentioned briefly in your first --
answer to my first question that distributors
were giving up something. There were some
changes. What changes are in the distributor
system that are in this bill?

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: So the primary one
that I’'ll point out to you is the way in which
wholesale pricing provisions will work. So
currently what happens is wholesalers will post
a price and then you get to see what price every
other wholesaler posts. And if a wholesaler
posts a lower price than they posted they can
lower their own prices to meet that price.

What that does is tend to stabilize prices
because every wholesaler knows that they can
post a high price and if one of their
competitors decides to post a lower price then
and only then will they lower their price.
Under the system that’s currently proposed you
won’'t have that amending period.

And so without that amending period each
wholesaler is at risk for whether or not they’re
posting the right price. We expect that to be a
downward pressure on price which would therefore
move -- therefore move the price, you know,
downward to retailers and ultimately downward to
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consumers. So that’s a change that'’s
significant that removes a bit of the current
pricing tower that are priced currently at the
hand of wholesalers. So there’s one example.

SENATOR MUSTO: Any other significant examples?

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: You know I‘1ll get
back to you on that. I don’'t have them in my
head right now.

SENATOR MUSTO: And how does that -- how does that --

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: That’s a
significant one but I’ll provide you with
others.

SENATOR MUSTO: No. Okay. That’s fine. Thank you.
I mean the bill’s here, you know, I can read it.
But how does that affect the beer places
positing issue?

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: Well the posting
will be the same.

SENATOR MUSTO: Are beer distributors competing with
each other in their territories?

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: Well they compete
with each other on an inter brand basis, yes.

SENATOR MUSTO: I'm sorry.

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: On an inter brand
basis.

SENATOR MUSTO: Excuse me. Excuse me. Excuse me.
Excuse me. Please.

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: Right. Do they
not?

000183
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SENATOR MUSTO: I -- maybe I'm wrong. The way I
understood it is beers have territories that are
essentially monopolistic.

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: Well.

SENATOR MUSTO: I mean you can say they compete Coors
and Bud for example but if -- if I own a liquor
store in say Fairfield County and I want to buy
a case of Budweiser I have one distributor I can
go to. Is that incorrect?

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: No. That'’s
correct.

SENATOR MUSTO: Okay. So if I post the case of Bud
as a distributor at five dollars a case versus
six dollars a case versus seven dollars a case,

there is -- it doesn’t matter what anybody else
posts a case of Bud at because if I’'m a liquor
store owner -- I was a distributor now I'm a

ligquor store owner, sorry. But if you’re a
distributor and I'm a liquor store owner I have
to buy a case of Bud from you at five, six or
seven dollars or I just don’t but it.

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: That'’s correct.

SENATOR MUSTO: Okay. Thank you. I think that’s the
end of my questions. I appreciate it.

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: Okay. Thank you.
SENATOR DOYLE: Thank you. Representative D’'Amelio.

REP. D'AMELIO: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Commissioner, I'm trying to understand the
medallion system currently when you purchase a
liquor store you’re purchasing that permit --
you’'re applying for a permit to become a new
permit holder but you’re purchasing the location
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or the entity that’s there currently. Am I
correct in saying that?

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: No. Well if there
are no permits available in the town in which
you’re purchasing the only way you can get a
permit is to fill the shoes of an existing
permittee.

There are several towns in Connecticut that have
available permits within -- within the statutory
cap where you wouldn’t have to purchase a
business at all you’d just need to find the
right location and apply for a permit.

REP. D’'AMELIO: Okay. You have a permittee though.
How does the medallion system change that? You
know you refer to it like as a personal property
asset. Do you still have to have a permittee,
like one individual that’s going to be
responsible for multiple locations?

You know what I'm getting at is if a corporation
were to come in and start buying these medallion
systems how would they function? Is there one
designated person that has to be responsible for
upholding the laws of the State of Connecticut
regarding liquor or -- or, you know, does it
change?

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: The requirements to
have a permit as a backer or a permittee will
remain exactly the same. The only change is
that in addition to all the requirements that we
have for a permit and all the checks and
balances on who the permittee is and whether or
not they’re a suitable person and whether or not
it’s a suitable location.

In addition to that in order to have that permit
you also need to have a medallion associated
with it. So it doesn’t change at all the -- who
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REP.

can be a permittee under the statutes other than
you need to also in addition to all the
requirements hold a medallion.

D’AMELIO: I'm still trying to grasp it though.
If a corporation -- if a corporate entity wanted
to buy a medallion, you know, they have a chain
of stores -- six stores in the State of
Connecticut. Does -- you know, if they operate
like under a board of directors do they have to
designate one person to be responsible for the
medallion or not? Like be a permittee or will
the corporation itself be the permittee?

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: A corporation now

REP.

can currently be a backer for a permit, that is
the owner of the business and they must
designate an individual to be the permittee.
Under the medallion system the backer, the owner
could now be a corporation under current --
could also -- would have to also own the
medallion but the requirement of having an
individual permittee would be made.

D'AMELIO: Thank you for clarifying that.

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: Thank you.

REP.

D'AMELIO: You know what I'm trying to grasp
also is right now, I come from the City of
Waterbury and the majority if not all the liquor
stores there are owned by mom and pops. You
know I don’t remember any of them going out of
business recently anyways. By changing the
current system that we’re having -- that we have
could a medallion or a permit be purchased in
Waterbury and move to Bridgeport.

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: Yes. If there is

room on statutory cap in Bridgeport. So for
example -- I think currently there are 19
permits that are currently available in the City
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REP.

of Bridgeport within the current statutory cap
of one for every 2,500 people.

There’s 19 permits that are unclaimed. Under
the medallion system if somebody wanted to open
an package store in Bridgeport they would need
to find a medallion from some other package
store owner. They might go to Waterbury to a
package store owner who'’s thinking about
retiring and believe that they could get more
money for their medallion in Bridgeport than
they could get in Waterbury and that package
store, they would monetize the value of their
investment in a much greater way.

D’AMELIO: So it’s your belief then the
medallion system will definitely benefit permit
-- or an owner of a package store now because
it’1l]l become much more wvaluable.

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: Without a doubt.

REP.

D’'AMELIO: But what would it do to the person
trying to enter into the business. I mean, you
know, are we going to create a system where
you’re going to have to have deep pockets to
even enter into this industry by, you know,
creating this medallion system in your opinion?

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: You know in many

parts of the State we already have exactly that
system because we’re -- in most towns we are
already at the statutory cap of number of
permits. And so the only way in which in all
those towns currently you can get into the
business is by -- by buying the business of an
existing permittee, keeping it in location or
moving it to another approved location within
the town borders. So in large measure, you
know, in a lot of places we already have that
system where in order to be in the business in
some places you need to buy a business.
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REP. D'AMELIO: Just one other question. I just want

your opinion on this because I'm under the
impression and I'm -- you know, obviously all of
us here are speaking to a lot of different
folks. You know we’re going to create an
atmosphere or a new, you know, different type of
industry within this -- you know, within our
liquor laws here where we’re going to have the
Home Depots and the Costcos of the world where
the individual, you know the small retailer
won’t be able to survive anymore.

And that’s a big fear amongst everyone in this
room. How in your opinion like if you -- you
know I‘'m trying to look through this legislation
and the testimony you provided, how are we not
creating that type of an atmosphere.

I mean you just described West Hartford ycu know
you have so many different choices available to
you. And I think that is because of the system
that we have now. Everybody’s kind of on a
level playing field. So whoever provides that
better service is the place you go to.

But if we start, you know, dwindling the numbers
of people that we’re able to access these
products through then we’re going to be stuck
with whatever you know, big retailers out there
and the service that they provide us once these

small mom and pops are gone. I’'m just curious
to see how -- how that won’t happen through this
system.

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: So the proposal

that you have and the suggested revision
actually keeps the playing field level and
imparts choice among how to come to market to
retailers whether they are better off being a
price competitor, being a service competitor,
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REP.

being convenience competitor and allows all
those options.

But, you know, at bottom what -- what the
proposal does is cap the number of common
ownerships at six so that prevents Home Depots
on every corner. It prevents -- and the way in
which liquor comes to market it prevents large
chains as they do now from doing direct deals
with manufacturers, the suppliers at levels that
can’'t be achieved if you’re dealing through a
middle man.

The law -- the law currently and the law under
the proposal would make that -- there are lots
of checks in place. As I said we’re not looking
at a Home Depot problem. We’re not looking at
what might -- some people might consider to be
the demise of local pharmacies with CVS chains,
CVSs on every corner.

You’re not going to have chains on every corner.
The number of stores that can be operated under
by a single entity are limited and the
opportunities to take advantage of some of those
-- what we see as unfair pricing advantages just
don’t occur under the proposal.

D'AMELIO: One more question, Commissioner. I’'m
looking at the attachment A.

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: Yes.

REP.

D'’AMELIO: And in C includes channel pricing and
positing for on versus off premise retailers.

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: Right.

REP.

D’'AMELIO: You know I’'ve heard that term channel
pricing and it just escaped my mind on what it
is. Can you explain to me what that is again?
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COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: So liquor
wholesalers sell to two basic kinds of
retailers, those who sell for off premise
consumption, package stores and clerks of beer
and those who serve for on premise consumption,
restaurants for example.

So those are two separate channels that don't
really compete with each other for the ultimate
consumer because the consumer who’s buying for
off premises by and large is not looking to
drink on premise and vice versa. I’'m not saying
that they don’t do both but largely they’re
separate channels. And so the channel pricing
proposal here would allow the wholesaler to
adjust its volume discount understanding the
needs of the two different channels.

So if a volume discount to the off premise
channel made sense in terms of number of cases
that you purchased it’s possible for a
restaurant channel that discount structure may
change based upon the number of bottles that you
purchase. It allows the flexibility of the
wholesalers to understand the needs of the on
premise channel, you know in a way differently
than the off premise channel. So that'’s what
channel pricing means.

SENATOR DOYLE: Thank you. Representative Esposito.

REP. ESPOSITO: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Good
afternoon, Commissioner.

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: Good afternoon.
REP. ESPOSITO: It’s been a long morning.

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: Well it'’s afternoon
even.

000190



53 February 28, 2012 000191
law/cd/gbr GENERAL LAW COMMITTEE 11:00 A.M.

REP. ESPOSITO: 1I’'ve got a number of questions and I
really don’t even know where to start. But
right now can a permittee own more than one
store under current law.

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: Two off premise 1
currently under current law. Two. |

REP. ESPOSITO: So with the medallion system that
will change and he can own up to six.

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: Yeah. The
medallion system is actually separate than that.
You know, so the six proposal whether you have a
medallion -- whether you adopt the medallion
program -- proposal or not the proposal is to
allow one owner to operate up to six stores.

REP. ESPOSITO: Under the new system.
COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: That’'s correct.
REP. ESPOSITO: Proposed system.

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: That's correct.

REP. ESPOSITO: On the question of increased taxes
and sales volumes you mentioned early on in your
testimony that we’ll have to do something with
the tax structure itself in addition with the
convenience of selling on Sunday to bring the
sales back into Connecticut.

I'm kind of confused as to -- if we’re going to
try to lower the taxes how will we generate the
revenue that’s being proposed from this by --

because we’ll be lowering the taxes not just on
the border sales but throughout the whole State.

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: You do a do a
disservice to Senator Witkos for confusing me
with him. But I didn’t suggest that we’d make
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an adjustment to the tax. I was responding to a
question from Senator Witkos.

And what the Governor said about taxes is we
should first see, you know, what the volume of
business that transfers back into Connecticut
and then adjust the -- the -- have a discussion
about what the tax structure should be in order
to remain competitive with other states.

REP. ESPOSITO: Well I'm sorry. I didn’t mean to say
that it was you that made the statement.

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: Oh, I'm sorry.

REP. ESPOSITO: But it was in the Governor'’s
statement. It was --

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: The Governor said
he’d be willing to look at that --

REP. ESPOSITO: Right.

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: -- at some point.
Yes.

REP. ESPOSITO: So I have to question then whether
we’re going to be getting as much revenue gain
out of this proposal as is being put forth. So
that’s one thing. And on the six month rule for
the transfer of the medallions, you said after
six months it reverts back to the State but yet
as I read through the -- through the proposal
they can apply for a six month extension. So
now that six month rule is up to 12 months.

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: The basis of the
proposal was to try to assure -- to assure that
medallions were used for the purpose of running
off premise operations, for the purpose of
running package stores. And we also recognize
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REP.

that we’re not looking to make this a necessary
forfeiture statute.

So the way in which we do that was to say look,
if you’'re going buy a medallion we want you to
come forward promptly and apply for a permit.

We understand as has already been suggested that
sometimes the vagaries of business deals don’t
allow you to be as prompt as we might otherwise
like and so we have an opportunity to grant you
an extension for good cause beyond that six
month period.

In addition the period of time in which we are -
- you are under regulatory review doesn’t count.
So the idea is to -- to impel people to act
promptly but also to give them every opportunity
to do what with the medallion what they want to
do with the medallion which is open a package
store. So that’s the balance.

ESPOSITO: I think as we stated earlier --
someone stated earlier that they might consider
shortening that period so it makes them be a
little more willing to reopen a store rather
than just hold onto the permit until it gets to
be a price where they can make money on that.

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: You put your finger

REP.

precisely on at least what the goal was.

ESPOSITO: Does the backer or the permittee need
to be a resident of the town or the State under
current statute?

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: No.

REP.

ESPOSITO: So that goes -- one of the questions
that was just asked that someone from an out of
state corporation can be the backer and a
permittee as well and not even live in the State
and have no -- no real --
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COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: The same is true
under current system. That'’s correct.

REP. ESPOSITO: Well maybe we should change current
law also. 1Is there a cap now on convenience
store, grocery store permits?

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: Yes.

REP. ESPOSITO: And does it fall under the same
guidelines as a package store or liquor store
permit?

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: There is no
numerical cap for grocery beer permits.
Convenience stores can only qualify if they
qualify as a grocery store permit.

REP. ESPOSITO: All right. So it wouldn’'t impact on
the number of permits per town like we do right
now, the one per 2,500 for the liquor store
permits.

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: One per every 2,500
is for package store permits only.

REP. ESPOSITO: And -- forgive me. I was trying to
be brief but I've got a lot more questions but
I'm not going to go into them all but it was
asked earlier and if I understand the question
right that you think that you’ll have enough
resources within DCP to control and monitor the
sale of liquor at more outlets than is currently
-- than you currently serve it to now by
expanding the liquor or the grocery and beer
permits to convenience stores and gas stations.

To me, I mean it’s going to be -- it’s going to
expand it so much that I can’t really see how
the department is going to be able to monitor
such an influx of people selling beer which --
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it’s just so many things coming into one. I
think we should have taken more time to really
study what all the aspects are going to be.

Sunday sales as a standalone is one thing easy
to look at but when we start getting into the --
all these other avenues, Commissioner, and I
think it’s going to be burdensome upon your
department to have to monitor all of this. But
that’s my opinion.

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: All right. Let me

REP.

-- let me just say this. Every regulator would
like more resource to do everything that we do.
And I would never turn it down if it came my
way. But I want to, you know, assure the
committee that we have -- get increasingly good
at what we do in terms of assuring compliance.

I will also say that our package store and
grocery beer permit operators are responsible,
that they try to do the right thing but they’re
not perfect. But we’ve found ways in which we
can provide the oversight on a random basis
based upon some intelligence that we have in
terms of where problems are likely to occur and
when problems are likely to occur that we feel
confident that we can continue the regulatory
oversight in -- as effective of a degree as we
have been doing.

ESPOSITO: I think with that I’'ll stop now and
let someone else have a chance and so we can go
on. Thank you.

SENATOR DOYLE: Thank you. For the second time,

REP.

Representative Rebimbas.

REBIMBAS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. And good
afternoon now, Commissioner. I just wanted to
clarify a few points for me because the
wonderful thing about public hearings is we have
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an opportunity to hear from a variety of
different perspectives.

And what I try to do is really weigh the
consumer interest versus the business interest
and most importantly for the State of
Connecticut, the small business interest which
is the backbone of the State of Connecticut.
And I think we would all agree with something
along those lines. Under the current proposed
legislation how many more gas stations and
convenience stores that otherwise did not
qualify for a beer permit would be able to
qualify?

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: We take under the

REP.

definition that’s currently in the proposed bill
we're looking at a few hundred additional
permittees.

REBIMBAS: And currently under the proposed bill
there’s nothing that prevents a gas station or a
convenience stores to do whatever modifications

may be necessary in order to qualify under this

proposal. Is that correct?

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: That'’s correct.

REP.

REBIMBAS: In looking at the medallion system
I'm trying to understand the real purpose behind
it because although I’'ve heard testimony that
it’s supposed to give a sense of a property
value for a package store there’s so many
different provisions in there that it may
possibly revert back to the State that maybe
there won’t be any value to it.

Again that all goes to supply and demand. There
may be potential lawsuits so again there may or
may not be an end value for it. 1Is there any

transfer of inheritance related to the medallion
system. So in other words if that package store
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owner passes away, not looking at the permittee
rules and regulations is there an inheritance
right to the medallion?

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: The property right

REP.

in the medallion would pass the way any other
property right would pass. And whether that’s
by sale or by devise it would pass but it would
carry with it an obligation to operate a package
store. And so if it were transferred say by
devise, by inheritance to someone is interested
in operating a package store they would like
many other assets that are inherited be
monetized by sale to somebody who would like to
use it.

REBIMBAS: And would the structure of the six
months still apply to that if it was by devise?

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: The structure of

REP.

the six month would apply with the opportunity
to extend for good cause and good cause might be
that there is a need to dispose of the proper
probate process but yes.

REBIMBAS: My concern is throughout the probate
process sometimes there’s considerable delays
for a variety of different reasons where probate
aren’'t finalized until many years possibly even
down the road. How would that be affected by
this?

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: You know I -- you

know it’s an issue that I haven’t thought
through. As the intent is not to get a
forfeiture but the intent -- the goal is to get
these -- these medallions used for the purpose
of operating a package store. An opportunity
takes a situation like that into account. It
would probably be advisable.
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REP. REBIMBAS: You had indicated that under this new
proposed legislation there would be an
opportunity for discounts. Is that correct?

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: There would be an
opportunity --

REP. REBIMBAS: For the manufacturer, wholesaler to
provide discounts.

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: Yes. Yes. Volume
discounts. Yes.

REP. REBIMBAS: And would that be equal across the
board to all retailers or would it be at the
discretion of the wholesaler or manufacturer to
choose which retailers they provide those
discounts to?

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: The proposal was to
add stacking and language that would make --
that made it unclear whether or not you could
discriminate individual to individual as opposed
to set a uniform set of volume discounts.

The intention here is to set a uniform set of
volume discounts that are reasonably available
to most operators. And that would be consistent
with existing requirements of section 35-45 in
General Statutes which apply generally to the
price discrimination of market commodities.

REP. REBIMBAS: And also just clarification on the
amending period. Under current statute what was
the period of time before a price could be
amended or changed?

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: Was it five days?
I think five days.

REP. REBIMBAS: Five days. And under the new
proposal what would it be?

000198
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COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: There would be no
amending process.

REP. REBIMBAS: There would be no amending period.

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: That'’s correct.
The retailer -- wholesaler would be at risk of
coming up with his best price or suffer the
consequences in the market for failing to
provide their best price. Yes.

REP. REBIMBAS: One of the concerns I have regarding
that, it’s my understanding that that time for
posting is necessary for the retailer then to
plan accordingly in passing that possible
discount onto their consumers.

With no allotted period or requirement of period
I don’'t see how a business can function and
properly then being able to identify the new
price, being able to actually plan for the
purchase possibly of the new price if they don’t
have the inventory already in place and then
still be able to then turn around and provide it
to the consumer.

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: Let me clear up a
confusion that I may have imparted in
conversation here. The -- when you asked me
about an amending period what I was referring to
is the period after the initial positing when
somebody could amend downward the price.

What I think you’re addressing now is how far in
advance before the price is operating in the
market is that available to the retailer. And
that rule would stay the same. I think it’s on
the eighth day or the tenth day of the month
proceeding the month in which the price will be
operating.
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REP.

So that if for example you wanted to have a
price in January you would post your price at
the beginning of December that would be
operative in January so that retail would have
plenty of time for that planning as they do
currently in the existing law.

REBIMBAS: Do you have a number of account for

how many package stores have actually exercised
this last law that allowed them from being open
from eight to nine o’clock.

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: It varies. And we

REP.

don’t have that -- we don’t go out and survey
the actual hour of operations. What we’re
concerned is if people are operating at greater
hours not lesser hours. So we don’t track that.

REBIMBAS: Because it’s my understanding having
met with several package stores throughout the
State of Connecticut that many have exercised
not to open until nine and I see under the new
proposed legislation it actually allows them to
open until ten. Do you know what the -- what
the understanding or the purpose of that -- who
demanded the extra hour?

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: I don’t have an

REP.

answer to the question in the way you phrased
but what it’s driving is -- is a recognition of
what happens in all our neighboring states.

And wanting to be competitive and also this
notion that we ought to be empowering our
retailers to make those kinds of business
decisions for themselves whether it is
beneficial to their consumers and therefore
profitable to them to be open these hours.

REBIMBAS: And I appreciate all the testimony
that you’re providing and I guess what I'm
looking at is the consumers -- I think many of
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us can probably agree that many people have been
in contact with us and for the consumers purpose
a lot of the things we’ve heard over the years
is that they do want convenience, they do want
package store to be open on Sundays. I have yet
to have someone come up to me and say that
there’'s a problem with the price of alcohol,
that they want cheaper alcohol.

I do know that based on the economy people have
probably modified their purchasing abilities but
that’s certainly not something that we can
address. My concern with this medallion system
is that it’s a system put in place not asked
for, my understanding, from the package stores
of a certain value where the concern is if we
now have big box whether it’s the Stop and
Shops, the Wal-Mart's of the world or Costcos of
the world with the ability now to open up a
liquor store next door if they were to purchase
a medallion, it does not allow for the
competition of these small mom and pop package
stores which is predominately the ones we have
in the State of Connecticut.

And they don’t have their business because they
want to be rich off of this business. They want
a business because they want jobs, they’ve
created jobs and they want to maintain some kind
of economy ability to work and survive and
provide for their families. They'’re not going
to be able to compete in order then to be able
to purchase additional medallions when you’ve
got big box stores that have a strong interest
in it.

We already have it in the State of Connecticut.
We have Costco. Again, consumers who want
cheaper liquor possibly want to look there. But
they’re going to their package stores. 1It’s for
the service. 1It’s for the convenience and many
other things. And it would just be completely
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unfortunate to put many of these as a result of
the proposed legislation in a position unable to
actually be able to function in the business
community in the State of Connecticut.

Because although we should be mindful of what
the other states around us are doing but the
reality of it is the cost of doing business in
the State of Connecticut whether that’s taxes or
everything else that’s put onto these businesses
as a result of being in business in the State of
Connecticut is not necessarily the case for
these other businesses. So it’s really tough to
be able to look at a proposal and see the intent
and the effect that it’s going to have on the
business community because the reality of it is
insurances will be more costly if your open
later.

There is a sense of loss of revenue with the
potential convenience stores, gas stations, big
box retailers out there having the ability to
open the package stores and an inability for
these package stores to even be able to afford
to purchase these medallions that are out there.

So again it’s our responsibility on this
committee to be able to then balance consumers,
business, and small businesses. And I just want
to thank you for your testimony and identifying
a lot of these things in the Governor’s bill and
the possible changes or suggestions for changes
and certainly will be mindful of that. So thank
you for your time.

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: Thank you.
SENATOR DOYLE: Thank you. Representative Taborsak.
REP. TABORSAK: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Thank you,

Commissioner for your testimony. I just have a
few clarifying questions. Through testimony and
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through talking to members of the public it
seemed as if some people are a little bit
confused about to what extent under current law
grocery stores, box stores can get into the sale
of liquor.

And I think they’re -- it’s understandable that
people might not know the ins and outs of these
laws. And from what they see, they go to a
grocery store, there’s beer. There’s no wine.
There’s no liquor. But that doesn’t tell the
full story of what -- what the law actually is
right now.

Am I correct in understanding that if a grocery
store in the State of Connecticut now doesn’t
have a grocery store beer permit that same
entity could still -- could consider whether or
not to open a package store and obtain a package
store permit?

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: That'’s correct.

REP.

TABORSAK: That is correct. Right. So it’s --
it is the case in our State right now that
grocery stores and box stores can get into the
sale of liquor, wine and spirits if they choose
to not seek out a grocery store beer permit?
That is correct.

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: That'’s correct.

REP.

TABORSAK: Thank you. I wanted to clarify that.
The -- and just to take that a small step
forward, are you aware and if you don’t have
this information off the top of your head I
would understand -- of -- if there’s a number or
if you could estimate how many grocery stores in
the State of Connecticut now opt to have a
liquor package store permit rather than a beer
store -- my apology a grocery store beer permit.
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COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: I don’t have that
number.

REP. TABORSAK: But there are some that have chosen,
is that correct to I think get package store
permits?

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: You know, I don’t
know because we just don’t track the data that
way.

REP. TABORSAK: 1It’s understandable.

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: But it certainly --
certainly is within the existing rules something
that could occur.

REP. TABORSAK: Right. Right. And not to confuse
anyone, we’'re not saying that under a scenario
where a grocery store decided to go into the
package store business, they would not be able
to under current law have that package store
within the four corners of their grocery store,
within that building. They would not be able to
do that. That is abundantly clear.

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: That’s correct.

REP. TABORSAK: But they would be able to obtain a
permit to have a package store even in the same
plaza that their grocery store may be out now.

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: That’s correct.

REP. TABORSAK: So essentially they do have a choice
under the current law whether they want to get
into beer or package stores. I just wanted to
clarify that because I think some people
understandably may not be aware of that.

Another clarification just about the bill
actually, section 11 deals with the current law

000204
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which requires a separation -- a physical
separation between an entity’s package store and
their grocery store area. Is it -- am I correct
in understanding -- well actually I guess I’1l1

just ask you this openly. 1Is it the intent of
the Governor’s bill to change that requirement
or is that separate entrance requirement
something that will be continued?

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: The intention is to
maintain the separate entrance requirement.

REP. TABORSAK: Thank you. That’s actually all that
I have. Thank you.

SENATOR DOYLE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Any further
questions from the committee? Seeing none,
thank you very much Mr. Commissioner. Thank you
for your patience in answering our questions.

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM RUBENSTEIN: Thank you.

SENATOR DOYLE: And then the public, I thank you for
your patience but if you do appreciate that
that’'s the Commissioner of the Department of
Consumer Protection and it’s the decision of the
committee chairs not to limit questions of
committee members. Another committee in a
similar circumstance that has decided to limit
questions of committee members.

It was our decision not to limit the questions
of the committee members because it’s their
responsibility to vote in this legislation. So
I do appreciate your patience. And I think
you’ve thought -- you may have thought it was a
long time but it was informative for the
committee. So thank you very much.

Now at this point we are alternating from public
to the elected officials and appointed
officials. So the first person from the public

000205



69 February 28, 2012 000207

1aw/cd/gbr GENERAL LAW COMMITTEE 11:00 A.M.
We don’'t offer entertainment or cater to the
‘ outside public.

The combination of the smoking ban, the
education of drinking and driving, the overall
decrease in alcohol sales along with the
downturn of the economy have all taken a heavy
toll on the industry. These things cannot be
changed but the cost of the permit can be
corrected and I ask your help in doing that.

I have spoken with the Commissioner of Consumer
Protection, William Rubenstein as well as the
prior Commissioner, Jerry Farrell and they both
did not have a problem with coming forward with
this. However it’s got to be done through the
legislative process. Correcting the cost of our
license is long overdue and can be done through
the legislative process and that’s the reason
for this bill and why I am here. I again thank
you for your time and I'd be glad to answer any
questions you may have.

‘ SENATOR DOYLE: Thank you, Bill, for adhering to the
three minute rule. I appreciate it. And thank
you for your patience. Any questions from
committee members? Senator Witkos.

SENATOR WITKOS: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Bill, I want
to also thank you for bringing this bill to our
attention. We hear so often that people should
pay their fair share and for bowling alley café
permits to pay the same as a large venue like
the XL Center to use them as an example
certainly is not equity there. So hopefully we
can do something to address that issue this
session. Thank you.

WILLIAM DeDOMINICIS: Thank you.

SENATOR DOYLE: Any further questions from committee
members? Seeing none, thank you very much. All
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right the next speaker -- we’re now -- again
we’'re alternating, is Representative Betts. 1Is
Representative Betts here? Oh, he’s here.
You’ve got time. Just in time, Representative.
So the next speaker with be Carroll Hughes then
Representative Ed Jutila, then Jay Hibbard, then
Representative Phil Miller, then Gary Davis,
Representative Urban, Mark Espinoza.
Representative Betts. Thank you.

REP. BETTS: Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. And Hf) 502‘

just to assure you I have Mike Nicastro who'’s
President and CEO of the Connecticut Chambers of
Commerce and we will have a combined testimony
under three minutes.

So I just wanted to assure you that. I’'m here
to support the liquor package owners and I have
talked to many of them like you have and they
are absolutely convinced that the adoption of
this proposal will put them out of business.

And I think obviously that’s something we have
to really take into consideration as we evaluate
this.

The two questions I asked myself when taking a
look at the Governor'’s proposal was this, first
is it the role of state government to pick
winners and losers in a liquor industry. If the
answer is yes, then this means that the State
government and not consumers will determine
wh%ch business will succeed and which will
lose.

And the second question I asked myself doesn’t
this -- doesn’t the impact of this proposal
remind you of last year'’s debate when we had our
local independent retail pharmacies tell us that
they would be forced to close because of new
prescription policy imposed by State government.
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As it is proposed in H.B. 50-21, State
government once again will be favoring big
business over small business. First independent
retail pharmacies and now the mom and package --
mom and pop package stores. Small businesses
are now seen as the underdog in these battles
and in my opinion now is the time for the
legislature to stand up for the underdog.

I would like to offer an alternative strategy in
terms of trying to deal with the question of
price competition with the neighboring states.
You may have better ideas and obviously we'’'re
all welcome to that but the one I will offer to
you is that we repeal the 20 percent excise tax
that was adopted last year and replace the
estimated nine million dollars that we are
expected to receive from that and replace it by
taking nine million dollars from the Connecticut
Public Campaign Fund to replace that.

You may have better ideas but I think that
getting rid of that tax is very important and
would allow us to be a little bit more price
competitive. As you evaluate the merits of H.B.
50-21 I ask that you keep in mind the one g63T_
we all share together, and that is to make
Connecticut a great place to own and manage a
small business. And I’ll turn it over now to
Mike Nicastro.

MICHAEL NICASTRO: Senator Doyle, Representative
Taborsak, thank you. My name is Mike Nicastro,
President and Chief Executive Officer of Central
Connecticut Chambers of Commerce. We service
about 1,500 businesses, trade associations and
smaller chambers.

I won't reiterate a lot of what was just said

but we are very concerned with 50-21. One of

the biggest items that sticks out to us is the
concept of permittees and increasing those
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numbers whether it’s six, nine whatever the
number is you can make that arbitrary. But it
does smack of the setting of the stage of what
has happened and history bears it out.

The small -- the small pharmacy, the small
store, it certainly does bear that out. So what
we would say to you is -- and let me wrap this
up for you because we did promise to stay under
the three minutes. The -- this past fall you
had a special session. The major discussion of
that special session was small business, small
business, small business. Two weeks ago we
hosted an event for DECD and all they did was
talk about small business and how to help small
businesses. Unfortunately this 50-21 is
counterintuitive to everything that you talked
about in the fall.

SENATOR DOYLE: Please. Please.

MICHAEL NICASTRO: And I would ask that you simply
look at what the goal is here and to avoid the
situation is -- and I think we need to modernize
laws but have to avoid the fire, ready, aim
outcome. So I thank you and I’'1l1 take any
questions.

SENATOR DOYLE: Thank you. And again, audience,
please legislators are listening. Please we
appreciate the content. Any questions from any
committee members? Seeing none, thank you very
much. All right. the next speaker is Carroll
Hughes, then it’s Ed -- Representative Ed
Jutila, Jay Hibbard, Joe Miller, Gary Davis,
Representative Urban, Mark Espinoza, Senator
Kelly, Tim Devanney. Carroll Hughes.

CARROLL HUGHES: Thank you very much, Senator Doyle, ﬁﬁLﬁll&i_
Representative Taborsak, the members of the
general law committee. My name is Carroll
Hughes and I represent the Connecticut Package
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Stores Association. They currently are 1,228
licenses.

We represent at least -- actually as of last
week we went up 150. We'’re up at almost 900
package stores that have joined the association.
The store employ approximately 10,000 people. I
have a breakdown of the number of stores that
hire everywhere from two up to 25 members, those
are employees of those stores. The proposals in
this bill, and it’s not Sunday sales, I've
suggested we endorse that.

It would seem to be a driving force here of the
engine on this train to accommodate certain
people mostly in the food stores that are
already open and think they’re going to do a
huge business here. So we’ve endorsed one today
similar to the last -- seven out of the last
eight states that have gone to Sunday sales
including Rhode Island of being open on a
schedule of 11 to five, 12 to six, 12 to five
whatever it is.

I've talked to certain public safety people.
They think that’s a very adequate response in
their considerations on this bill of opening on
a Sunday which they’ve opposed in the past.
There are certain sections of this bill and I
can go into details on medallions and how that
works and things but the most critical parts of
this bill are obviously who you’re putting into
business now.

You’re not helping me as Commissioner Rubenstein
said. We try to be careful in making the
changes. They'’re putting at least 2,000
permittees in gas stations, small delis,
convenience stores. It’s no longer -- it’s
anybody who has groceries proposed in their
store. You don’t have to sell any.
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You just have to have a prop in the store. The
-- also putting the discounts in and they
basically want us to sell totally below cost at
all time. 1I've heard this latest proposal of
five SKUs that they’re going to do.

There'’'s only 15 brands of spirits that sell
regularly in the State of Connecticut. The big
box stores, the Wal-Mart's, the Costcos, all
those, they have about 200 SKUs in their store.

I have a package store in Newington that has
15,000 SKUs in the store. So their models are
very different. Their models are predatory in
some cases. I will give you much detail if you
ask me a question about why a food store
shouldn’t be in the business. We know their
marketing practices. We know their percentage
of selling to minors in small convenience stores
and other types.

We know all the intrinsic things that you need
to know. And you certainly know all the ability
of these people to severely compete with stores
on an unfair advantage. These small stores --
everybody -- the one thing we all agree on,
there’s more stores than you need in the State
of Connecticut. I know that.

There are probably double the number of stores
that exist in other areas but you’re putting
another 2,000 in business here in terms of
convenience stores.

So it'’s kind of disingenuous here to say that
we're trying to balance this off and just deal
with competition at the local level. So there
are many things that I can support in here in
this bill that I think were well done and shame
on us we didn’t think about it beforehand.
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But it is an economic model that -- I'm not
criticizing the Governor or anybody else who
came up with this because it’s going to do
exactly what it’s planned to do, we just
disagree with how you get there and whose
livelihoods and whose jobs. And we think we’ll
lose almost 8,000 if this bill passes like it
is. And I’'ll give you the details of how we
think that would operate. Thank you.
N

SENATOR DOYLE: Thank you, Mr. Hughes. Any
questions? Senator Kissel.

SENATOR KISSEL: Thank you very much, Chairman Doyle.
Carroll, it'’s nice to see you. I just want to
thank you. I know for a number of years you and
I have disagreed regarding the issue of Sunday
sales and the fact that at this point in this
short legislative session you offered to take
some steps in that direction. I understand the
concern about one shift and trying to sort of
negotiate a time 12 to six or 11 to five or
something like that.

I would encourage you to continue your
negotiations with the administration because
obviously with the Governor weighing in on this
proposal it'’s changed the entire dynamic in this
building. But primarily if not solely that was
the issue that really was brought home to me in
north central Connecticut. And I would be the
first to say that it wasn’t even unanimous, that
people have strong feelings depending on whom
you speak to.

But I think that’s -- that your offer to set
aside Sunday sales and work on the other parts
of the bill I think is a big step forward in
this discussion and I do share some of your
concerns regarding unintended consequences of
changing the entire playing field when it comes
to the relationship of small businesses to the
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larger businesses. And if you wanted to just
very briefly expand upon that, you had said the
whole SKUs and one of the concerns you had with
opening up the marketplace especially --
Representative Rebimbas was talking about
convenience stores and things like that.

If you could just sort of explain because I've
always been of the belief that our ratio of
individuals to liquor store permits is very
thin. If you go to Massachusetts it tends to be
double. So if you want to shore up folks that
are in this (inaudible) there should be not
necessarily less competition but we can’t spread
ourselves so thin that businesses are so much on
the margin that they’re going to tip over and
fall off and essentially go out of business.

And what you’re telling me is that the -- one of
the impacts of this proposal by the
administration is that we will vastly increase
the numbers of players out there for certain
product and that will have deleterious and
extremely adverse impact on package store owners
that have been in our communities for decades.
So if you could just explain briefly on that
that would be great.

CARROLL HUGHES: Yes. And I want to say, you know,

food stores very importantly -- there are some
food stores in this room that have had package
stores -- in their family have had package

stores for 25, 30 years. They can still get
them. A nice food store can go get a package
store permit.

If Balduccis in Fairfield County didn’t want to
have beer and they wanted to have a package
store permit, they can buy one. And these are
quality operators. These are guys in a lot of
cases that are homegrown Connecticut citizens.
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They'’'re not headquartered in Amsterdam and
taking from the country.

They’'re people who put a business in and they
care about what it looks like. I knew when I
started talking to the Governor’s Office that I
was probably either the last one in to the
package or the only one left out because most of
it’'s taken from package stores. And it’s like a
train. There’s 14 lobbyists in this bill. I
doubt very much if you’re going to hear from
more than two or three today.

There are things in this bill where people are
getting substantial items. The beer at gas
station one is the one. That -- that is -- why
would you put that in if you’re trying to make
the package store more competitive? Why would
you give the food stores more permits and
they’re the only ones that have two permits of
different kinds.

Nobody else has that. I can’‘t own a restaurant
if I'm a package store or a café. They will be
the only ones having that. Why? Because they
don’t want to bother going through the model
that Highland Park Market has or the model that
Stu Leonard has in Newington. He doesn’t bother
us. He has a package store down there.

Wal-Mart has a package store in Berlin right
next door to him. These guys, the big chains
want to come in here and say we don’t want to go
through that. We don’t care what the other food
stores have done, we want it all.

We want two permits and we’re not about to

change and take our 92-- 92 of our 94 stores as
Stop and Shop would say. And we’'re going to
have two -- we’re going to have as many permits

as you guys will allow but we’re not giving up
any of our beer and any of our other markets.
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Other predecessors of food stores have said
that, we’re going to give it up. And what makes
it very impure in this bill is you’re letting a
beer wholesaler territory remain. How can we

compete? The Governor assured me -- and I like
that the antitrust laws are going to apply now
to the liquor industry. We -- those apply to us

but now what they’ve done here is leave beer
wholesaler territory.

So I've got people in Tolland County, Hartford
County, and Windham County, the same Anheuser-
Busch dealer. The Town of Colchester is up
against three of them. So that means Colchester
which buys from -- buys from Levine which is in
New London County, may have a lower price.

So if I'm a Stop and Shop store in Colchester,
I'm going to have it delivered to my warehouse
which ships out to all the others. You never
had to worry about this before because the price
was always the same. Now the price has to be
different or there will be an antitrust, the
Robinson-Patman Act which the Commissioner just
mentioned, that’s what he’s talking about.

So there will be a different price. So if I'm a
chain gasoline store and they all are. They're
all 25, 30 units, 15 units. And they’'re all
over the State. They’re in everybody's
different counties. So that means if I’'m in
Litchfield County my store up there and the
price is lower, I’'ll buy it there as the chain,
have it shipped out to my warehouse and then
I'l]l reship it to all my outlets in somebody
else’'s territory.

I screw the small cafes, the bars, the private
VFWs because they’'re stuck in the territory. My
package stores are generally stuck in the
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territory. So that’s one of the most
discriminatory things I see in the bill.

Those can’t stand if you’re going to have a
competitive system. They cannot be tolerated.
And the 30 day credit I‘ve been quiet about that
but we have 30 day credit. We can’'t go to
anybody else and you’ll have to buy C.0.D if you
don’'t pay your bill because of some inordinate
circumstances. We’re open -- we’'re going to be
open and I agreed to it, holidays, Memorial Day,
July fourth, Labor Day.

Two of those days -- one of those days is
phenomenal almost all the time, July fourth.

The product will come in in droves on Memorial
Day weekend. You have to buy it 30 days or 15
days ahead of time. You know how many cold, wet
Memorial Day weekends there are? And I'm going
to get that product stuck on my shelf.

But then under this bill on the discounts, if I
have a product left in my store more than three
months I can sell it -- six months, excuse me --
I can sell it for 30 percent below cost. And I
have to pick out five items every month -- I
won‘t. The big competitors will do this one --
that I have to sell for ten percent below -- can
sell ten percent below cost.

If I get a discount -- the last proposal I saw
unless it’s changed is if I get a discount, the
discount that’s out there that somebody buys is
now considered cost. So if I could access the
discount, the discount becomes the lowest price,
not what I paid for it, what somebody else paid
for their goods.

That starts off what I'm going to call the
calamity of confusion which means nobody is
going to figure out what the price is for that
day. Nobody is going to. And all due respect
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to Commission Rubenstein. He’s putting 2,000
outlets in business, maybe more and he’s telling
me his liquor control inspectors are going to be
functioning as they do right now. It can’'t
happen that way.

My police that I happen to represent, they do 14
stores a night, maybe 15 and they’re there from
the buying time. They don’t start at eight in
the morning. They start when kids are buying.
They start at four o’clock in the afternoon.

They continue until eight or nine o’clock at
night. They hit about 14, 15 outlets with the
one -- the shill buyer. They’'re going to have
24 outlets in that town that they have to go to.

You can’t get to everybody in time. So there’s
-- there’s factors here and if we’re only going
to sell below 30 percent and that’s a consistent
figure -- the industry in Connecticut right now
I'm told -- and this I get from wholesalers --
it’s about a 1.3 billion business. One point
three billion.

If everybody’s going to sell the spirit

component of that and that’s probably -- spirit
and wine is probably eight of that number they
tell me -- maybe 800 million dollars. If you

take that number and you reduce that by 30
percent that means you better multiply that 30
percent by the sales tax because that’s what
you’'re going down. That'’'s the real worker here.
It's not the excise tax.

The real producer of revenue here is the sales
tax because you sell a bottle for 30 dollars,
it’s six percent of 30. It’s not six percent of
ten. Where the -- where the taxes equal, where
it’s $1.14 actually the sales tax is a little
less than, $1.12 or whatever it is on excise tax
on spirits. And so you’'ve got to get to about
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15, 16 dollars before you equalize the two but
after that your -- your big worker on the high
end stuff is the sales tax. So --
SENATOR DOYLE: OQOkay. Let’s ask some questions now.
SENATOR KISSEL: I appreciate that answer.
SENATOR DOYLE: Let’s ask some questions here.
SENATOR KISSEL: I'd -- just let me, Mr. Chairman

with your indulgence. Again, I need to stress
that I think it’s a huge step today to wake up

and learn that the Package Store Association is

willing to make accommodations on Sunday sales.

That’s been the primary issue in my district for
years. On the other issues I share some of the

concerns that were expressed already.

I did not agree with what took place regarding
small pharmacies last year and I've seen the
impact that it’s had on them. I don’t want to

see the same impact on small mom and pop package

stores in Connecticut so I share that concern
with you.

And to the extent it’s possible to continue
negotiations with the administration and the

leadership of this committee and not only did I

agree with some of Representative Rebimbas’s
concerns, but Senator Witkos when he said that

when you look at cross border sales I think our
tax structure is a huge driver regarding that as

well. And Massachusetts citizens were allowed
to override their proposed sales tax increase.

And if my constituents were able to do that --

the bottom line is this, we need to be a nimble

State, we need to be a thoughtful State. We
should try to come up with ways, try to get

people from Massachusetts, Rhode Island and New

York to come to Connecticut to go shopping and

000219



82 February 28, 2012
law/cd/gbr  GENERAL LAW COMMITTEE 11:00 A.M.

if we could figure that one out I think we’d all
be better off. So thank you for coming this
afternoon. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

SENATOR DOYLE: Thank you. Representative Tallarita.

REP. TALLARITA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Thank you,
Mr. Hughes. I too was grateful when I woke up
this morning and saw that the Connecticut
Package Store Association wrote that --

CARROLL HUGHES: I started all your days so well
here.

REP. TALLARITA: You know it’s the first time in a
long time we’ve been on the same side so I do
welcome that. But one of the concerns that I’'ve
had is in talking with package stores over the
last three years but over these last few months
is they were being told that that was mandatory.

And that was one of the things that I was coming
in here today very upset with -- that they were
being told by the Connecticut Package Store
Association that being open on Sundays was
mandatory, that being open until 10 P.M. was

mandatory.

And I just wanted to -- to say that, you know, I
was really upset to hear that. But I'm glad
that, again, you’re on board with the -- with

the Sunday sales. 1I’'ve asked this question of
you before, I asked it last year. You were --
you had agreed to give us a membership list of
the people that you do have that are active
members of your Connecticut Package Store
Association. You -- you did not provide that to
us.

I don’'t see any written testimony here from you
today so I -- I would really like the
opportunity to see who your membership is. I
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know that we’ve heard numbers in the newspaper
that, you know, you were going to have 1,500
package stores here today. We don’t have 1,500
package stores in the State of Connecticut. So
that was a disturbing number to me. Also the
8,000 jobs.

I don’'t see where we'’'re going to lose jobs when
we’'re staying competitive, when we'’re trying to
keep dollars here in the State of Connecticut to
allow stores to be able to do more business, to
hire people on Sundays.

If they’'re going to be open one more day a week
obviously they’re either going to have to hire
someone or someone is going to have to work that
day. So I don’'t see us as losing jobs.

I see us as gaining jobs. And the other thing
that I did want to -- you had said that you had
talked to law enforcement and that law
enforcement was -- had been against this
proposal in the past. I've spoken with many
chiefs of police, many police officers and they
police these places seven days a week, 24 hours
a day.

So this has never been in my conversation with
police officers a policing issue. So that'’'s
just all I really wanted to say.

SENATOR DOYLE: Thank you. Representative Reed.

REP. REED: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Hello, Carroll.

CARROLL HUGHES: Hi.

REP. REED: The headline is Carroll Hughes for Sunday
Sales after all these years.

CARROLL HUGHES: I've got to read that.
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REP. REED: What can’t you live with? So I’'m hearing

gas stations, the small convenience stores and
also beer distribution feels like, you know,
that has a life of its own. So that’s over
here.

But what can you live with as we negotiate
because all of us want to be fair to the small
business owners but we also want to transition
the package store owners to where they’re going.

So that'’s part of letting them sell cheese and
crackers and to kind of open up, you know, the
panoply of products they can offer and be more
boutique like. What can you live with? How can
we make this work?

CARROLL HUGHES: I'm going to reiterate some of the

things I’'ve said to the Governor’s staff along -
- and quite honest I want to compliment the
Governor’s staff. He’'s put some of his best
people on the issue. We have a cordial
relationship. We talk all the time in the
hallways.

I see the Governor socially. He's pleasant. He
doesn’t put my picture up on the wall. So it’s
-- everything is going okay in that respect.
Okay. And -- and I do appreciate that. We’ve
gone through the bill by detail and then I get
surprised once in a while like -- and again the
wholesalers gave me a real start last Friday,
they agreed to some items which startled us a
little.

I think -- again I've said we approve discounts
as long as they’re straight up and we know what
they are there’s no three goods under the table.
And that whole section in there, they’re
extracting the whole section which says
inducements and other factors. You know what
inducements are?
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It's the grocery stores getting free labor in
their stores from root salesmen, from salesmen
for beer companies, for liquor companies that
they get this stuff. They’'re the ones that do
this. Every -- it’s the guy in the supermarket
and you go in and say hey, where are the peppers
and he says I don’'t work here.

Well there’s about 30 of them in there that
don’t work there. And that’s my concern. So I
agree to discounts but not all that other stuff
they’re extracting because some things are
beyond the reach and they lead to the
skullduggery of the people owning the facility
and especially in those food stores.

That’s where they do it the most. So we could
buy discounts if they’re out there, if
everybody'’s reachable. Last Friday it was 25
cases. I heard ten here today. First time I’'ve
heard that. And I don’t know what that’s under
the circumstances of. Then I’'ve heard that if
you get a discount then you determine the cost.

So the guy goes out, gets his discount, thinks
he’s going to make a little money and then what
you do, you mandate him to pass the discount
through where he’s already selling all of the
other items at cost. That’s my problem. Okay.
It’s -- it’s not how it’s going to be. 1It’s how
they out there are going to utilize it. 1It’s
always they.

You know, unintended consequence it was said --
it’s like I always say in this 'building what
happens is before the ink is dry in this
building on a bill somebody out there on the
street knows what they’re going to do with the
changes you’ve made. Sometimes surprising to me
even in industries that I represent. So I could
buy that.
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We -- we were buying the Sunday sales and the

holidays. That'’s a big deal. They’re giving up
58 days there. 1It’'s probably about 400 hours to
them. And if that they only went to -- that’s
like one position, 400 hours. Some of them have
eight employees for that day or five or six.
It’s huge.

I don’t know they make that cost up on the other
side. They may find ways of doing it. They may
post a seasonal schedule. They’re allowed to do
that. So I don’t think that’s necessary to do
anyway. We looked at the competitive nature. I
think the prices will be brought down by
discounting.

I think the cost needs -- I don’t want stores
selling below cost when there’s people out there
that can sustain that below cost for periods of
up to a year or whatever until the stores are
gone. The medallions is a mixed bag. Let me
explain what it is. Right now we have a permit.
I can’'t assign value to something. You can’t
assign value.

If I dumped a load of diamonds in this room and
I dumped truckloads all down the Berlin Turnpike
and all out through the east or west on Route
44, do you think diamonds would have any value
by the end of the day? If everybody had them?
Of course not.

I can’'t assign value. Value is based on supply
and demand and some other intrinsic
characteristics. So the more of the item there
is, the less value of it is from what the market
is.

Remember I said there’s double the permits in
Connecticut. We’ve got 2,600 people per permit.
Massachusetts is 68. Around the country it’s
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somewhere around five or six thousand. And

these are people -- kids, these are people who
don’t drink, these are -- you know, some of
them, maybe a third are adults that actually
drink.

So the medallion is going to be sold. What
cruelty is this? They turn in a permit so the
guy is going out of business and all of a sudden
he loses the ability to even survive. I turn in
20 permits I tell him -- sell them to 20 suckers
who are going to go out and further destroy the
marketplace. So that has to be changed. But it
has value.

The concept is in the right place it’s just we

have to look at it. That won’t have value my

guess is for five, or six or seven, maybe ten |
years just because of what I said in terms of

supply and demand.

REP. REED: Okay one quick follow up.
CARROLL HUGHES: Yeah.

REP. REED: So if the medallions were to have value -
- because I mean the thinking is if the package
store owners have medallions --

CARROLL HUGHES: Yes. Permits and medallions.

REP. REED: -- it has value intrinsically. Somebody
else can’'t open up a package store unless they
buy your medallion. They have to have a
medallion -- a ticket to ride is a medallion.
Okay. So could you -- could you live with four
medallions instead of six?

CARROLL HUGHES: You know what, we’ve thought about
that and if you went in gradually I suppose
there are people in this room, package stores
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right here who would buy another one. Believe
it or not I think they would.

They might buy in two years from now or so, they
might buy another one. I think you'’re reaching
the limits of where it starts to be dominated at
that point. Remember now we’'re -- I don’t want
the food stores in business with package stores.

We’'re really giving the boxes another two
permits. You know what, the way they’re doing
it now I could live with that. Do you really
think I’'d be in here saying that it’s good, that
the box stores are better than the food stores?
And there’s a reason for that. Everybody goes
to a food store. Not everybody goes to a
package store.

Everybody goes to a gasoline station. Not
everybody goes to a package store. So the
locations and the traffic patterns move
dramatically to other locations and all these
twixes and tweens come -- come together at the
same time.

So it’s not helping me that you’re putting new
competitors in business. And I'm saying this,
the food stores want to go out and they want to
do the -- the way predecessors have done it,
they can do that. And they probably are going
to sell a less -- they’re going to sell at cost.
My people are not going to be able to sell at
cost.

But some stores are going to survive like some
small inner city stores, they can never buy
discounts. Their items are never going to be
discounted; half pints, pints, you know, quarts
of this. They have traffic patterns and they
have sales that they don’t have to compete with
anyone.
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REP.

In fact where most of the permits have decreased
over the years, it’s all in the central cities.
Bridgeport has 20, New Haven has 15 available,
Waterbury has -- those stores are probably safer
than my stores in West Hartford. That -- I hope
the ones Mr. Rubenstein goes to.

REED: Thank you, Carroll, very much. Thank
you, Mr. Chairman.

CARROLL HUGHES: Thank you.

SENATOR DOYLE: Thank you. I just have a quick

question to follow up on the medallions. If --
if the bill was crafted, you know,
hypothetically to what you supported, you know,
in itself could you support the concept of
medallions?

CARROLL HUGHES: Yes.

SENATOR DOYLE: Yeah. Okay. Thank you. Any other

REP.

questions? Any other colleagues?
Representative Taborsak.

TABORSAK: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. How you
doing, Carroll?

CARROLL HUGHES: Fine, thank you.

REP.

TABORSAK: Can you tell us a little bit about

just where we rank as far as with other states
in our spirit sales, wine sales and beer sales
if you know.

CARROLL HUGHES: Yeah. I will. I can give you the

ones you have to know here all the time and that
is Massachusetts. I think there it’s about 2.6
we're at about 2.3 or 2.4 and the difference
between that believe me -- believe me, is not
570 million dollars. Our best estimates are
that we’re probably with the two major stores,
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REP.

the ones the Governor visits and I agree with
him 100 percent.

Thirty five percent of the cars that are in that
parking lot are Connecticut vehicles. And I've
said this before, they’'re in there seven days a
week. They’re in those stores.

TABORSAK: Where are we per capita as far as --
where do we rank? I mean do you have those
ranks? I mean --

CARROLL HUGHES: We’re way above per capita. We’'re

REP.

huge.

TABORSAK: Are we top -- are we top ten in wine
and spirits?

CARROLL HUGHES: I think we’re up in the top 12 or

15. Nobody is beyond New Hampshire. New
Hampshire is over four -- this is spirits now
I'm talking about. You know, nobody really
rates beer as much as they do spirits because
it’s the highest priced item. Wine is difficult
because of the variations in the tax. Other
than New Hampshire I think Connecticut ranks in
the top ten or 12.

What’s going to happen here if this goes
through, when you do discounts -- when you
discounts and discounts become the norm -- the
store in Newington I was talking about has
15,000 SKUs that store will have to reduce to
where a Wal-Mart or a BJ’s. BJ’s has about 200
SKUs in that store. And let’s put it this way,
there’s 15 brands of spirits that everybody buys
across the country. 1It’s 80 percent of the
market.

You know it’s all the ones you know. It’s all
the vodkas right up on top. It goes down into
rums, Captain Morgan. It goes into Jack
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Daniels. You know the ones. Everybody drinks
to a certain extent. And those are the top 15
brands in the -- in any state. They’'re all
across the country except maybe the variations
in certain areas where bourbon is dominate.

But those are the items that are in those
stores. We'’ll have to reduce. We have some
stores that have 20 vodkas in store. That’ll
get down to about three or four because you
can’'t buy a case of everything. So if you're
going to compete you have to compete to --
you’ll have people say I don’'t have that.

Some day when all this is over and it gets down
to where there’s probably 150, 200 stores in
Connecticut if that happens and it will someday
potentially, you’ll probably have people come
back to put massive brands in there because
they’ll be so unique what you knew your children
won’t see but then they’ll go into a store and
say hey, I saw this great store. He’s got
everything. We got everything now.

We will not have everything after this system
goes into effect. And it’s just a conflict.

I'm not complaining. I’'m just saying that’s
what they all tell me is going to happen under a
system where you have to offer certain items and
we’'re not going have boutique boxes in lots of
places.

REP. TABORSAK: Carroll, just a couple other
questions. A few follow ups. You mentioned and
I was trying to get an understanding of how many
-- if you heard my conversation with the prior

} speaker, how many box stores or grocery --

CARROLL HUGHES: Gas stations.
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REP. TABORSAK: and grocery stores currently have
package store permits? Do you have any sense
statewide how many do?

CARROLL HUGHES: I can only tell you one thing and
you can make the deduction. 1I’1l1l give you two
facts and those are the only things I have.
Every box store in Connecticut, Costco, BJ's,
Sam’s, the major ones, okay, others may go into
the business here but -- all those have two
permits. Costco has one in Enfield, they have
one down in Orange.

BJ’'s has one in Waterford, they have one in
Fairfield I believe that sells alcohol. And
Costco -- or excuse me, Sam’s has one in Berlin
and I think the other one is down in Milford.
That'’'s where their stores are.

If you want to look at the model go down there
and look at it. Now the gasoline stations,
nobody before this bill was put together would
be able if they sell gasoline, they sell heavily
cigarettes or heavily lottery tickets and
sometimes all three of those are right together,
at least two and sometimes three.

So they increase the volume of the nongrocery
items and they displace the groceries being over
51 percent. So the fiscal note and this is a
good one. It’s the first time I’'ve ever agreed
with the fiscal note in -- in years with -- even
on Sunday sales. The fiscal note that came out
on that bill you had last year that you put out
of the committee for the gasoline stations, that
one which would put beer in those stations, they
estimated that there would be 1,600 of them that
would qualify for that bill. That was last
year. It’s in the fiscal note.

You can look it up. I’ve got the bill number.
I'll give it to you. They also said that those
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would be -- there would be a ten percent

increase in beer sales statewide if the gas

stations got the -- got the beer. I don’t doubt

that because it’s basically something you buy.
It’s single cans, single bottles primarily.

You don’t go there to stock your home bar. You
know, you park the car, you let it run, your gas
is on whatever it is and you go in and get your
cans. You get your road soda we call them. So |
I think there’'s -- there’s things here that will

increase. That increases business. I don't

think on the spirit side.

It may bring -- if it went down to almost -- you

know, prices of Massachusetts or close that you |
would probably have some people that would come
back here. And we’re talking about what |
Massachusetts does. Those two stores -- the two }
stores the Governor visits -- and I've been in |
those two stores numerous times going up there. |

They probably do -- we’re thinking somewhere
around -- one probably does about 30-- 30 to 40
million dollars, Yankee Spirits. That’s what
I'm told from inside sources. And there’'s
somebody here today speaking that may give even
more accurate information there.

The one in West Springfield, I know there’s some
legislators here in the panel, it’s their
favorite store. And the next time the Governor
takes me, you know, I’1l1l buy wine and cheese and
we can -- and we can both have it in the car on
the way back because I can’t take him.

He's got to take me otherwise it’1l1l be a
violation. So -- and those stores are great
stores. I don’'t know if we’re going to look
like that store. You asked me before about the
things you can sell in the store. You asked
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REP.

twice. I never answered that.

We know that -- one thing, that store, those
other items will never replace what you lose on
the alcohol product. 1It’s nice. We should have
been in here years ago but thanks to the
Governor for doing this and -- but we should
have been doing this.

The only thing I’'ve ever -- really the only item
I've ever brought in here it should be all
tobacco products in the bill because they always
want cigars. They know cigars sell. It doesn’'t
take up a lot of room. They wouldn’'t know what
to do with cheese. These guys -- these guys
don’t know their customers on other things.

They don’t know their cultural habits. They
don’'t know what they do.

They don’t know what to put in there that they
would buy. They’'re peanuts -- peanuts and
cracker jacks. I don’t know what they’re into
but nobody knows. So that one has a long time
to go before it’s settled into where it'’s
beneficial other than if you just had cigars
which is all tobacco products. They just have
cigarettes now. So that answers your question?

TABORSAK: Yes. Thank you. Are there any other
questions? Thank you.

CARROLL HUGHES: Okay. Thank you.

REP.

REP.

TABORSAK: Next up we have Representative Jutila
followed by Jay Hibbard followed by
Representative Miller.

JUTILA: Good afternoon. I'm for the record
Representative Ed Jutila from the 37 and I have
alongside me Paul Formica, the First Selectman
of the Town of East Lyme. And we'’re here to
speak in support of H.B.5058, AN ACT CONCERNING
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if we need further information we’ll reach out
to Representative Jutila to get that from you.
Thank you. Are there any other questions?
Thank you.

PAUL FORMICA: Thank you for your time.

REP. JUTILA: Thank you.

REP. TABORSAK: We have next Jay Hibbard followed by

Representative Miller followed by Gary Davis.
Hi. How are you?

JAY HIBBARD: Good morning or now afternoon. It

started out as morning. My name is Jay Hibbard,
I represent the Distilled Spirits Council of the
United States. We represent the world’s leading
makers and marketers of distilled spirits. I
have submitted written testimony but I’'d like to
take just a moment to summarize the reasons we
support the changes contained in H.B. 5021.

As far as Sunday sales I think we’ve heard it’s
the second busiest day of the week and allowing
the sale of beverage alcohol on Sundays gives
adults and consumers the choice and convenience
of shopping when they would like to shop. 1In
every estimate that’s been calculated the
benefit to the State of Connecticut would be
somewhere in the range of seven and a half to
eight million dollars which is consistent with
what has taken place in all 15 states that have
adopted Sunday sales since 2002.

The experience of these states shows without
doubt that Sunday sales does not spread current
sales over more days nor has any state seen a
wholesale change in the number of package stores
and liquor stores in their state. There is
simply no reason that Connecticut would be any
different. As was noted earlier Sunday sales
does not require any retailer to open on Sunday
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it simply gives them the right and the
flexibility whether or not to open. Sunday
sales does, can and will mean more revenue and
job security for those hard working stores
employees that wish to be open.

As far as Sunday sales and the issues of
underage purchases or drunk driving there is no
statistical difference in states that allow
Sunday sales compared to those that do not. As
far as the other provisions in the bill,
expanding hours and days again, no mandate. If
a private business wishes to be open an extra
hour or closed an hour earlier that is up to
them.

If they wish to be opened on Sunday and closed
on Tuesday again up to them. The bill’s
provisions dealing with quantity discounts,

price posting and the elimination of the minimum

markup are changes that will allow retailers to
acquire and sell product at a more competitive
price, a price they determine rather than one
that is government mandated.

These changes alone would make Connecticut more
competitive with its surrounding states and

provide better pricing for consumers of beverage

alcohol. The other changes including allowing
package stores to sell complimentary goods,
issuance of a medallion, increasing the store
limit from two to six or two to nine, whatever
is currently being proposed will foster
entrepreneurship.

It will allow enterprising business owners to
expand. It will encourage job and business
growth and promote increased competition and
flexibility among store owners. As you may be
aware Massachusetts recently adopted an
expansion in its licensing scheme from three to
nine.
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And a number of other states are contemplating
similar changes in license caps including
Maryland, New Jersey, Delaware, South Carolina,
and Georgia. Connecticut has some very
restrictive anticonsumer alcohol laws in the
country. States across the country have been
taking steps to modernize their beverage alcohol
laws but Connecticut remains saddled with
antiquated laws that ultimately hurt the
consumer.

By allowing the sale of beverage alcohol on
Sunday and adopting the other changes that H.B.
5021, Connecticut’s retailers will be free to
offer better prices, provide more consumer
convenience and recapture beverage alcohol
business that is currently leaving the State.

Poll after poll supports these changes and we
would encourage you to adopt them as they’ve
been presented in Governor’s bill -- excuse me,
_House Bill 5021. Thank you.

REP. TABORSAK: Thank you for your testimony, Mr.
Hibbard. Are there any questions for Mr.
Hibbard? Senator Musto first.

SENATOR MUSTO: Hi. Good afternoon, Mr. Hibbard.

JAY HIBBARD: Hi. Thank you.

SENATOR MUSTO: You talked a lot about how this is
going to affect retailers but you’re
representing the distributors, correct?

JAY HIBBARD: No. Actually we the suppliers.

SENATOR MUSTO: Suppliers.

JAY HIBBARD: We are the folks who manufacture.
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SENATOR MUSTO: Okay. What does your industry have
to gain or lose from this bill?

JAY HIBBARD: Well I think everyone in this proposal
has -- what they have to gain is the opportunity
for expanding their ability to sell on the
hours, the days, the times and at a
nongovernment mandated price that they so

choose.

SENATOR MUSTO: I’'m sorry. What -- how does the
government mandate the price that you guys
trend?

JAY HIBBARD: Well they don’t mandate what we charge.
It falls through the distribution system and the
mark up system.

SENATOR MUSTO: How does the government mandate the
hours that you guys work?

JAY HIBBARD: They do not mandate the hours other
than saying you cannot be open on Sundays that
is a very specific restriction in Connecticut
statute.

SENATOR MUSTO: I’'m sorry. That'’s retailers.

JAY HIBBARD: Yes. If the stores aren’t open there
is no one there for us to be interacting with in
terms -- if you’'re referring specifically to how
to our members interact with the retailers on a
Sunday, obviously they do not.

SENATOR MUSTO: I’'m just trying to figure out what
your interest other than, you know, obviously
this bill as I’'ve talked about before with the
Commissioner really deals mostly with retailers
at least as far as I can tell. I was wondering
what government restrictions are going to be
lifted from your constituency.
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JAY HIBBARD: Well our ultimate customer is the
retail customer and that’s the -- the end
product of these changes is that this is more
convenient for that retail customer, for them to
purchase when and how they would like to do
that.

SENATOR MUSTO: Okay. But again, I mean your
business -- I'm not talking about your retail
customers or -- your business, the restrictions
on your business. We understand Sunday sales
which is as we’ve been talking about earlier
seems to almost be a dead issue at this point.

You know other than that which -- which may or
may not even be an issue for your businesses,
you know, you’d just sell more liquor I guess is
your -- is your thought. What does this bill do
to relieve restrictions on companies you are
representing today?

JAY HIBBARD: This bill does not specifically address
anything that we are doing in terms of business
in Connecticut other than make it easier and
more convenient for consumers to purchase our
products.

SENATOR MUSTO: Thank you.

REP. TABORSAK: You're welcome. Representative
Tallarita.

REP. TALLARITA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Mr.
Hibbard, just a -- a quick question. Thank you
for listing your member companies that you
represent here in your testimony. One question
that I have about Diageo in Norwalk based
company. How many do they employ there? Do you
know?

JAY HIBBARD: I believe their employment base is 700
in Norwalk.
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TALLARITA: Seven hundred in Norwalk. 2And those
are most likely Connecticut residents that are
employed there?

HIBBARD: I would say, you know, vast majority
are certainly Connecticut residents.
Absolutely.

TALLARITA: BAnd do you believe that if House
Bill 5021 was enacted do you believe could
possibly create more jobs at Diageo?

HIBBARD: I think that’s entirely possible. As
any business grows and sales increase and that
is again what’s happened in every state that has
made similar changes you can’t service the same
customer base with the same number of people so
there’s the demand job demand growth? The
answer 1is yes.

TALLARITA: Thank you.

TABORSAK: Any further questions?
Representative Rebimbas.

REBIMBAS: Good afternoon. I'm actually sifting
through here looking for your testimony because
I wanted to see the list of clients but
unfortunately can’t locate it at this moment.
Thank you. What are your -- how many
manufacturers do you represent in Connecticut?

HIBBARD: Diageo is the only manufacturer with
headquarters in Connecticut. The rest of them
are headquartered elsewhere in the United
States.

REBIMBAS: And you're testifying here today on
behalf of your clients including those that are
outside of the State of Connecticut. 1Is that
correct?
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JAY HIBBARD: That is correct.

REP. REBIMBAS: Okay. I won’'t ask any questions
regarding the actual retailers because I know
that you don’t represent them and you probably
wouldn’t have the knowledge necessary to know
the impact of this proposed bill on the
retailers so thank you for your testimony.

JAY HIBBARD: Thank you.

SENATOR DOYLE: Are there any further questions?
Please keep the chatter down in respect of the
process. Are there any other questions? It
looks like there aren’t. Thank you, Mr.
Hibbard.

JAY HIBBARD: Great. Thank you.

REP. TABORSAK: We have Representative Miller who'’s
still here and -- followed by Gary Davis
followed by Representative Urban.

REP. MILLER: Good afternoon members of the general
law committee. Thank you for allowing me the
opportunity to comment on House Bill number
5058, AN ACT CONCERNING FIRST SELECTMEN AND
LIQUOR PERMITS.

As you know this law was passed in 1933 upon the
repeal of federal prohibition and perhaps it was
in midst of fear that chief elected officials
would somehow exert undue influence if they also
owned a liquor license. It was curiously
limited to first selectmen and did not include
other elected officials.

The law currently would prohibit the holder of
liquor license to run for the first selectman
position which of course is the chief elected
official of a number of Connecticut
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conscientious person such as First Selectman
Formica might choose to note for the record that
perhaps there is an appearance of a conflict
here because as you know he would also hold a
liquor license.

So perhaps he could recuse himself from that and
allow the other members of the board of
selectmen to make that choice. And I also want
to mention that there’s -- we do have a system
of checks and balances of course and that is the
voters.

If for whatever reason any voter would ever have
any reservation about voting for someone because
they had a liquor license, they’re free to have
that reservation and to not vote accordingly
because of that.

TABORSAK: Any further questions? Thank you,
Representative. Next up we have Gary Davis
followed by Representative Urban followed by
Mark Espinoza.

DAVIS: Good afternoon. My name’s Gary Davis.
I'm the President of Davis IGA Incorporated in
the Town of Kent, a company founded by my
parents in 1974. My business is a small family
owned independent supermarket located in the
northwest corner of the State.

I am here today in support of H.B. 5021. The
igssue of Sunday beer sales are of great
importance to our business as the Town of Kent
is located approximately five minutes from the
New York State border. New York has allowed
retail Sunday sales of beer for years.
Connecticut has not. There have been many
occasions over our 38 years in business where
I've had to explain to a customer on a Sunday
direction to New York State to find the nearest
store that sells beer.
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It would be naive for me to think when I send
these customers out of my store to purchase beer
in a bordering state that beer is the only item
they are purchasing. Can anyone afford a lost
sale of any kind in this economy? Can the State
of Connecticut afford the lost tax revenue?

I think all business owners and State
legislators can answer no to that question.
Connecticut is one of only two states in the
country that does not allow retail alcohol sales
on Sunday. The end of Connecticut blue laws is
long overdue. Connecticut’s want -- customers
want the convenience to purchase all of the
products we sell seven days a week not six.

We in the grocery industry choose to be open
seven days a week. Liquor store owners would
have the same choice. Thank you for having me
here today.

TABORSAK: Thank you for your testimony. Are
there any questions? Just a question or two to
get a little bit better understanding. Your
family -- you’'re a family owned IGA up in Kent,
Connecticut. 1Is that correct?

GARY DAVIS: Yes.

SENATOR DOYLE: And I believe you said the market --

your family’s been in the business since 1974.
Is that correct?

GARY DAVIS: Yes.

REP. TABORSAK: And have you had a grocery store beer

permit since that time?

GARY DAVIS: Since we started. Yes.
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REP. TABORSAK: Since.you started. And do you ever
recall looking into the prospect of obtaining a
package store permit rather than beer -- beer
permit? Is that ever something --

GARY DAVIS: (Inaudible.)

REP. TABORSAK: Okay. So that’s not a -- not
something that your family every considered.

GARY DAVIS: No we were in the food industry and that
was stressful enough.

REP. TABORSAK: So is it fair to say that your family
isn’'t interested or your business isn’t
interested in getting into the sale of liquor.
Is that correct.

GARY DAVIS: We are not.

REP. TABORSAK: So you're basically here promoting or
in favor of Sunday sales. Is that correct?

GARY DAVIS: Yes.

REP. TABORSAK: Great. Thank you.

GARY DAVIS: Thank you.

REP. TABORSAK: I appreciate your testimony.
Representative Urban followed by Mark Espinoza.
Is Representative Urban here? There she is.

REP. URBAN: Good afternoon.

REP. TABORSAK: Good afternoon.

REP. URBAN: For the record I am Diana Urban. I

represent the 43 district. And I'm here to
testify on House Bill 5021. Although I have to
say that Carroll Hughes did give you a great
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economic picture of what’s happening there so
I'm not going to go into extreme detail.

I do represent a border district. We share a
downtown with Westerly, Rhode Island and
Pawcatuck so I have heard from both sides of
this issue specifically people who want the
convenience of being able to shop in liquor
stores on Sunday and then my small businesses
who are telling me in no uncertain terms that
this is going to force them out of business.

I have asked repeatedly for an academic study on
the elasticity of demand on Sunday sales. And
notwithstanding what you’ve heard from others I
have yet to see an academic study and we all
know that to quote Will Rogers there are lies,
damn lies and statistics. So one can never tell
what the information that you’re receiving is
whether it’s been done in an academic manner
looking for the actual elasticity of demand
figures.

However realizing from Carroll Hughes that there
has been compromise know I am happy to see that
they are going to go forward with that
compromise it appears. However I'd still really
like to see the numbers myself. And I know OFA
has some numbers. They’'ve yet to share them
with me and I'm looking forward to sharing those
numbers with them.

On the other side of the equation I am concerned
about the consolidation that could result from
other aspects of this bill. And that
consolidation would in essence really force our
small ones out of business. And I have a
particular about our small businesses and this
is from a little bit different perspective
because I know in my town they are amazing
supporters of our microbreweries and our
vineyards in Connecticut.
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When you go into one of my small package stores
in Stonington or North Stonington you find an
array of the microbrewery and the vineyards from
our local areas in great -- great supply. And I
am afraid and that has been brought up I think
to you guys several times here that we’re going
to lose that diversity and variety if we go down
the road that this -- in this particular bill.

So I guess I would say that I think people
recognize here that I am one of your data people
and I am a results based accountability person
so if we were to go forward with the breadth and
depth of this bill I would feel very much more
comfortable if I knew it was data based and I
knew what the result was that we were trying to
achieve and I knew that we were going to get to
that result. Right now as I -- as I read the
bill I'm not there. Thank you. And I'm glad to
answer any questions.

TABORSAK: Thank you, Representative. Are there
any questions for Representative Urban? Thank
you for your testimony.

URBAN: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

TABORSAK: We’ve got Mark Espinoza followed by
Senator Kelly followed by Tim Devanney. Is
there a Mark Espinoza here? All right. We’'re
going pass Mr. Espinoza and come back to him if
he comes back into the room. 1Is there a Senator
Kelly here? Okay. Good afternoon.

SENATOR KELLY: Good afternoon, Chairman Taborsak,

ranking members Witkos and Rebimbas, members of
the general law committee. My name is Kevin
Kelly. I am the State Senator from the towns of
Monroe, Shelton, Seymour and Stratford. We’'re
here in support of section four of House Bill

5021,
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And I’'ve also brought with me today Mayor John
Harkins of the Town of Stratford together with
Brad Hittle and Peter Doring who are principles
in Two Roads Brewery. 1I’'d like to turn this
over to Mayor Harkins to speak.

MAYOR JOHN HARKINS: Thank you, Senator Kelly. I did
provide testimony which I hope is before you
right now. Let me just start out by saying
thanks for having us here today, Chairman
Taborsak, ranking members Witkos and Rebimbas.
Just for the record my name is Mayor John
Harkins from the Town of Stratford and I’'m here
today to speak in favor of section four of H.B.
5021.

The Two Roads Brewing Company intends to invest
18 million dollars to construct a brewery in
Connecticut where it intends on manufacturing
craft beer. Within the first year of operation
they will employ 15 people adding up to
approximately 70 jobs within eight years. Two
Roads Brewing projects about 200 to 300 people
per week will visit the brewery that will create
a new flow of tourism to the area.

In order for Two Roads Brewery to effectively
implement their business plan they are seeking a
legislative change to existing State statutes.
Because of the larger scale of the Two Roads
Brewery and the amount of investment involved it
is critical that Two Roads Brewery by launching
several beer brands for sale within Connecticut
and for interstate commerce and to build a loyal
consumer base from patrons visiting the
brewery’s tasting room as part of a unique
brewery experience.

The legislative issue facing Two Roads Brewery
is that currently there is no single permit or
even a combination of permits that can be issued



114

February 28, 2012

law/cd/gbr GENERAL LAW COMMITTEE 11:00 A.M.

REP.

to Two Roads Brewery by the Connecticut Division
of Liquor Control that would allow Two Roads to
fully pursue its business plan of selling its
craft beer brands to wholesalers located in
Connecticut and elsewhere, producing beer brewed
under contact -- under contract and selling it
back to brewery clients both in state and out of
state, offering visitors tours of the brewery
along with a fresh sampler product, selling a
glass of craft beer to patrons to enjoy while in
a brewery atmosphere and selling beer by the
package to customers to share and enjoy at home
with family and friends.

This legislative change in section four of H.B.
5021 would enable a brewery such as Two Roads

Brew1ng Company to operate as a fully

functioning brewery with the privileges to make
commercial sales to wholesalers both in state
and out of state, sell craft beer produced under
contract and place it into interstate commerce,
engage consumers interested in the craft brewing
industry with tours of the brewery along with
providing fresh samples of the product and make
commercial sales to visitors for consumption on
or away from the brewery.

Passage of this bill would allow a commercial
brewery more opportunities for success. I ask
the committee members to support this section of
the bill. Thank you.

TABORSAK: Okay Thank you both for your
testimony. Are there any questions? Senator
Kissel.

SENATOR KISSEL: I just want to say hi to Mayor

Harkins. I have to run by you in the hallway
but it’s great to see you back in the building
again.

MAYOR JOHN HARKINS: Thank you, Senator.
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SENATOR KISSEL: Senator, good to see you as well.

SENATOR KELLY: It’'s good to be here. Just so you
know as I'm looking at the members in the
committee I'‘m thinking what kind of beers might
go with their names and I'm looking at a Witkos
wheat, Taborsak tan, Baram might be a bock,
Bacchiochi I don’t know. Could be a bock also
for you.

And Kissel I don’t know maybe it’ll be -- we’'ll
get to think of something with a K but this --
you know we have a great opportunity here in the
Stratford area and Bridgeport area for a brewery
to come into play. The business plan makes
sense and I hope that you really support this
section of the bill. Thank you, Senator Kissel
for your comment.

REP. TABORSAK: Any other questions for the Mayor or
the Senator. If not, thank you for your
testimony.

SENATOR KELLY: Thank you, Representative Taborsak.

REP. TABORSAK: We're going to try to see if Mark
Espinoza has returned. He has not. Okay.
We’re going to move down on the public list then
to Tim Devanney. Is Mr. Devanney here? Mr.
Devanney followed by Senator Cassano. Is Mr.
Devanney here? No we don’t see -- Mr. Devanney,
you’'re up. Good afternoon.

TIMOTHY DEVANNEY: That makes it a little bit easier. ngliiﬁil_
Good afternoon again. My name is Tim Devanney.
I am President of four of five Highland Park
Markets. My sister and brother in law own the
fifth. I come before you -- I came before you
last year to ask you to consider Sunday sales of
ligquor in Connecticut. At that time there were
three states living in the dark ages.
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Today there are only two. Highland Park Market
celebrated their 125 year last year in business.
We have been around so long due to three major
reasons, number one is the quality of our
products, two is the' services that we provide
our customers and number three is listening to
our customers. We have been asked many times by
our customers do you think we can -- we will
ever be able to buy beer on Sundays.

Over four stores we have only one grocery beer
permit. We have common walls with two package
and a wooden outside canopy to another. We
respect our neighbors and as a result have not
applied to the State at those locations. We
also respect the Governor’s program which will
make huge changes to the liquor laws in
Connecticut.

I really would be happy just being able to
satisfy my customers looking to buy beer on
Superbowl Sunday and other holidays. Thank you
very much for your time.

TABORSAK: Thank you for your testimony.
Senator Kissel.

SENATOR KISSEL: Thank you very much. First of all,

are you the President of a Highland Park in
Suffield?

TIMOTHY DEVANNEY: Yes I am.

SENATOR KISSEL: Well first of all thank you for

being a great corporate citizen. I know that
over the holidays I did some volunteer work at
Loaves and Fishes in Enfield with Mary and Chris
Eliason and a slew of other great volunteers.
And what amazed is even though Loaves and Fishes
is located in Enfield they said that one of
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their guardian angels was Highland Park Market
Suffield.

So to the extent you’re thinking of your
brothers and sisters across the river, I really
appreciate that. That was really great.

TIMOTHY DEVANNEY: That’s how you last 125 years in
this business.

SENATOR KISSEL: Well good job. I think I heard
something about your advocacy for Sunday sales
on the radio not too long ago. I don’‘t know if
it was --

TIMOTHY DEVANNEY: Right down the way.

SENATOR KISSEL: And thank you for coming and
testifying but again thank you for being such a
good corporate citizen.

TIMOTHY DEVANNEY: Thank you.

REP. TABORSAK: Thank you, Senator. Are there any
other questions? Thank you for your testimony.

TIMOTHY DEVANNEY: Thank you.

REP. TABORSAK: Senator Cassano. Is Senator Cassano
here? Good afternoon. Senator can you hit --
thank you.

SENATOR CASSANO: Mr. Chairman, ranking members, . e; DL
members of the committee, thank you for the
opportunity to testify today. Last year at this
time, President’s Day weekend I went to 26
different package stores in the four towns and
cities in my district. And the overwhelming
vote was 26 to nothing against Sunday openings.

A lot has happened in a year. Going to these
stores I saw an aspect that most of us don’'t
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see. I met family members. I met their kids.

I met their parents. 1In many of these smaller
stores that’s how they run a business. Many of
these people have invested life savings in
expanding their businesses, sweat equity and so
on. They have been in effect dominated by their
businesses and they are concerned today.

A year makes a big difference. Sunday openings
now looks like it’s going to happen. Since
prohibition was passed we have passed a variety
of laws during that period of time all single
piece legislation which we tend to do. The
request before us now is to look at the entire
system. How can we evaluate the liquor industry
and all the components that it -- can we get all
the players at the table to make that evaluation
and come up with a long term program that makes
sense.

One thing not included on the list as an example
-- going to be there someday, wine in grocery
stores. Let’s look at everything. Let’s not
try and get a solution and then come back two
years later and say well what about this or what
about that. Many times we have a bill before us
-- this is just another bill because we have
hundreds and sometimes thousands of bills.

For the people that own these stores it’s much
more than a bill. It’s an investment. It’s an
investment in their future. 1It’'s an investment
in their life, family holdings and so on. We
need to create a taskforce. Not a taskforce
that’'s a stall. We see those all the time.

But a taskforce that does something positive,
that looks at the entire system, that comes up
with a proposal that’s going to be long term and
makes sense for the State of Connecticut for all
of the players.
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We need to evaluate the permit process, the
discounting and so on, the 2,500 base. One of
the things that I couldn’'t move on is the
convenience stores. I don’'t know how we -- in
fact from 2009 to 2010 Connecticut was number
one and led the nation in the increase of
automobile deaths. We went from 223 to 319 in
one -- one year. Highest in the nation.

Do we want to really get that ride home six buck
pack of beer or whatever it might be when we get
our gas? It doesn’t make sense. It's
inconsistent with the public safety members that
we have and public safety has to be a part of
this consideration. The medallion issue is a
separate issue. It has to be dealt with in that
same package.

I don't know why we can’t have a process where
if you’re going to have medallions, if we’re
going to sell them that you have to be
headquartered in Connecticut. Why not. I don’'t
-- I'm fearful for the Tim Devanney'’s, the
grocery stores and so on if Wal-Mart, Target,
BJ’'s all of these control these kinds of permits
they’'re going to squeeze out the smaller stores.

There will be no real life in those smaller
stores. That’s scary. If those permits are
headquartered -- those companies have to be
headquartered here in Connecticut we keep that
here in Connecticut.

Those are the kinds of things I would hope that
we would see here that the taskforce would look
at, that would come back in a year, that
everybody would be a part of the process of
putting together what’s going to be done and
then we have something that’s going to last for
years that makes sense for everyone. Thank you.
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REP. TABORSAK: Thank you, Senator, for your
testimony. Are there any questions for the
Senator? Thank you. Lori Esernia. Sorry if I
mispronounced your name. Followed by
Representative Mary Fritz, followed by Barbara
Koren.

LORI ESERNIA: Good afternoon. Representative
Taborsak and distinguished members of the
general law committee, my name is Lori Esernia
and I'm here to speak in support of House Bill
5021. I became interested in this 1ssue in 2006

“when I moved here from California where there
are no blue laws and wine is available in
grocery stores.

I was struck by the fact that Connecticut is one
of only two states in the country where
consumers can’t purchase alcohol on Sundays. I
am a consumer. In all honesty I'm not a
drinker. I like my occasional glass of wine but
to me this is about an outdated law that makes
no sense in the times we live in today. As a
consumer I don’'t understand why Connecticut
prevents people from buying a particular product
on one of the busiest shopping days of the week.
That simply doesn’t make sense.

For example we don’t tell consumers that they
can’t buy toothpaste on Thursdays. Consumers
need choice and convenience. I know I'm not
alone in thinking it is time to modernize the
State’s liquor laws. Two thirds of Connecticut
residents also think it’s time for this outdated
law to go.

Right now Connecticut consumers are voting with
their money. They are spending their shopping
dollars in New York, Massachusetts and Rhode
Island. Our local businesses lose as a result.
That also doesn’t make sense. I respectfully
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urge you to vote in favor of House Bill 5021.
Thank you for your consideration.

REP. TABORSAK: Thank you for your testimony. Are
there any questions? Representative Rebimbas.

REP. REBIMBAS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Good
afternoon. Just wanted to clarify, are you in
support of the entire bill or just allowing
sales of alcohol on Sunday?

LORI ESERNIA: The entire bill.

REP. REBIMBAS: Okay. And have you had an
opportunity to speak to any of the business
owners regarding the entire bill.

LORI ESERNIA: I have to had a chance to talk the
business owners. No.

REP. REBIMBAS: Okay. Thank you for coming. Thank
you for testifying.

LORI ESERNIA: Thank you.

REP. TABORSAK: Any further questions? If not, thank
you for your testimony.

LORI ESERNIA: Thank you.

REP. TABORSAK: Please keep the background noise
down. Representative Fritz. That wasn’t
directed at you, Representative.

REP. FRITZ: Good afternoon, Representative Taborsak, J*ﬁlélﬂll—
Senator Witkos and honorable members of the
general law committee, one of my very favorite
committees. I wasn’'t going to read my testimony
but I'm afraid if I don’t I’'ll leave something
out. But I really would like to advocate that
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you look at my testimony and look at the charts
at the back of my testimony.

It shows the taxes and the costs of alcohol,
beer and wine in our neighboring states because
I think it’s very insightful and very -- it will
educate us all. 1It’'s not quite what
Commissioner Rubenstein said. Anyway, getting
back to the business of testifying.

I appear before you today to address some of the
issues in the Governor’s Bill 5021. For the
record I am State Representative Mary Fritz of
90 district. I represent parts of Cheshire and
Wallingford.

As you know this proposed legislation has raised
quite a storm throughout our State. In my
district it has reached hurricane proportions.
Unfortunately misrepresentation has taken place
in many venues from the television stories to
the huge ad in the Hartford Courant as recently
as Sunday. The whole proposal for the general
public has been boiled down to two issues,
Sunday sales and getting rid of the blue laws.

These topics are all that is --are discussed and
preached about this bill. For me it’s a
different story. I read the bill carefully and
talked to package store owners. In fact last
week I met with between 50 and 70 of them in
Wallingford but they came from North Haven,
Hamden, West Haven, New Haven, some from even
Stratford. This clearly in my estimation will -
- this bill will put the package stores out of
business.

Many are not greatly concerned over Sunday sales
and that seems to be a point or a level that has
been reached and is accessible. However one of
the most onerous revisions to this -- for the
package stores is the repeal of 30-68 K in the
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General Statutes which prohibited discrimination
in the pricing for sale. H.B. 5021 allows
wholesalers to charge retailers different
prices. |

So if you’re a small package store as most of
the stores in Connecticut are right now the
wholesalers charge you the same as a huge store.
This bill repeals this provision and establishes
discrimination between large and small stores.
This is what the repeal of a blue law, will do.

Let’s think about the effect of this repeal.

The reality is now big and small package stores
are on a level playing field. They can compete.
H.B. 5021 will eliminate this (inaudible) and it
1s projected it will result in the closing of a
minimum of 81 stores. Now up here we spend a
great deal of time talking about jobs.

What about all the people these stores employ
not only on the floor but their insurance
people, their lawyers, et cetera. The
ramifications are mighty and guess what, these
people will lose their incomes and the State
will lose its desperately needed taxes. The
State will also have to pay the unemployment
compensation fund because it will take a huge
hit. We can’t have it both ways. We can’t
preach jobs and destroy a business community.

Since we all know at the end of the day it comes
down to money, I’‘ve attached a chart for you
from legislative research which points out all
the taxes. You have all heard the argument
Connecticut is going to make millions with
Sunday sales because people won’t have to cross
the border. Guess what, not so. Massachusetts,
New Hampshire, and New York do not have a sales
tax. Rhode Island does and it’s seven percent
versus our six and half percent. However our
excise tax on liquor is 540 versus 375 in Rhode
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Island. Please check out all of the taxes. 1In
conclusion I thank you for your time. Please do
not destroy an industry, the package stores in
response to hype.

REP. TABORSAK: Thank you, Representative Fritz.

We’ll certainly take your testimony into
consideration and the chart that you’ve
provided. Is there any questions for
Representative Fritz? Yes, Senator.

SENATOR WITKOS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I just

REP.

REP.

wanted to commend you on the time you’ve spent
actually reading the whole bill and meeting with
all of your package stores in -- not only in
your area but across the State of Connecticut.

Unfortunately the debate is drawn by what people
may see the highlights in the newspapers in the
commercials but it goes far beyond that as you -
- reading your testimony and I -- I urge you to
continue to reach out to your other colleagues
here in the General Assembly to say it’s not
just about Sunday sales. There’s a whole bunch
of other things that have an impact on our small
business in the State. But thank you very much.

FRITZ: I thank you and I have one other final
thought. I find it interesting, we have spent
years and have had so many discussions and
debates about drunken driven up here. It took
us six years to get the interlock device on cars
after somebody had been arrested for drunken
driving and now we’re going to have bars open
until two o’clock in the morning. What are we
doing? 1It’s a contra interdiction to what we
say and we end up doing. And I think this bill
is opposite to what we’ve been trying to do for
years.

TABORSAK: Thank you, Representative. Are there
any other questions? Please no applause please.
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Please. By now we know where folks in here
stand so we’d appreciate it if you could keep it
to yourself and applause outside. Next speaker
moving right along we have Barbara Koren, K-o-r-
e-n followed by Representative Kupchick followed
by Cathy Barber. Thank you.

BARBARA KOREN: Good afternoon. Thank you for your
time today. I am Barbara Koren. I was born and
raised in Connecticut and for the past 22 years
I have lived in Barkhamsted. I’'m a retail
professional that 25 years ago entered the
convenience store industry and literally fell in

love with it. I currently work for Mercury
Fuel, a family run business founded in 1947 in
Waterbury.

We have three generations of Davino family
members actively involved in the day to day
operations of running Mercury Fuel. We are an
example of a small family run Connecticut
business. The Connecticut store -- the
convenience store industry is that small
neighborhood store where you pick up a coffee, a
slushie, a newspaper, a snack for the morning, a
gallon of milk or that pint of ice cream on the
way home.

I am here to speak on behalf of all of these
small businesses and the customers we serve.
There are hundreds of my colleagues here today
and the box I carried down has over 8,000
signatures from our customers with their desire
to see things change in how liquor and beer is
sold in the State of Connecticut.

I'm here today to ask for your support of House
Bill 5021, a comprehensive bill that attempts to
modernize the way Connecticut goes to market for
liquor, beer and wine. This bill will help all
retailers that sell these products to compete
with our neighboring states.
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The bill contains many improvements that will
help us keep Connecticut shoppers shopping in
Connecticut. It will benefit our customers in
many ways and our State overall. House Bill
5021 addresses a major concern for my industry,
“the convenience stores of Connecticut. Forty
states allow convenience stores to sell beer.

According to the National Association of
Convenience Stores beer sales represent the
third largest inside sales category for our
retail sector. This is a huge voice of the
retailers of the convenience stores in
Connecticut that House Bill 5021 addresses.

Connecticut consumers should be -- should be
able to purchase this product in the same manner
that they do in almost all other states. When
the original grocery beer permit was created it
was long before today’s supermarkets were in
place. It was Superettes and mom and pop shops
on the corner and we had beer. But things have
changed. It has morphed and our selection and
our product mix no longer puts us in the
position based on the way the permits are
written in Connecticut today to allow us to have
beer for sale.

House Bill 5021 is a comprehensive -- it’s
comprehensive and answers just about every
question and issue this committee has heard over
the past several years on liquor sales in
Connecticut. Please support House Bill 5021.

It fixes what’s wrong and does so in a way that
doesn’t leave any sector behind. It is good
legislation and should be passed and sent to the
Governor for his signature. Please don’'t miss
this opportunity. The citizens of Connecticut
are ready for this. They will be the big
winners as competition always improves the
consumers position.
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Thank you for your time and if I can answer any
of your questions I'm more than happy to.

REP. TABORSAK: Thank you for your testimony. Are
there any questions? Representative Rebimbas.

REP. REBIMBAS: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Good
afternoon.

BARBARA KOREN: Good afternoon.

REP. REBIMBAS: Thank you for your testimony. How
many convenience stores do you currently either
-- is it owning or operate?

BARBARA KOREN: My company owns and operates 24
convenience stores in the State of Connecticut.
Of those 15 qualify under this bill because of
the square footage. And based on our
configurations, let’s say northeast our stores
are small. I have a number that are landlocked
with eight cooler doors, there’s not going to be
enough room for new product. My estimate and
the presentation I've done to my company is that
I can see three stores that it might make sense
to try. Up to five but if we went to five we’d
definitely have to do a lot of construction.

We'd be hiring a lot of construction workers to
rebuild walls and things like that. So I think
when you’'re looking at some with 24 one to two
is what we’d probably look at to see if it does
make the kind of impact that is seen in other
parts of the country. We’re going to walk first
but we want the opportunity to balance our
sales.

When gasoline went into supermarkets we were
kind of left with our number one product
disappearing a little bit more so we need to
balance our books a little bit. And this is one
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of the ways that is traditional in our industry.
Forty states do it, number three in our sales
nationwide.

REP. REBIMBAS: Just to clarify, is that 15

convenience stores that will qualify as a result
of the --

BARBARA KOREN: Just the square footage side of it.

REP.

I think there’s a square footage provision where
you have to have a minimal of 1,200 square feet.
Of my 24 locations 15 of them have a minimum of
1,200 square feet.

REBIMBAS: Okay. Because currently we do have a
law that does allow convenience stores to have
their -- but there is a formula to it.

BARBARA KOREN: Right.

REP.

REBIMBAS: So under the current law that’s in
place now do your convenience stores A qualify
for it and if they did do they just not opt to
have it?

BARBARA KOREN: No we don’'t qualify for it any

longer. There was a time when a convenience
store sold a lot more grocery that was before
the BJ’'s, before the Wal-Mart's arrived in
Connecticut, things like that. Setting your
store with groceries no longer really is what
the consumer’s seeking from me.

They’'re looking more for snacks and
complimentary items like that, much smaller
presence. They’re looking for that quick, I
need this toilet paper but I'm not giving you
all my business kind of thing until I get to the
next stop but they need to pick that thing up.
So we’'re a pick up stop now. We are no longer
what I would say a true grocery store. We're a
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multi store for convenience. We live up to our
name.

REP. REBIMBAS: And I do know that there’s a formula

in place related to whether it’s lottery, gas,
et cetera, et cetera that probably --

BARBARA KOREN: That'’s it.

REP.

REBIMBAS: -- is what in order to have one thing
you couldn’t have the other. So that certainly
might be the situation you’'re in.

BARBARA KOREN: And I will tell you as the price of

REP.

cigarettes has gone up -- excuse the numbers so
much on paper because it’s not relevant.

REBIMBAS: Sure. My question is -- my question
is what are your operations hours -- convenience
stores.

BARBARA KOREN: My stores are mostly open at six A.M.

REP.

and we close at 11 P.M. We have some that do
close at ten. We are not 24 hour locations. I
do have two. I take that back. But they are not
open in the lobby for you to walk in after 11
o’clock. I have one on Brainard Road, we lock
the doors and we serve them through a window so
we can still pump gas and we can certainly get
you anything you want in the store you just
don’'t come in the store.

REBIMBAS: Thank you for your testimony.

BARBARA KOREN: Thank you.

REP.

TABORSAK: Senator Witkos.

SENATOR WITKOS: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I just had

one question. I was writing down some notes
when you testified. What was the percentage of
sales for other states over the counter for
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alcohol. You said that 40 other states
currently allow for --

BARBARA KOREN: Forty other states are allowed to sell

REP.

REP.

beer. That is the predominant thing you will
see in convenience stores. It is the third
largest category numbers. I do not have the
specific numbers. The number one would be
tobacco products in our business. Number two is
fast food. Number three is now beer sales.

The actual numbers though I can certainly get
for you if you’d like them.

TABORSAK: Representative Baram.

BARAM: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. With regard to
the gas station convenience stores would you
oppose a minimum staffing level if beer were
allowed to be sold to compensate for the fact
that often these attendants have to go outside
to deal with issues with people who are pumping
gas and other types of issues. And there’s a
concern about who’s really going to be in the
store to be able to check identifications and
everything else.

BARBARA KOREN: Those are great questions. Hard for

me to speak for other retailers. Mercury Fuel
is a very conservative company and we already do
double coverage. We have one person called
clean up and one person who’s on the register at
all times. It is our preference.

We like to have two people on duty. We feel
there’'s safety in numbers. It allows us to get
our job done more efficiently as well.

Registers are set up so any age specific product
cannot go forward without an identification and
a birthdate entered into it. So we feel we’'re
very comfortable with .the carding methods that
are necessary to prevent youth access to this
product as well.
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SENATOR WITKOS: And lastly, are there any studies or
statistics that you’re aware of that correlate
gas station convenience store sales of beer to a
greater propensity of accidents or DUIs?

BARBARA KOREN: No I don’t know of any because let’s
face it, everyone drives to the package store.
Everyone drives to the supermarket. And they
drive to me. The one thing that I have as an
advantage in this sale is if you’re going to
purchase gasoline I get to observe whether you
can take a nozzle and put it in a little hole.

Can you push the button? Can you be coherent?
My employees today if someone is at my gas pump
and they are inebriated are told to call the
police and try to get the direction the car goes
in and try to get the license plate. We will
also shut down the pump on you. So we’re
already attuned to wanting a very safe driving
expgrience for all of our customers.

We don’t want anyone hurt on the roads and we
actually think we have the visibility to see
someone coming across the parking lot and
attempting to do something they may not be able
to do. And we think we’ll stop that sale.

REP. TABORSAK: Any other questions? If not, I think
I do have a question here. You addressed most
of them. Yes. I'm a little curious about -- I
know you don’t have any stores that currently
sell beer in the State of Connecticut.

Have you taken the step of pricing like dram
shop insurance for instance? I'm a little
curious about what that looks like for a small
store that wants to expand into this product if
we go down that road, whether that business
model will even work knowing that there isn’t a
huge margin on -- on beer. Have you looked at



132

February 28, 2012 000270

law/cd/gbr GENERAL LAW COMMITTEE 11:00 A.M.

that issue at all? 1Is that something you'’re
just going to --

BARBARA KOREN: Wouldn’'t be an area where I would be

REP.

looking into it. 1I’m sure the owners of my
company have -- they will look and assess all
risk management and all insurance
responsibilities. Before I came here today I
looked at them and said are you sure you want me
there and do you really want this? And they
said yes we do.

We think we can fit it into our financial model.
So I have to believe they’ve done some of their
homework already as family owners and feel

they’'re ready. But I don’t have the specifics.

TABORSAK: Okay. Well appreciate that and
thanks for your testimony.

BARBARA KOREN: Thank you.

REP.

REP.

REP.

REP.

TABORSAK: Moving on we have Representative
Kupchick followed by Cathy Barber, followed by
Representative Molgano.

KUPCHICK: Thank you. This is actually my first
time testifying before a committee so bear with
me.

TABORSAK: Thank you for coming. We’re honored.

KUPCHICK: I want to thank the honorable chairs, %"Bf;ogj

Senator Paul Doyle, Representative Joseph
Taborsak, honorable Vice Chairs, Senator Leone,
and Representative David Baram and Ranking
Members, Senator Kevin Witkos, and
Representative Rosa Rebimbas. I did write this
Monday night before some of the changes had
occurred. I actually heard them on my drive up
here today.
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So I'm going to read parts of it. You do have
my testimony although the Sunday sales seems to
be not an issue any more but the other parts do
seem to be an issue and that’s where my concern
is as a small business owner myself. The small
business owners point here. So I’ll just read
parts. When I was elected last year a similar
bill was proposed and I thought it was passed --
if it was passed through committee I would vote
for it.

My reasoning came as an advocate for an
individual’s right to choose where and when they
would want to shop. However after much research
I thought it became -- it became obvious to me
that the convenience of Sunday sales would limit
small businesses from competing with large box
stores. Recent history shows that Connecticut
does not support an atmosphere that promotes the
growth of small business.

I believe the new parts of this bill will
benefit large box stores tremendously and create
an environment in which small business will not
be able to compete in. The Governor’s proposal
-- my concerns are the medallions that upon
purchase will allow the -- an owner to open a
liquor store in any town regardless of how many
stores are in that town. Increasing the number
of licenses from two or six now therefore
creating a pathway for big box stores to

overtake and close out -- close out the small
stores.
Eliminating State price -- minimum pricing which

again will allow the big box stores with their
buying power and storage capacity to undersell
and drive the small business owner out of
business. Right now the minimum allows the
small owner to fairly compete. The premise of
the Governor’s proposal is to increase revenues



134 February 28, 2012 000272
law/cd/gbr GENERAL LAW COMMITTEE 11:00 A.M.

that are lost to neighboring states like
Massachusetts.

However as many people have testified today I
believe Connecticut loses these revenues on
liquor and gasoline because Massachusetts and
other states taxes are lower on alcohol and
gasoline.

The Governor’'s budget last year included a large
tax increase on liquor and added the burden --
and added that burden on small package stores.
And I’'ll just conclude by saying that, you know,
with the economy being what it is in the last
year I think many of us as Connecticut residents
and as Americans decided to start purchasing
things locally instead of buying things on the
internet or out of state because we wanted to
support our local business owners because they
were having such a tough time.

Now it’s much easier for me to be on the
internet late at night purchasing holiday gifts
like most of us but I went out of my way to
purchase from my local business owners because I
wanted to support them. I truly did because I
don’t want them to go out of business. They're
our neighbors. They’'re our families. They are
our friends.

And our -- my small business owners in my
community are telling me straight out that this
is unfair and they have been locked out of the
process to be partnering and talking about how
they can work together to make this bill better.
So I do plead and ask the committee to please
take them into consideration, work with them
directly so we don’t hurt a small family run
business. Thank you.

SENATOR DOYLE: Thank you, Representative. Are there
any questions? Senator Kissel.
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‘ SENATOR KISSEL: Thank you very much. Well I just

REP.

wanted to state that I can’t believe it’s your
first time testifying. I wanted to thank you
personally for all the hard work you did to
assist me back when you were with Senate
Republicans.

I think you’re constituents are well served and
I think that the fact that the Governor came up
with some different proposals in the last 48
hours, Connecticut Package Store Association has
some counter proposals that have just come out.
That this is -- this is a proposal that’s
changing on a daily basis.

And certainly the concerns that you raised are
taken to heart especially when it comes to small
businesses. These large multinational
corporations that really don’t care about our
communities, they may provide jobs but quite
often they’re not the kind of jobs that a lot of
folks are enamored with.

The small businesses that sometimes struggle are
the ones that if you go and you have a boy scout
troop or a YMCA or something else that’s local
and you'’'re looking for a small donation for an
auction or something like that, they always step
up to the plate and they always deliver.

KUPCHICK: Absolutely.

SENATOR KISSEL: So I really appreciate you taking

REP.

the time this afternoon to come and testify.

KUPCHICK: Thank you. And I would just say that
the small businesses in my community who many of
them are here today said that, you know, they
still feel that they haven’t been included even
maybe with the lobbyists’ proposals.

000273



136 February 28, 2012
law/cd/gbr GENERAL LAW COMMITTEE 11:00 A. M.

So I would reach out each of you to the small
businesses in your communities and ask them as
you move forward and you work on this bill
because I want to make -- I just -- I think we
all want to make sure that they’re protected.

SENATOR DOYLE: Thank you. Any further questions
from the committee? Seeing none, thank you very
much.

REP. KUPCHICK: Thank you very much.

SENATOR DOYLE: All right. The next speaker is Cathy
Barber, the Representative Molgano, then Stan
Sorkin, Representative Terry Wood, then Matt
Mitchell, Senator Suzio, Kevin Curry, Senator
Bye. Thank you.

CATHY BARBER: Good afternoon. I’‘m Cathy Barber of
Wethersfield and I’'m Chairperson of the
Connecticut Legislative Committee for the New
England Convenience Store Association. We
represent hundreds of convenience stores
throughout Connecticut.

Please not 80 percent of convenience stores are
owned by single store operators. They are small
family owned businesses. They are the epitome
of small business and they are the backbone of
our economy. We are small businesses willingly
open long hours.

We are willingly open seven days per week. We
want to be open. We want to do more business
and we want to add jobs. We want to do a better
job serving customers and we’re asking to sell
beer. This is a typical convenience store item
in almost all other states.

Because of Connecticut’s antiquated blue laws
most Connecticut convenience store operators
have been precluded from selling beer limiting
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business opportunity as well as consumer
options. In 1978 when I applied to become a
convenience store franchisee in Utica, New York,
I was first required to obtain a beer license.

Beer is a regular item in most convenience
stores except in Connecticut. I lived in
Massachusetts, New York and even Rhode Island
before moving to Connecticut in 1985 and it was
culture shock, quite surprising to learn of the
restrictive laws here. Connecticut ranks number
49 out of 50 states in per capita sales of beer.

I suspect we drink as much beer in Connecticut
as anywhere else. 1 suspect we don’t buy it in
Connecticut. It’s not convenient to find it.
The available hours are strictly limited and at
times it’s not competitively priced. Out of
state retailers do an excellent job of serving
Connecticut residents.

This is a well-known fact ignored at great peril
to our own tax revenue. There is room for
growth in the beer industry in Connecticut.
Taking our rightful sales and related tax
revenue back from even a single state like
Massachusetts will yield positive results for
Connecticut. We support the comprehensive
approach that bill 5021 proposes.

The biggest winner will be Connecticut consumers
who will benefit from greater competition within
Connecticut and with the neighboring states

which will mean lower prices and better choices.

We also believe package stores should be able to
sell the products we currently sell such as
snacks, chips, cheese, crackers, all the normal
package store items in other states. This is in
the best interest of the consumer.
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In our business independent owners like Joe’s
Convenience Store compete against giant
wholesale clubs and large grocery chains selling
all the other items sold in convenience stores.
There are hundreds of us here today. There are
owners. There are employees and we ask that you
support this bill. Please support our industry
and most importantly please support our
customers.

SENATOR DOYLE: Thank you, Ms. Barber. Any questions

STAN

from the committee members? Seeing none, thank
you very much. The next speaker is
Representative Molgano. Is the Representative
here? Okay. He’s not here so I will then go
back to the call board. Stan Sorkin. Mr.
Sorkin? Mr. Sorkin? Okay. He'’s here.

Please -- when we call your name please --
please identify yourself. Then next up is
Representative Terry Wood, then Matt Mitchell,
Senator Suzio then Kevin Curry and Senator Bye
and Chuck Bowe. Mr. Sorkin.

SORKIN: Thank you. Good afternoon, Chairman
Doyle, Chairman Taborsak, and members of the
general law committee. My name is Stan Sorkin,
President of the Connecticut Food Association.
I am here today to testify on behalf of our
members in strong support of H.B. 5021.

Our members include multi store chains, regional
firms and single store independent supermarkets
employing over 30,000 associates. The majority
of our members are family owned supermarkets.
These markets compete with all classes of trade
every day of the week selling all types of every
day consumable products. We don’'t shy away from
competition. We firmly believe that this is
time to put an end to Connecticut’s old,
antiquated alcohol blue laws and modernize them.
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I thank Carroll Hughes for agreeing to Sunday
sales. He just cut my testimony in half so I’1l1
move to some of the other issues. H.B. 5021
reforms minimum pricing. Minimum pricing is
price fixing plain and simple. It means higher
cost for consumers. Connecticut’s consumers
deserve more competition and lower prices not
artificial price controls.

The proposed reforms establish this statewide
liquor license medallion system which we believe
creates equity value for existing package store
owners especially the way the proposed law has
been rewritten. Another element is the
elimination of the two store rule.

Increasing the package store ownership limit
will allow those owners who want to grow their
business the opportunity to do so. I do not see
why Coninecticut restricts competition.

I would be remiss if I did not comment on the
wild, unsubstantiated claims that the passage of
H.B. 5021 would put 900 or more package stores

out of business. You have to look no further

than Newington, Connecticut to see an example of
this fact.

Stu Leonard'’s arguably the best food retailer in
Connecticut opened a big box store with an
attached package store a few years ago. In 2009
there were 11 package store permittees in
Newington. Today there are 12, the maximum
allowed by State law.

If you can compete with Stu Leonard’'s you can be
able to compete with anyone else in the
marketplace. We believe in the free market
system and that consumers will benefit from
competition if it’s left open for consumer
choice.
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SENATOR DOYLE: Thank you. Any questions for Mr.

REP.

STAN

REP.

Sorkin? Representative Tallarita.

TALLARITA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Thank you,
Stan, for being here today. Currently can you
tell me how many grocery stores hold package
store permits?

SORKIN: To the best of my knowledge in
Connecticut there are a few, one of which is
Whole Foods which I believe owns approximately
two permits. They do not sell beer in their --
their supermarket part of the store. I know Stu
Leonard’s by testifying today, they have that
same time operation.

Very few grocery stores operate package stores
in addition to their supermarkets. The fact
that the limit is six, think about it, Stop and
Shop has 94 stores in the State of Connecticut.
They can have six licenses. It’s no different
than a strip mall where you have a package store
and a supermarket.

The only change is Stop and Shop would have
potentially the ability to operate that store in
the connecting potential location. But you
still have that separation between the
buildings. There’s no access between the
supermarket and package store. Again, who's
doing it correctly in the State is Stu Leonard'’'s
and Whole Foods.

TALLARITA: Thank you. One other question, I'm
not sure if you’ll know the answer of this. I
probably should have asked it of Mr. Hughes when
he was here earlier. But the number of package
store permits that currently exist in the State,
do you know if the surrounding states,
Massachusetts, New York and Rhode Island when --
when they passed Sunday sales you know the big
thing was in each one of the states if you look
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at any of the testimony and any of the newspaper
articles, you know we'’re going to lose business,
we're going to lose business.

And that’s -- their claim that store are going
to go out of business. Do you happen to know
how many permits they lost or how many stores
they lost in the surrounding states and if that
holds true?

SORKIN: According -- according to the Adam's
Handbook which measures these things New York
which implemented Sunday sales in 2003. There
were 2,495 package stores prior to, afterwards
there was the same number. Delaware is a
similar story. In 2003 there were 369 now
there are 369. In Massachusetts it was 2004.

There were over 1,600 today there are over 1,600
permits. Rhode Island, the number was 259 when
they changed in 2004. The number stayed at 259.

Somebody before mentioned they wanted to look at

data. The data is out there. Somebody has to
look at the data and realize that competition is
good for consumers, the business environment
does not change, the consumer benefits and
everybody wins.

You heard Tim Devanney before testify. His
companies have been in business for 125 years.
He's competed successfully as the retail
environment has changed because he knows what
his niche is. He knows how to market to his
consumer base. The same should be true for
package stores as every other retail
environment.

TALLARITA: Thank you very much. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

SENATOR DOYLE: Thank you. Any further questions?

Representative Baram.
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REP.

STAN

REP.

STAN

REP.

STAN

BARAM: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Welcome, Stan.
SORKIN: Thanks, Dave.

BARAM: A couple of quick questions. We had
talked about this earlier. Is it correct that
the parent entity -- we’ll pick on Stop and Shop
for a moment. If they were to apply for
medallions they’re limited to whatever number we
agree to, let’s say six for now.

SORKIN: Right.

BARAM: As an entity. Not each individual
store.

SORKIN: Correct. 1It’s the corporation.

BARAM: And since -- since I had a chance to
speak to you somebody mentioned to me and I
don’'t know if this is correct that there are
some grocery store chains and it may have been
ShopRite or Price Chopper when they have
individual franchises that’s not owned by the
parent entity.

If that were true would we have the issue of
individual stores being able to apply for up to
six medallions individually as opposed to the
parent organization?

SORKIN: Okay. ShopRite stores in the State of
Connecticut are individually owned family
businesses. The typical ShopRite owner is one
store, as many as four stores currently. Their
prime business is running grocery stores.

The way the law is set it’s very unlikely even
though it is possible for one of those stores to
own up to six, they’re in the business of
selling groceries. The way the law is as a
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separate free standing unit, it’s not like wine
in supermarkets. It’s a task that has to be
looked at in terms of a good economic
investment.

Does it really make sense to go into that type
of business when your prime business is selling
everyday consumables to consumers.

BARAM: And lastly, just on your knowledge of
grocery stores and how they operate, if this law
were to be passed is it your expectation that
grocery stores would also keep their grocery
beer permits and perhaps look at running package
stores or is it more likely that they will
choose between the two types of permits?

SORKIN: I think if you’re going to go into the
package store business as a grocery store and
you have this separation of walls you’d keep
your beer license in addition to applying for a
medallion and package store permit.

BARAM: Thank you very much.

SENATOR DOYLE: Thank you. Any -- Representative

REP.

STAN

REP.

Rebimbas.

REBIMBAS: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Good
afternoon.

SORKIN: Good afternoon.

REBIMBAS: Just wanted to get a little bit more
information. I know in your testimony you said
that for example ShopRite is in the business of
groceries not beer but obviously we all
acknowledge the fact that they do have the
ability whether it’s currently or with this new
proposed law if they wanted to to either open up
a liquor store or to be selling beer.
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I think Representative Baram made a good point
regarding then, you know, how these corporate

type national stores are actually individually
owned and what the impact might be and I think
it’s probably hard for us to assume which ones
may or may not exercise it down the line and

what the impact might be on the package stores.

And I think it was interesting how you
highlighted New York and I forgot the other
state that you mentioned regarding the package
store permits that there was no decrease. I
guess I just want to kind of clarify that and
flush that out. No decrease as a result of what
change in the law specifically.

SORKIN: Going to Sunday sales.

REBIMBAS: Okay. So just opening Sunday sales.
You’re not making any representations regarding
whether or not there was any price
discrimination laws in place --

SORKIN: No.

REBIMBAS: -- in those states or any of the
other laws that we currently have in the State
of Connecticut or the three tier system, et
cetera, et cetera.

SORKIN: That is correct.
REBIMBAS: Thank you for your testimony.

SORKIN: My point is it should be looked at so
people look at the facts, what’s happened in
other states not taking wild claims.

When somebody claims three quarters of the
package stores if the current revised law is
implemented just doesn’t make sense to me based
upon my knowledge of competition in the business
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and how other retailers have operations that

have survived over the year.
REP. REBIMBAS: I fully agree with you that there’s
many different factors that come into play.
STAN SORKIN: That's correct.
REP. REBIMBAS: Thank you.

SENATOR DOYLE: Representative Nafis.

REP.

NAFIS: Thank you and thank you for coming up
here. I did want to -- first of all Stu
Leonard’s is a wonderful neighbor to our
community. They have been terrific since
they’ve arrived. They’'ve participated in all
kinds of local events.

But I just wanted to point out that Stu
Leonard’s is actually on the border of Newington
and Berlin. And that store is really a
destination type of store. It’s not your
traditional grocery store where people go to do
their everyday shopping.

So it’s kind -- I just wanted to point that out
because I do think that to say they’re not
competition or they haven’t hurt our -- our
(inaudible) here or that they -- you know, it’s
no problem at all for them to do it.

I think it’s great they have their -- their
license and it’s fine but they are -- they are
not in a place where our people normally would
be going for their regular grocery shopping
every day. So I kind of -- I'm a little bit
uncomfortable with them being used as a
comparison. And I just wanted to point that
out.

000283



‘

146

February 28, 2012

law/cd/gbr GENERAL LAW COMMITTEE 11:00 A.M.

STAN

REP.

STAN

REP.

STAN

REP.

STAN

SORKIN: Well I pointed it out because the
question was that equating grocery stores to big
box stores. Big box stores are destination
shopping. They'’'re destinations. People go
there like Stu Leonard’s. So if you’re talking
about a wholesale club. If you’re talking about
a supermarket being a wholesale club I think my
point is wvalid.

The fact that the local merchants stayed in --
have the same number of licensees as they did
before Stu Leonard’s and after shows the fact is
local business can survive with destination big
box stores.

NAFIS: Okay. On that -- that certainly -- I
understand that point. Again, the only thing I
would say is that we do have many package stores
in town which actually we’ve been referenced a
lot today by other testimony too.

We do have a lot and many of our people are here
today and I know we’ve -- you know we’ve met
with them as well. And I don’'t know that we
have that many that are down by that part of the
-- on the border either. I did just want to say
again --

SORKIN: Sure.

NAFIS: -- Stu Leonard’s has been a great
neighbor but I know the big box stores is an
issue. I have a concern about the grocery store

piece of it though. 1It’s not (inaudible).

SORKIN: Well I think you can say the grocery
stores --

NAFIS: No.

SORKIN: -- have been good neighbors too.
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REP. NAFIS: Yeah. And they’re good neighbors too.
We have great grocery stores.

STAN SORKIN: A recent Stop and Shop ad I saw this
weekend showed they gave 22 million dollars to
charity in the State of Connecticut.

REP. NAFIS: Right. Thank you.

SENATOR DOYLE: Any further questions from committee
members? Seeing none, thank you very much.

STAN SORKIN: Thank you very much.

SENATOR DOYLE: Next speaker is Representative Terry
Wood. 1Is Representative Wood here? Okay. Good
all right. Let me go to my list then. So then
we have Matt Mitchell, Senator Suzio, Kevin
Curry, Senator Bye, Chuck Bowe, Representative
Kokuruda, 101 district -- I can’t really -- I'm
sorry about that. 1I’1ll figure it out later.
Kevin Pimentel and Representative Don Carter.
Representative Wood. Thank you.

REP. WOOD: Thank you. Senator Doyle, Representative
Taborsak, Senator Witkos, Representative
Rebimbas and members of the general law
committee. My name is Terry Wood and I
represent Norwalk and Darien in the 141
District.

I'm in strong support of House Bill 5058, AN ACT
CONCERNING FIRST SELECTMEN AND ALCOHOLIC LIQUOR
PERMITS which would remove the prohibition
against first selectmen holding permits for the
sale of alcoholic liquor. This statute was
signed into law in 1933 and the reasons behind
the law are not known.

It was post prohibition, that’s all we know.
It’'s before notes were taken and they had many
public hearings. The law is not consistent and
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SENATOR DOYLE: Yes. Thank you. Any further
questions? Seeing none, thank you very much.

REP. WOOD: Great. Thank you.

SENATOR DOYLE: All right. The next speaker is Matt
Mitchell. 1Is Mitchell here? Okay good. Thank
you, Matt. And then Senator Suzio, Kevin Curry,
Senator Bye, Chuck Bowe, Representative
Kokuruda, Kevin Pimenthal, Representative Dan
Carter, John Nejaime, Senator Prague. Thank
you. Thanks for your patience.

MATTHEW MITCHELL: Thank you. My name is Matt
Mitchell and I'm the third generation in my
family to work at the Norbert E. Mitchell
Company in Danbury, Connecticut. The company
was started by my grandfather in 1945 after he
returned from World War II.

The company continues to be run by my family
today. We own and operate three convenience
stores in Danbury serving thousands of customers
in western Connecticut. I’'m here today in
support of Bill number 5021 and I'm here to
speak specifically about the language contained
in section seven that pertains to the sale of
beer in convenience stores.

The way the law is written today my convenience
stores are prohibited from selling beer while
stores located across the State border in New
York are able to sell beer. This is not only
unfair but it has placed us at a competitive
disadvantage. Many of my potential customers
work in New York but live in western
Connecticut. They will stop in New York for the
convenience of purchasing beer before they
return home.

When they stop in New York to pick up beer it is
more convenient to pick up other products that
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they otherwise would be buying here in our state
from my stores or others like them. These lost
sales mean less opportunity for Connecticut
businesses and less tax revenue for the State.
Family owned convenience stores work hard to
earn customers and unfortunately Connecticut has
a law that undermines these efforts.

Bill number 5021 fixes that and rewards store
owners like me for our commitment to providing
good long term jobs in our communities and
bringing competitive prices to the public.

We are all aware of the deficit that the State
is dealing with in a difficult economy
businesses are operating in. This bill brings
consumers back to Connecticut to buy products
offered at our stores and sold by our employees.

This bill allows our business to be more
competitive, expands choices for our customers
and makes Connecticut a place that you can do
business in. I urge this committee to support
this bill and allow convenience stores to

. profit, the State to grow revenue without
raising taxes and provide job security to the
many people that rely on us to earn a living.
Thank you.

SENATOR DOYLE: Thank you, Mr. Mitchell. Any
questions for Mr. Mitchell? Seeing none, thank
you very much. Next speaker is Senator Suzio,
then Kevin Curry, Senator Bye, Chuck Bowe,
Representative Kokuruda, Kevin Pimenthal,
Representative Dan Carter, John Nijaime and
Senator Prague.

SENATOR SUZIO: Good afternoon, Senator Doyle and all
the distinguished members of the committee.
Thank you for allowing me to testify today. I'm
here to testify on House Bill 5021.
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SENATOR DOYLE: Thank you for waiting so long.

SENATOR SUZIO: As a fiscal conservative I’m someone
who almost always will defend the free market
competition with minimal or no restrictions.
The free market has made this country the
greatest economic engine in history. There are
times however when regulations are appropriate.

The proposal that prohibits sales of liquor on
Sunday is one of those regulations that I
believe is warranted. I say this for the
following two reasons. First, you cannot
legislate oblivious to the history behind the
situation in the legislation. The fact is that
this is an industry of mostly family owned
businesses that has existed under the existing
regulations for decades.

Small package stores have been bought and sold
and operated for generations under the rules of
the game. Dramatically changing those rules
without regard for the impact on more than 1,000
such stores and families in Connecticut is
wrong.

Allowing Sunday sales may add a small bit of
convenience for Connecticut consumers but that
convenience pales in comparison to the
devastating impact the legislation could have on
hundreds of small business families. There’s
simply no credible evidence to prove that
opening a seventh day of the week is materially
going to add sales volume for these family owned
businesses.

We can’t be indifferent to the impact of the
proposed law on most of those families and their
businesses. They will simply work more and earn
less. 1It’s not fair to materially change the
rules of the game in the middle of the game. We
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pass legislation that largely helps big business
in Connecticut.

It’s time to show support for the little guy,
the families who not only work in but are a
critical part of their communities from
generation to generation. The second reason I
oppose the proposed legislation is that the
added tax revenue claimed by supporters of the
bill is very small. Only five to eight million
dollars from what I’ve seen.

If the real goal is to increase Connecticut tax
collections then address the real problem and
the real problem ladies and gentleman is this.
It’s our tax structure. Connecticut -- all
Connecticut stores big and small suffer at a
competitive disadvantage because of
Connecticut’s outrageous taxes imposed on
alcohol.

Take a look at the tax comparison in terms of a
bottle of Jack Daniels, Massachusetts versus
Connecticut. You can see that the Connecticut
taxes are more than double the Massachusetts
taxes. And by the way, I did some calculations,
this actually understates it.

My staff made a slight miscalculation in terms
of the size of the bottle so it’s actually a
bigger disparity. So -- and -- so basically
you’'ve got two taxes imposed by Connecticut.

The second tax by the way, as I understand it
the sales tax is calculated as a tax on a tax.
The six percent -- 6.35 percent is calculated on
a price that already has got another tax in it.

So we’'re actually taxing alcohol twice and it’s
a version of double jeopardy from what I can
see. So if this was a business it would be
considered to be an unfair and deceptive
practice. If the real goal is to stimulate, to
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increase tax revenues and provide convenience
and savings for Connecticut merchants --
Connecticut families and Connecticut merchants
make -- let’s make Connecticut merchants more
competitive with our neighboring state by
lowering our taxes on alcohol and on gas.

By the way, you notice they have a second tax
there. Connecticut families now have two
reasons to go to Massachusetts. They’'ve got
much lower taxes on alcohol and much lower taxes
on gas. So that’s a -- what we need to do is
address that. That’s a policy that makes sense
because it will benefit everybody, consumers and
business owners alike.

The truth is there’s a lot of people crossing
the border to Massachusetts seven days a week
not just on Sunday to buy liquor because it’s so
much cheaper up there. And of course you’ve got
the bonus now of much cheaper gas prices. You
know they used to call Massachusetts
taxachusetts. They might start calling
Connecticut something new like Conn-noataxica.

SENATOR DOYLE: Okay. All right, Senator. Wrap it
up, Senator.

SENATOR SUZIO: So let me say in conclusion --
SENATOR DOYLE: All right. Let’s go.

SENATOR SUZIO: -- because I know you'’ve been patient
with me. You’re my colleague in the Senate and
I appreciate that. So I urge you not to pass
this part of House Bill 5021. Focus instead on
making Connecticut’s tax structure more
competitive.

Give our merchants a fair and level playing
field. They’'re suffering at a tremendous
disadvantage versus our neighbors up in
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Massachusetts. And the best thing we can do to
benefit Connecticut consumers as well as
Connecticut business owners is to level the
playing field by lowering our taxes.

Let’s allow our store to be competitive with our
neighbors across the border. That will benefit
everybody and that’s the kind of change that we
should look at. And I would ask you
respectfully can we actually tax a tax? Is that
legal?

SENATOR DOYLE: All right. Any questions for Senator
Suzio? Senator Kissel.

SENATOR KISSEL: I just wanted ‘to thank the good
Senator for coming -- for being so patient this
afternoon. And I said this earlier today and
I'll say it again. You and I may disagree on
the whole Sunday sales issue but if we made our
products and services attractive from a tax
perspective and were nimble about it and
thoughtful about it and clever like we are and
could be, with other areas of our economy we
could bring people from Rhode Island,
Massachusetts, and New York into our State to be
consumers and it would help our economy
incredibly.

And the part -- and I just want to underline
this because I do appreciate the show and tell
but you know, when we had folks that say we want
to attract in the movie industry what did they
do?

They made our State appealing from a tax
perspective. And so if we can -- you know, if
we can be appealing to certain segments of the
economy because we fashion our tax policies to
be attractive I think we should use those
lessons for other areas of our economy such as
gasoline, such as alcohol, such as tobacco, such
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as clothing so that we could bring all those
great folks from the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts to the great State of Connecticut
to shop. Thank you.

SENATOR DOYLE: Thank you.

SENATOR SUZIO: Thank you for the opportunity,
Senator Doyle.

SENATOR DOYLE: Sure. Any further questions from
committee members?

SENATOR SUZIO: And I would respectfully suggest -- I
actually don’t know, can we actually legally tax
a tax? I would ask you to investigate that as
part of the committee.

SENATOR DOYLE: Okay.
SENATOR SUZIO: Thank you very much.

SENATOR DOYLE: Thank you. Yes. Next speaker is
Kevin Curry. Is Mr. Curry here? Kevin Curry.
Okay there he is. All right. Mr. Curry. After
Mr. Curry is Senator Bye, then Chuck Bowe,
Representative Kokuruda, Kevin Pimenthal,
Representative Dan Carter, John Nijaime, Senator
Prague, Mike Cimini. Thank you, Kevin.

KEVIN CURRY: Good afternoon. First it’s always an fﬂbf;@&j
honor when you get to follow your Senator and
testify after he does. So it’s -- my name is
Kevin Curry and I'm from Meriden and I represent
Danby’s. We’'re a small business in central
Connecticut. I was educated in local schools.
I still volunteer at the vocational trade
schools.

I hire the kids from those schools, just hired
another kid last week. I was fortunate to work
for a small family business and I was offered
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the opportunity to become an owner. Owning a
convenience store or any business in Connecticut
is very difficult as we’ve all attested to with
the problems that’s been going on. We need all
the business we can get for our stores and
that’s why we’re here today to ask for your
support of the Bill 5021.

I'm here today to speak on behalf of the
hundreds of convenience store owners, managers
and employees that have come to the Capital
today to support this bill. Hopefully you were
able to see the support that was outside today
on your way in. A lot of dedicated people were
here for that. Convenience stores in
Connecticut provide consumers with flexibility
to shop for foods, beverages and other items in
their neighborhoods.

We're a very important -- we are a very
important partner for the State of Connecticut
because we’re the largest distribution of
lottery ticket sales along with package stores
and grocery stores. I am here today to support
Bill 5021. I believe this is a good bill for my
customers. It’s good for small business because
it will create more competition and permit my
store to sell a product, beer that is widely
available at convenience stores in surrounding
states.

We’'re from central Connecticut and I’‘ve worked
in the Meriden area for years. We'’re right at
the crossroads where 691, 91 and the Merritt
Parkway come together. I can’t tell you how
many times someone will get off the highway from
out of state, they pull into the store, they ask
for beer and we look at them and say we’re not
allowed to sell beer in Connecticut. They
couldn’t believe it. They were always in shock.
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Fortunately we’'re not on the border of
Connecticut where the people just simply drive
across the State line and buy beer on Sundays
and even in convenience stores. Our stores are
run by local people. We’'re part of the local
community. We'’re members of the Rotary Club.
We sponsor the little league teams. We
volunteer -- we volunteer at the nonprofits in
our communities. We flip burgers. We scoop ice
cream. We do what’s necessary to give back to
our customers.

People come to our convenience stores for the
simplicity that we offer. This bill as we all
know and it’s been said today over and over is
probusiness, proconsumer. It’s about the choice
for the consumer and we ask what is easier for
the taxpayers of Connecticut and what will be
better for small business.

We think this in the long run will affect very
few people and people will see very little
change other than the ease for the consumer of
shopping. We need to change the 80 year old
blue laws that are on the book and get
Connecticut up to date. I thank you for youf
time. And I look forward to any questions you
may have.

SENATOR DOYLE: Thank you. Any questions from the
committee? Seeing none, thank you very much.

MATTHEW MITCHELL: Thank you. Have a good day.

SENATOR DOYLE: The next speaker is Senator Bye. Is
Senator Bye here? Okay. Senator Bye. No sign
of Senator Bye. Okay so we’ll go next to Chuck
Bowe. Is Mr. Bowe here? Okay so Bowe’s here.

So after Mr. Bowe will be Representative
Kokuruda and Kevin Pimenthal and Representative
Dan Carter, then John Nijaime, the Senator
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Prague, Mike Cimini, Peter Berdon, Daniela
Tristine. Mr. Bowe, thank you.

CHUCK BOWE: Good afternoon Senator Doyle, and all
the representatives here. First off I want to
thank you guys for being so patient. You're
certainly paying attention and giving us an

awful lot of time. I own a -- two liquor stores
in Groton, Connecticut. We'’re family owned and
operated. And we both -- both stores are in

supermarket parking lots. So we are competing
against them regularly with the beer sales and
I'm familiar with it.

I too have a petition signed by 7,000 customers
against the bill. So I can give you the hard
copy of that if you like against Bill 5021 for
the record. I just -- I'm here to speak on
behalf of the -- I worked for a beer wholesaler
for 20 years. And one of the nice things that
they enjoy is an exclusive territory to sell
their products in.

Now if we’re trying to be more competitive with
the surrounding states which is difficult
because of the way we’re set up with tax
structure and we'’ve been through all of that.
Then I think we should at least look at the
possibility of removing the exclusivity of
territories. It is a way. There’s five Bud
wholesalers. There’s four Coors wholesalers.

There’s five Miller wholesalers. There'’'s six
that sell Heineken and so forth. You can shop
for price and -- and compare the best deal. 1If
they’'re not allowed to amend then as the liquor
wholesalers will have to come out with their
best price then so will the beer wholesalers and
we’ll be able to buy and compete against price.
Right now there is no minimum on beer.
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It’'s cost of acquisition as what is proposed for
now alcohol and wine. So for us to be
competitive then we need to get the best price.
And as far as I can see in the 20 years that I
worked at a wholesaler we were set up by design
to make money. It is -- because you have an
exclusive territory, you’re set policy is based
on that way. How you go to market, how you give
credit days, where you’'re going to ship, how
many cases you’'re going to ship and so forth.

So if -- if we don’'t have the ability to shop
for the best price it will be difficult to be
competitive in the arena that we’re trying to
change. If also I wanted to touch on the
possibility of removing the cost of acquisition
as the minimum. In other words this bill has
proposed having several items a month, be it
six, eight, ten that we can now sell at ten
percent below cost. Well that seems exciting to
some people. In the arena of beer competing
against two supermarkets regularly and right now
that’s all they can sell is beer. Now they can
pick six, eight, ten beer items a month and I'm
in the same parking lot and they can sell them
ten percent below cost.

You can’t possibly think with me being able to
sell peanuts and potato chips I'm going to be
able to make up ten percent of my overall sales.
It’s just not possible. This only fuels big box
and chains. If you let this happen the big
stores are going to have an extreme advantage
over the regular mom and pop and even mid to
large size liquor stores.

We all want to be competitive. Every one of us
as liquor store owners want to be competitive.
Don’'t get it wrong. We’re not in a protective
society. I don’'t know what everyone thinks the
ligquor store makes but it’s -- you know I work a
pretty long day. As long as -- so does my
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employees and so does every other liquor store
owner.

We want to be competitive but not at the cost of
our own livelihoods and our families
livelihoods. So please keep that in mind as
you’re about to go forward with this bill.

SENATOR DOYLE: Thank you. I just have a point of
clarification before -- you mentioned there was
-- I think I got it inferred from you that
there’s no minimum prices for beer. Can you
clarify that?

CHUCK BOWE: 1It’s cost of acquisition.

SENATOR DOYLE: But is it still a minimum price
though?

CHUCK BOWE: Yes. You can’t sell it below the cost.
Currently if you buy a Budweiser 30 pack for
20.85 you can only sell it at 20.85. That’s the
lowest you can sell.

SENATOR DOYLE: Okay. So there is some sort of
minimum pricing system for beer.

CHUCK BOWE: There is a minimum at cost. Yes. You
cannot sell below cost.

SENATOR DOYLE: Yeah. Okay. I just wanted to
clarify.

CHUCK BOWE: But what this proposes is that --

SENATOR DOYLE: Oh no, I know. I'm just saying
current status quo.

CHUCK BOWE: Current status yes.

SENATOR DOYLE: I just want to clarify status quo.
Okay. Any questions? Representative Rebimbas.
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REP. REBIMBAS: Thank you, Mr. Chair, and thank you
for your testimony. And I think you highlighted
one of the things that myself and probably many
other committee members have been trying to put
straight in our minds because you yourself as a
package store and having a history working with
the distributors it’s an interesting perspective
that you say that you're for competition as I
would assume every business owner out there,
it’s out livelihood to be in competition.

But it is interesting that yet this bill
predominately if not almost exclusively deals
with package stores and new proposals that are
going to impact package stores. So as the
committee members and as ranking members we need
to kind of wrap our minds around it that we'’ve
got the rights of consumers and if we’re going
to say competition and bests prices for
consumers then we do have to look at the entire
industry and just not make it onus on one
particular entity which is the package stores
and not look at the distributors.

So if we’'re going to be honest with ourselves
and go into competition and try to get the best
prices for consumers then it would be having to
look at the entire industry. So I just want to
thank you for bringing that out and having that
background and seeing the distinction in the
proposal as to not only the impact on the
package stores but maybe what’s been left out of
it. So I just want to thank you for your
testimony and highlighting that.

CHUCK BOWE: Thank you.
SENATOR DOYLE: Thank you. Okay. Senator Witkos.

SENATOR WITKOS: Thank you. You testified, you’re in
a unique position that you have owned two
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package stores and both of them are in a plaza
where there is a grocery store. And what can
you tell the committee is your percentage of
beer sales in your package stores?

CHUCK BOWE: One store is 41 percent the other store

is 44 percent beer of my total gross sales. I
will tell you that when I worked for the beer
wholesalers with the chain stores made up about
12 percent of our overall sales as a wholesaler.

So if Stop and Shop has 94 stores or 92 stores
selling beer and Big Y has 27 stores selling
beer, they sell an awful lot of beer in those
locations to make up 12 percent which I believe
now is closer to 16 percent of the overall
State’s beer sales.

SENATOR DOYLE: Any further questions?

REP.

Representative Taborsak.

TABORSAK: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. How are you
doing today?

CHUCK BOWE: Very good.

REP.

TABORSAK: I just wanted to understand a little
bit more your situation with your stores being
located where they are and I'm curious to find
out if you know if this law were to pass -- if
this proposal were to pass which would allow for
those grocery stores that you described to get
into the package store business.

Would they in theory be able to open a store in

your same plaza or would zoning in your -- in
your town prohibit that? I'm trying to get a
feel for someone -- you’re in this like -- it’s

not hypothetical for you, it’s a real situation
that I was thinking, you know, local zoning
might play a role in making sure that you
wouldn’t wind up having, grocery store,
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grocery’s store liquor store and your liquor
' store in the same plaza.

And I'm wondering if you know if your local
planning and zoning rules would prohibit that
from happening. Do you have any idea?

CHUCK BOWE: I do know. And the local zoning laws do
not prohibit that so technically yes they could
either hollow out a piece of their store and put
a liquor store in there with a separate entrance
or just open one up in an empty spot in the
plaza. With the medallion system being able to
move a license from one town to another they
could go to an area like -- that’s under
development and is someone is going out of
business, take that permit and move it right in
the same parking lot as I am. So yes it does
make me nervous.

REP. TABORSAK: Thanks and for clarifying that.

SENATOR DOYLE: Thank you. Any -- Senator Kissel.

' SENATOR KISSEL: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. While I
was thinking I came up with a question. You --

I know you don‘t like the bill. I’'m assuming

you don’t like the idea of Sunday sales which
seems to be moving off the table.

But you pointed out the problem that you have
with distribution, sort of monopolistic
territory and if there’s winner and losers in
the bill before us this afternoon. And that you
as the retailer of the package you’re in the
least competitive position and sort of like your
rock is getting bored by this bill way more than
anybody else.

And I appreciate that. 1I'm very concerned about
trying to change the playing field such that
large powerful entities can really hurt you.
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That’'s not the goal. On the other hand we have
another group out there that’s testified this
afternoon that had a bill before us in the last
few years and that’s the convenience stores, and
you know their pitch is well we’re small too, 80
percent of us are just single owner, you know
they’re mom and pop convenience stores as
opposed to mom and pop package stores.

And I'm wondering -- I heard you loud and clear
when it came to your concerns about
distribution, wholesalers, price reductions
being able to really hurt you but what’s your
feeling about convenience stores coming before
us?

CHUCK BOWE: Well convenience stores are just what
they are, convenient. When I worked for a beer
distributor a large percentage of their sale
which I -- it’s been awhile, it’s been almost
eight, ten years since I’'ve worked there --
between 30 and 40 percent were in single serve
items. Twelve ounce, 16 ounce, 24 ounce cans,
bottles, what have you, 40 ounce. That’s what
they sell. It might be the number three SKU in
their overall mix of products. But it’s all to
go service. It’s all open it up and drive.

I mean it’s even -- you know I just came back
from Florida and the convenience stores do sell
beer down there. But if you look at their
convenience packages it’'s two doors of pretty
much single serve beer. They sell some 12 pack
cans. They sell some 18 pack cans but the bulk
of it is single serve. And it is --it’s beer to
go. So someone called it road soda, I don’'t
know who that was but that is what that is.

SENATOR KISSEL: So are you less concerned about it
from a competition perspective and what you’re
saying to us is that we should be more concerned
about it as a public safety issue?
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‘ CHUCK BOWE: Well public safety is obviously number
one and that’s something that we have to be
concerned about every single day. I heard one
of the convenience store people testify that
they got a chance to see if the guy can put the
nozzle in the hole.

I don’t think that’s true but I mean if you'’re
sitting 50 feet away from the gas pump I don’t
think the guy’s looking out the window to see if
you’re going to get the nozzle in the gas tank.
But I do know this, when you come to the counter
with your 12 pack of beer or bottle of wine or
bottle of liquor we will not serve you. And
it’s not just us. That’s not a policy. That's
the law. We will not serve you if you're
inebriated or appear to be inebriated. We
won't.

So it’s a one on one, face to face contact. We
don’t wait to see if you can make it to your

car. We don’t wait to see if you made it from
' your car to our front door. When you get to the
front counter the service is refused. Period.

No questions asked. Have a nice day. Come back
tomorrow when you’re sober.

So public safety is a major thing. Are the
convenience stores a competition? Of course.
Any can of beer that’s sold somewhere else now
becomes a competitor. No one wants to see that.
I will tell you this, bottle redemption is a
major issue for me as it is for most liquor
stores. A very large percentage of our back
rooms go to beer redemption because you buy a
case of beer, give them your bottles back.

When you buy a case at Stop and Shop you don’t
bring it back to Stop and Shop. I see toco many
people standing in front of those machines,
feeding those cans in front of there. They
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don’t do it. They come into my store with that
case or two cases that they purchased and they
leave them on the floor and said hey I’'ve got
two cases.

We give them the $1.22-- 43 whatever it is back
and they hopefully will buy a 12 pack or 30 pack
and be on their way. But many times you see a
Big Y, Stop and Shop, A&P whatever sticker on
the side of it because that’s where they
purchased it. So I don’'t think you'’re going to
see the conveniences stores returning --
redeeming bottles. They don’t now.

They don’'t take back your water or your Dasani
or your other issues that they sell. You don't
bring that into the counter when you buy your
gas and say give me my nickel back, right
because they don’t take them back. They're
supposed to take them back but they really
don't.

It’'s not part of their business. They bring
them back to me or they bring them back to
another redemption area that’s set up to do it.
So you’'re just going to create another place
that can sell beer and not redeem it and put the
burden back on the liquor store to redeem even
more cans that they don’t sell.

SENATOR KISSEL: Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

SENATOR DOYLE: Thank you. Any further questions

REP.

from the committee? Seeing none, thank you very
much. Representative Baram. Oh wait.
Representative Baram. I’'m sorry.

BARAM: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Two questions.
Since you brought up the issue of redeeming
bottles is it correct that the distributor pays
for the redemption of bottles and then pass that
back onto the consumer who returns the bottle
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for the rebate for the bottle. Isn’t the
‘ distributor the one that’s actually paying for
that?

CHUCK BOWE: I have to pay for the employee to redeem
the bottle, pack it up in 24 pack bottle or a
particular case that they take cans in. So yes,
technically the nickel’s not mine and it'’s not
theirs either. 1It’s a pass really.

So it’s just a way to collect the can but I
still have to do it. Now in one of my stores I
rent an 1,100 square foot sorpa at 20 dollars a
square foot per month to house these redemption
bottles. I don’t really enjoy them. I’'m not
looking forward to take them back more than I
already sell.

REP. BARAM: I'm not suggesting there isn’t a cost to
you I'm just talking about the actual nickel
redemption.

CHUCK BOWE: The nickel is a pass through.

‘ REP. BARAM: It’s a pass through. Okay. And then
the other thing is with the Governor’s proposed
compromise this morning whereby under the
medallion system he would still recognize the
population numbers for towns so you can only
have so many stores in a particular locality or
community does that in any way make you feel
better about the medallion system? And is that
hope to small package owners?

CHUCK BOWE: I guess I feel better about it but I
still don’'t feel good about it. I mean being
able to permits from one town to another, you
know, you could get these things moving back and
forth pretty regularly and everyone is going to
look to exit out of the areas they might be
living in and don’t like and you’ll be left with
areas with no ability to purchase alcohol.
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REP. BARAM: Well I guess that raises the question if

in town A there would be permitted five package
stores and there’s only four, under the
medallion system as you may understand it, could
a person start a brand new store without buying
a medallion because there’s one slot open and
then apply to the State for a new medallion?

Or is it your understanding once the initial
medallions are issued that’s it. It doesn’'t --
it doesn’t matter how many slots may be open in
a particular locality.

CHUCK BOWE: It’s my impression that once the bill

goes through medallions are not going to be
issued for five years. There'’s some moratorium
on the issue of medallions. So that the current
medallions will have some value.

But you know your value -- for instance my town
has an open permit. Right, there’s enough
population to support supposedly another permit.
So someone likes the idea of moving to Groton, I
don’t know why they would but they do. So they
take a permit out of New London and they move it
over to Groton and they open up a store. No, I
don’t think that’s a good idea. I don’t.

SENATOR DOYLE: Thank you. Any further questions?

Senator Leone.

SENATOR LEONE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Just one

quick question as listen to your testimony you
mentioned that you have a large facility in
order to process the redemption of the bottling
returns.

Was -- was that a decision made for that
specific reason because of the increase in
redemption or was that something that you had
prior to and that just became an extra burden?
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CHUCK BOWE: No, I actually signed a lease for that
particular -- it was a Liberty Tax that went out
of business and I took over that spot. And 85
percent of that is bottle redemption. And a
large percentage of that is the bottles that
come back from the supermarkets in town and that
was because the machines were never working
properly --

SENATOR LEONE: Right.

CHUCK BOWE: -- people were coming in. I just
couldn’t handle the amount of empties. I’'m
probably one of the few stores that’s upside
down. If I sell 100 cases of beer I redeem 200.
It’'s -- I mean it’'s -- the volume of returns
that we take in is staggering.

SENATOR LEONE: So that was actually an extra burden
having to purchase that facility.

CHUCK BOWE: It was an extra burden and it’'s an
extremely high rent and I pay (inaudible)
charges and everything else on that particular
facility. 1It’s just another -- it’s the next
store front down.

SENATOR LEONE: And you can’t collect -- because you
as you mention it’s a pass through.

CHUCK BOWE: That'’'s correct. You do -- I mean
technically you get a penny and a half a can for
processing but I mean that penny and a half per
can’'s been on their since day one. There’s no
been no increase for the redemption amount that
the liquor store gets or anybody else for that
matter. '

SENATOR LEONE: Okay. All right I think that’'s
something to look into for if not now another
time but I appreciate that. Thank you.
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CHUCK BOWE: Very good.

SENATOR DOYLE: Thank you. Any further questions
from the committee? Seeing none, thank you.

CHUCK BOWE: Thanks for your time.

SENATOR DOYLE: If you happen to offer up expertise
you get drilled with other questions. Thank
you.

CHUCK BOWE: Thank you.

SENATOR DOYLE: All right the next speaker is Senator
Prague. After Senator Prague it’s Kevin
Pimenthal then Representative Kokuruda, then
John Nijaime, Representative Dan Carter, Michael
Cimini, Peter Bergon, Daniela Tristine,
Dominique Alamo and Craig Turner. Good
afternoon, Senator Prague.

SENATOR PRAGUE: For the record I'm Senator Edith
Prague. I represent the 19 senatorial district.
I am here to strongly oppose the Governor’s bill
5021. Not only are the package stores owners in
“my district opposed to this but there is a
section in this bill that I find appalling.

Let me talk about the package store owners, you
know, the ones I have heard from they work six
days a week. You know if -- if I want to have a
party on Sunday I can go down on Saturday and
buy whatever I need for that party on Sunday.
These folks would like one day off to spend with
their family. And it’s not a money maker for
them to stay open on Sunday.

They have to pay people to come in and take care
of the business. And you know, it’s another
headache for them to deal with and it takes them
away from their families. But besides that
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there is a section in here that allows
convenience stores to sell beer. For years and
years this legislature has been fighting drunk
driving.

You know our attempt to discourage people from
drinking and driving is something that you know
we hope will continue so that people will just
stop drinking and driving. And yet in this bill
it makes beer available.

If somebody pulls into a convenience store if
they pull into to buy gas and then they run into
the convenience store to buy something they need
and there’s beer there that they can buy. I
especially worry about that because then they
get back in their car and take off with the beer
in the car and it could be very tempting for

. them to open up a can or a bottle and drink the

beer.

Now I worry about teenagers pulling in to buy
gas for their car and running in to get a six
pack. So I don’t see anything in this bill
that’'s a redeeming feature that would make me as
it is currently written even consider supporting
it.

I'm hoping that this committee will seriously
consider the consequences of opening up number
one convenience stores to selling beer and
number two the hardships this bill places on
small package store owners. Whatever. Thank
you for the opportunity to testify.

SENATOR DOYLE: Thank you, Senator Prague. Any

REP.

questions? Representative Rebimbas.

REBIMBAS: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And thank you
Senator Prague, for being here today and
testifying on this behalf. And I think you
highlighted a point to me that I was shocked the
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last time that Sunday sales came before us but
this bill specifically is I was shocked that
MADD and if I'm not mistaken didn’t testify last
time and I'm on their mailing list. And I
actually reached out inquiring why they didn’'t
speak up because drunk driving is of concern.

And I'm not saying that any particular component
of this bill is pro or against necessarily drunk
driving. I’'m not even making the argument for
them but it has to do with alcohol. And I think
it’s irresponsible when you have organizations
out there that are the watchdogs for various
areas of social issues at least not to speak up
regarding these things. It almost seems like
it’s picking and choosing which items that they
may want to then, you know take on the
forefront.

But I think any legislation related to alcohol
should have a say from an organization like that
because it is a social concern and one that you
highlighted regarding the hard work that this
legislature has dealt with in many, many years.

So I just wanted to thank you for pointing that
out and I, you know wish that these
organizations would be a little bit more vocal
when needed regarding real issues before us and
helping us make our decisions as well. So thank
you for your testimony.

SENATOR PRAGUE: Thank you, Representative Rebimbas.
I was shocked that MADD didn’t take a position
against this bill to tell you the truth. Over
the years I have worked with MADD on several
issues. I have a great deal of respect for the
work that they do but I was shocked and
disappointed that they didn’t speak against this
bill. I'm sure they had their reasons for not -
- for what they did but whatever I didn’t expect
that at all.
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SENATOR DOYLE: Senator Witkos.

SENATOR WITKOS: Thank you. Senator, I'm -- as you
know I'm a big defender of enforcing drunk
driving laws and I always have concerns of
whenever we oppose legislation that would
enhance somebody’s ability to get behind the
wheel of a car after they’ve been drinking.

But I tried to do some research allowed a couple
of years ago for people who don’t finish a
bottle of wine in a restaurant take that with
them and I didn’'t see any increase in DWI
statistics. Nor did I see an increase in DWI
statistics when we allowed the package stores to
remain open until nine o’clock.

I know most -- it seems like most package stores
now only do that on Thursday, Friday and
Saturday nights even though they have the option
to stay open all week long. How -- what
argument can be made for other than a
convenience of getting at that if convenience
stores are allowed to sell alcohol that there
may be more instances of drunk driving when they
themselves have testified that if anybody comes
to the window or inside the store to purchase
something that they would be denied just as they
would be denied in a package store.

I mean just because it’s this type of business I
don’t think necessitates that there’s going to
be an increase in drunk driving because there’s
more locations for the alcohol to be sold.

SENATOR PRAGUE: No Senator Witkos, I just think it
makes it easily available. Most of the
convenience stores also have a -- have gas
pumps. I particularly worry about teenagers
pulling in for gas and running in to get a six
pack.
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If I remember correctly in reading this bill it
also allows liquor establishments to stay open
later instead of closing at a reasonable hour,
it extends their hours of staying open. Who
needs that for people to stay at bars and
consume more alcohol and then get in their cars
and get back on the road? What a disaster.

SENATOR DOYLE: Thank you. Any further questions
from the committee? Thank you, Senator Prague.

SENATOR PRAGUE: Thank you, Senator Doyle.

SENATOR DOYLE: See you tomorrow. See you tomorrow
bright and early. Next speaker is Kevin
Pimenthal, then Representative Kokuruda, then
John Nijaime, Representative Dan Carter, Mike
Cimini, Peter Bergon, Daniela Tristine,
Dominique Alaimo, Craig Tuner, it looks like Jim
Rinsford.

Is Kevin Pimenthal here? It doesn’t look like
it. Okay. Next speaker then is Representative
Kokuruda here? Representative, thank you.

REP. KOKURUDA: Good afternoon and thank you, you got
it right. It is Kokuruda.

SENATOR DOYLE: Yeah, I was -- I apologize. I hope I
got it.

REP. KOKURUDA: You did fine. You did fine.

SENATOR DOYLE: I can thank Senator Witkos for the
help.

REP. KOKURUDA: Senator Doyle, Senator -- JigLS—JLL

Representative Taborsak, Senator Leone, Senator
Witkos and Representative Baram and
Representative Rebimbas -- those are tough names
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too by the way -- and members of the general law
committee.

I come before you today to voice my opposition
to H.B. 5021. Over the last year we have talked
about doing more for small businesses in
Connecticut recognizing the numbers of jobs
created by these businesses.

The bipartisan jobs bill we passed in October
did much to foster the growth and encourage new
business to open in our State. This bill is
totally counter to all we have tried to do in
supporting small business growth. In my town of
Madison seven independent package store owners
are threatened by provisions of this bill and
they’re worried about their future. Governor
Malloy’s Office tells us that this bill will
modernize Connecticut’s liquor laws so that
Connecticut will be more competitive. Local
independent package stores won’'t be more
competitive, they’ll be closed.

My local business owners don’'t know what to do
about resigning leases, buying new equipment or
in case of one young entrepreneur realizing his
dream of finally buying his boss out and owning
his package store on his own. This bill supports
big business -- big box stores and encourages
chain stores to take over the industry.

Our independent liquor stores dot our Main
Streets and are part of each of our communities.
These business owners obey our law, pay their
taxes and donate to their towns civic
organizations. This bill is allowing quantity
discounts and doing this gives an unfair
advantage to big box stores.

The quantity discounts large stores will have
the ability to sell alcoholic products at much
lower prices than the small retailers. The
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medallion system as proposed by Governor Malloy
will accelerate the closing of small package
stores. And I know there’s been revisions as of
today so hopefully that -- those revisions will
continue.

I have met with several of my local package
store owners. Most of them came here today,
took time off from their day and running their
businesses. Each of these business owners and
their employees oppose this bill.

The changes proposed in this bill in pricing,
licensing and ownership rules will hurt them
and all independent package store owners
throughout Connecticut. While S.B. 50-- 5021
gives consideration to increased tax revenues
and to greater availability to the consumer it
does not assess the impact on public health and
safety on -- due to greater access, cheaper
prices and greater consumption.

I respectfully urge you to protect these small
business and the Connecticut residents and not
support this bill. Thank you for your
consideration.

SENATOR DOYLE: Perfect timing.
REP. KOKURUDA: Okay.

SENATOR DOYLE: Perfect. Any questions from the
committee? Seeing none, thank you very much

REP. KOKURUDA: Thank you.

SENATOR DOYLE: All right next speaker is John
Nijaime. I hope I didn’t mispronounce it.
John, I'm sorry if I did. Okay. He’s here.
Good. John. Okay. Next after John will be
Representative Dan Carter, then Mike Cimini,
Peter Berdon, Daniela Tristine, Dominique
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Alaimo, Craig Turner, Jim Rinsfield, and Jay
Polp. Thank you, John.

JOHN NIJAIME: Good afternoon, Senator Doyle,
Representative Taborsak, and committee.
Representative Taborsak, first I’'d like to thank
you for returning my phone call a couple weeks
ago. We spoke on the phone. I’'m here to oppose
Bill 50210 and after watching everything and
Iistening to everything go down today my speech
kind of went out the window so I'm going to kind
of ad 1ib a little bit.

We have people who work for us and our employees
are kind enough to make the correct business
decisions so that our -- our businesses will
thrive. Job security is as important to them as
it is for you and for me. If this bill passes
the State will be catering to the lobbyists and
big box stores.

This will make it very difficult for us to
compete against their buying power and without a
doubt endanger the livelihood of small business
owners throughout the State and the people who
we employ. My next point on this is safety. I
would like to remind all of you that years ago
our hours and operations were scaled back from
closing at 11 P.M. to eight P.M.

The reason for that is people were getting hurt.
Stores were being robbed, people were murdered.
I don’'t need to be put in harm’s way and neither
does my staff. Today our hours of operation
provide a reasonable amount of time for our
customers to purchase what they need. We’'re
open from eight in the morning until nine at
night. If you can’t get liquor within 13 hours
you have an issue, not us.

To expand the hours until ten P.M. makes us more
vulnerable to crimes and possibly become an
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enabler to those who probably need no more
alcohol. Our next point is about border stores.
The majority of customers going over the border
are not only going on Sundays. That is
misleading because they also go every other day
of the week as well. The truth is people are
traveling over to border stores because of
Connecticut’s high alcohol tax which is imposed
on each bottle or can that we sell. 1It’s on
gasoline. 1It’s on cigarettes. 1It’'s on
everything. 1It’s not what we sell, it’s what we
sell it for.

The proposed bill would allow convenience stores
and gas stations to sell beer. Let me remind
you again we sell a controlled substance. 1If
I'm driving through a gas station and I want a
beer for a roadie I'm going to grab it and I’'m
going to get in my car and drive away.

Why would we give them more accessibility to
have more alcohol related access but yet we're
granting them more accessibility to a controlled
substance. These changes will at some point
bring fatal injury to someone in our families or
yours. Would that still justify the changes?

Is our tax dollar worth that? Next I would like
to address our permits.

At this point they are scrutinized by the
Department of Consumer Protection who helps us
to keep liquor in reasonable hands and
responsible hands. If you eliminate their jobs
and the change of two permit regulations to six
medallions you are now catering again to the
lobbyists, Costcos, Wal-Mart's and big grocery
stores.

If you start issuing permits as proposed in this
new law it’s only a matter of time before these
permits get issued to those megastores. They
will be the only ones who can handle the
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immediate growth because they have the finances
to do so. Also allowing more permits will
eventually create a small death -- a slow death
to small business in Connecticut.

The result will be more people on our
unemployment line so the extra taxes that you
make will not help the State it will just
continuously pay for someone else’s unemployment
because we’ve eliminated their jobs. 1In closing
I'd like to ask you to take a hard look both
morally and ethically on what your voting on and
what the long term result will be. Think about
the jobs you’re going to take away and the
people who will be collecting unemployment if
this bill passes -- passes in its entirety.

I ask all of you why in today’s economy of eight
percent unemployment would our State pass a bill
that will eventually close small businesses such
as mine. The small business in the heart, soul,
and largest employers in our country and great
State, wouldn’t it be best to help us survive
instead of putting our jobs in jeopardy?

SENATOR DOYLE: Thank you. Any questions from the
committee? Representative Tallarita.

REP. TALLARITA: Thank you. You’re a package store
owner. Is that correct?

JOHN NIJAIME: That is correct.

REP. TALLARITA: And do you sell single beers in your
package store?

JOHN NIJAIME: I do sell single beers.
REP. TALLARITA: Thank you.

SENATOR DOYLE: Thank you. Representative Taborsak.
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SENATOR DOYLE: Okay the next speaker is Mike Cimini,
Peter Berdon. Is Michael here? Yes he is.
Okay. Mike Cimini, then Peter Berdon, Daniela
Trinstine, Dominique Alaimo, Craig Turner, Jim
Rinsford, Jay Polk, Allen Wilensky and Nicholas
Hein I think or Richard Lemay I guess one of
them. Anyway, Michael. Thank you.

MICHAEL CIMINI: Thank you. Thanks to the chairmen H& 50&[
and the ranking members and the other members of
the committee. I know I have three minutes so

I'll try and go through my points quickly but
I'd be happy to answer any questions.

I was kind of born and raised a Connecticut boy,
grew up in Prospect. Started in Waterbury and
then in prospect for most of my life but after
school I ended up in Massachusetts, taxes were
cheaper. My Massachusetts experience is running
large liquor stores there.

I used to own Yankee Sprits which you’ve heard
some testimony on. I actually sold that
business a couple of years ago in part because
the State of Massachusetts put sales tax on the
business and we lost about ten percent of our
volume not just in that store but in the store
on the Rhode Island border.

So to escape those tax situations I took half of
my money off the table, put it in other
industries. I took the other half and I put it
half in Massachusetts and half in Connecticut.
So I'm now a liquor store operator in both
states. One thing that you have to understand
when you’'re talking about it’'s just like
Massachusetts or it’s just like somewhere else
is it’s not. 1It’s very much a case of apples
and oranges.

I believe it was Senator Kissel who was
referencing double the number of permits per
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people. 1It’s almost triple the number of
permits per people in Connecticut. Many have
spun a gloom and doom scenario. I don’t know
how gloom and doom it will be but I do know that
if you add that number of licenses in you’re
going to see increase competition that’s going
to force good paying jobs either out of the
state or to lesser paying jobs. Get back to
that in a minute. You’re also going to create
tremendous pressure on safety. 1In the states
that --

I believe it was Senator Witkos who was
referencing, it was organic. Licenses grew to
meet that need. If you add a whole bunch of new
licenses you now have a whole bunch of new
license operators to get out there. Many of my
colleagues feel the convenience stores don’t do
as good of job as policing the sales as us. I
think that'’s probably not true.

I think there’s a percentage of us and a
percentage of them who fail. And the more of us
you put on the street that percentage creates a
larger absolute number that fails. I also think
that their employees tend to have less skin in
the game because they can employ 16 and 17 year
olds. We don’t. We have people that are going
to be more responsible about that. But again
that’'s not at the point of sale. That’s out the
back door. That'’s you know, in a Pepsi 12 pack.

Someone had referenced that the same is true of
our industry as others and that the jobs can
come or go just like in any industry.
Absolutely. Just like pharmacies. Just like
hardware stores. Just like small mom and pop
grocers. Those jobs are not there anymore.
Look at the number of jobs -- let me rephrase
that -- look at the dollars being paid to jobs
in hardware stores today because the big boxes
control it. It’s just not there.
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REP.

Something we learned in retail a long time ago,
it’s easier to keep an existing customer than it
is to get a new one. So we were here first. We
were the ones that had this advantage. Other
people opened their business knowing what the
laws were and you’re trying to change ours.
Lastly the advantage -- the comparatives and
I've put this in my written testimony if you’ve
got it -- it’s really taxes and the bottle bill.

You can get everything you want if you reduce
the number of stores which you will do through
competitive pressure but if you leave the taxes
and the bottle bill on people will flow over the
borders.

TABORSAK: Thank you for your testimony, Mr.
Cimini. Are there any questions? Senator
Witkos.

SENATOR WITKOS: Thank you. Mike you heard earlier

from Senator Musto who had a question to the --
the distributors and the wholesalers not really
having any -- any skin in the game here and the
focus seemed to be on the retailers.

And you’'re in a unique position both by owning
and operating stores in Massachusetts and
Connecticut. And how beyond the retail levels
do they compare, if we want to be competitive
with our neighboring states?

MICHAEL CIMINI: Well that’s an excellent question.

The beer territories that you’ve heard about
limits competition whereas in Massachusetts if I
have stores in multiple beer territories I can
transship those goods to create a pricing
competition. Also you franchise laws. Your
franchise laws that protect the wine and spirits
wholesalers allow for basically price collusion.
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That happens there. There are other things.

And then in terms of suppliers and Diageo, of
course it’s good for them. They’'re going to
sell more and they’re not going to have any
other cost of overhead. By the way, nor will
they add an additional -- a single additional
job. They’'re a 16 billion dollar company.
They’'re not going to add a job based on what you
sell in Connecticut. They sell to China. You
know, we’re just not there.

REP. TABORSAK: Any other questions for Mr. Cimini.
Cimini? Okay. Senator.

SENATOR KISSEL: Thank you, Chairman Taborsak. First
of all I told my friend and colleague
Representative Rebimbas, either I’'m getting old
or you just seem way too young to have owned,
you know, Yankee Spirits.

You said it’s the bottle bill and taxes and
that'’'s basically it. Are there other areas and
you may have responded to Senator Witkos
regarding this but if you could point to one
other major area where we are just not
competitive with Massachusetts. And along with
that I have -- my colleague -- my constituents
and myself have long believed that Massachusetts
poaches our people.

They advertise across the border. They actually
reach out and they -- they’re trying to do
everything they can to pull Connecticut folks
over across and just, you know, without
betraying any, you know, commercial secrets can
you expand upon that. Because I really think
that, you know, they’re eating our lunch and
they’'re laughing about it all the way to the
bank.

MICHAEL CIMINI: Absolutely. When I owned Yankee
Spirits not only did we advertise in the
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Hartford Courant but we sued the State of Rhode
Island to advertise in the Providence Journal
and won that suit and pulled Rhode Island
customers over. But I'm sorry it is the taxes.
I mean I won’'t quote Bill Clinton because some
of you would like that and some of you wouldn't
but it’s the taxes and again I won’'t follow with
the offensive statement. That’s what makes the
price difference. The -- the suppliers sell at
the same cost of acquisition to the wholesalers.

The wholesalers make the same gross profit
within a couple of points in the two states.

And the retailers make the same gross profit.

To be honest when I moved to Connecticut I
thought geez, minimum pricing, I’'ll make a point
or two higher gross profit. I make point one
five percent more gross profit in Connecticut
than I do in Massachusetts. So virtually
undistinguishable. There isn’t really anything
else.

The bottle bill again is more of a factor of
Rhode Island which doesn’t have one but I owned
a store in Attleboro, Massachusetts and we were
border raiders into Rhode Island just like the
Sturbridge store is to Connecticut and we were
at a competitive disadvantage because even
though our beer pricing was a little bit cheaper
the $1.20 at that time on a 25 dollar 30 pack
ate up that advantage. There really isn’'t
anything else.

I mean those are the differences. The cost of
acquisition is roughly the same for these -- for
these manufacturers and then it just gets eaten
up in taxes. You put a tax on a tax as the
senator or representative referenced earlier and
to be honest we all put profit margin on that
tax.
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So the excise tax which is buried below it gets
tacked on with the profit margin at the
wholesaler because it is the cost of doing
business. It is -- you have to hold your funds
to pay that tax. And all of those get ratcheted
up and create a price disparity.

SENATOR KISSEL: Okay. And on the Sundays sales
because there’s always this argument and it
seems like Sunday sales is probably an issue
that’s probably leaving the scene or hopefully
leaving the scene but, you know, someone like
Carroll Hughes will say you go up to some of
those larger stores that are -- what did you
call them, border raiders?

MICHAEL CIMINI: That’s correct.

SENATOR KISSEL: Yeah. A term of art I just learned
this afternoon. Border raiders. I knew they
were border raiders. I’'m hoping Connecticut
could be a border raider someday but it could be
a wait. But -- okay so there’s plenty of
Connecticut license plates in these parking lots
seven days a week but it strikes me that
convenience especially on weekends, especially
with harried schedules and there’s only so much
time to go out shopping.

I mean is it -- do you have a position
regarding Sunday sales such that if Connecticut
actually adopted it there would be some
additional sales in Connecticut if not
predicated on cost and given the tax situation
and differential but at least predicated on mere
convenience and that, you know, I can take 15
minutes and just drive the road. That'’s much
better than me taking an hour and taking care of
that business.

MICHAEL CIMINI: In an apples to apples environment,
absolutely. I mean, it makes great sense for
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the State to want Sunday sales. It makes great
sense for the suppliers to want Sunday sales.
There are additional sales whether that's
because someone doesn’t go to Massachusetts or
because they ran out on Saturday and they want
to get that. But the costs are born by the
retailers. Now you can make that decision.

You can say the retailers have to bear those
costs, that'’s what we want for the convenience
of our consumers. But what happened to us in
Massachusetts was Sunday wasn’t our second
busiest day as someone testified at least for
Yankee Spirits. It was our third busiest day;
Saturday then Friday then Sunday.

And we didn’t lose that business on a Saturday
as you’'ve heard some rumors. But we did lose
that business on a Monday, Tuesday and
Wednesday. And we were already skeleton
staffed. We could not reduce the amount of
staff on Monday, Tuesday and Wednesday because
it was already pretty thin.

But clearly the State will make more money
because they’ll get there. And if you want to
be a border raider I'm going to speak out of
school from the Connecticut Package Store
Association but start in the morning because
Massachusetts isn’'t eating a lot of your lunch
on Sundays because they don’t open until noon.

So really the game’s at one or the game’s at
four who is going to go up to Massachusetts at
noon and shop and then hustle their way back
here? They're going to shop where it’s more
convenient or go up on Monday, Tuesday,
Wednesday, Thursday, Friday, Saturday.

SENATOR KISSEL: Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
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SENATOR DOYLE: Thank you. Any further --

REP.

Representative Rebimbas.

REBIMBAS: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Good
afternoon.

MICHAEL CIMINI: Good afternoon.

REP.

REBIMBAS: I think you bring a very interesting
perspective obviously being a business owner in
both states. I’d love to know your opinion on
the medallion system because I'm still not
convinced we have enough information as to what
type of a system it really is.

And the fact that no one’s been able to confirm
that this is used in the liquor industry opposed

to a taxicab industry. I'm not convinced that
it’s a good thing. So as a package store owner
in two states how -- what is your opinion

regarding the medallion system as proposed?

MICHAEL CIMINI: I'm not in favor of the medallion

system at all. I think it’s interesting -- not
only am I in two states but I’'ve been fortunate
enough to be recognized by a number of national
organizations in our organization so I know
retailers from all over the country.

I haven’'t found one of these either in our
industry. It seems to me as a representative
said to me it’s a solution in search of a
problem. We have equity in our permits. We can
sell our businesses as long as there’s no open
license for a good amount of goodwill.

And I've also been told the medallions were
supposed to be the carrot for the retailers.
None of the retailers that I've spoken to in
Connecticut which is about 100 at this point see
it as a carrot. They see it as another stick.
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REP. REBIMBAS: Thank you for your testimony.
SENATOR DOYLE: Thank you. Senate Leone.

SENATOR LEONE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Just a
quick question since you are in two states and
as you mentioned border raiders, people going
across the State to make purchases. Where --
where do you get the -- which one -- which side
is more profitable, the Massachusetts store or
the Connecticut store in terms of sales?

MICHAEL CIMINI: Well so I described earlier the
profit margin is virtually the same within point
one five percent so in terms of making a profit
in each individual sale it is -- it is
absolutely very, very close but if your question
is which ones are overall make more money than
its Massachusetts because we have one license
for 7,500 people instead of one license for
2,500 people.

So the largest store in Connecticut, and I don’'t
know what that is, it doesn’'t even approach the
tenth largest store in Massachusetts in terms of
volume of sales.

SENATOR LEONE: And I'm not -- I don’t know where
your locations are but are you capturing any
Connecticut residents in your Massachusetts
store on Sunday?

MICHAEL CIMINI: I no longer am. Again I moved to
the center of the State to get rid of not just
that pressure but the New Hampshire pressure
more importantly for me so I'm in Worcester,
Mass and Shrewsbury, Mass which is just to the
east of Worcester.

And I'm in two relatively urban locations so I
don’t have a lot of customers that drive a long
way to go anywhere else anymore.
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SENATOR LEONE: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

SENATOR DOYLE: Thank you. Any further questions?
Seeing none, thank you very much.

MICHAEL CIMINI: Okay. Thank you and the committee.

SENATOR DOYLE: Next speaker Peter Berdon. Is Mr.
Berdon here? Yes he is. Daniela Tristine,-
Dominique Alaimo, Craig Turner, Jim Rinsford,
Jay Polk, Allen Wilensky, Nicholas Heim and Mark
Wilson.

PETER BERDON: Good afternoon, Chairman Doyle,
Chairman Taborsak, vice chairs Leone, Baram,
ranking members Witkos and Rebimbas. My name is
Peter Berdon and I am the Executive Director of
the Wine and Spirits Wholesalers of Connecticut.
I am also a member of the advisory committee for
the Wine and Spirits Wholesalers of America,
served as its Chairman from 2009 through 2011.

I'm also an attorney in private practice with an
active beverage alcohol practice and I'm a
sustaining member of the National Association of
Beverage Licensing Attorneys. The members of
the WSWC purchase wine and spirits from
manufacturers and in turn market and distribute
those products to restaurants, bars and package
stores. In fact many of our customers are here
today.

The Wine and Spirits supports the subsidy
proposals to House Bill 5021 that Commissioner
Rubenstein outlined in his testimony earlier
today. Specifically we had identified several
major areas concern with the Governor’s original
proposal to this committee.
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These major concerns involved the following;
elimination of price posting for wholesalers and
posting of minimum bottle prices at the retail
level for all products, an immediate increase in
the number of liquor store licenses that could
be held by a single entity from two to nine and
also including grocery stores, allowing retail
sales below cost without limitation, and
elimination of the prohibition of price
discrimination and inducements and wholesaler
pricing independence.

After several weeks of good faith discussions

with representatives of OPM and the Governor’s
Office we reached a satisfactory result in our
negotiations of these very important issues to
our members. And it is for that reason we are
supporting this substitute proposal.

The WSWC views this as a work in progress and
works forward to working with this community --
this committee, the Governor'’'s Office and other
stakeholders in crafting the substitute language
for H.B. 5021. We understand that the committee
may have questions and concerns regarding the
bill in general and may seek to understand the
nature of the changes which we negotiated with
the Governor'’'s Office and we are certainly
looking forward to being a resource to the
committee regarding such issues. We have
submitted written testimony in further support
of our position. 1I’'d be happy to take any
questions.

SENATOR DOYLE: Thank you. Any questions from the
committee? Representative Reed.

REP. REED: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Good afternoon,
Peter.

PETER BERDON: Good afternoon, Representative.
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So are you fully onboard with enthusiasm?

This is a -- it is a compromise that we worked
out with the Governor'’s Office and -- and we are
happy to have been able to do so.

And so all -- all the refined language as you
understand it has already been submitted or are
there a few outstanding issues --

PETER BERDON: No.
REP. REED: -- that you’d like to see addressed?

PETER BERDON: No. As I understand it the language
has not been drafted. My understanding is that
Commissioner Rubenstein did talk to the points
in terms of principle as to the compromise. My
understanding is the language is going to take
some time to prepare.

So that’s why we still consider this to be a
work in progress in terms of getting that actual
language worked out among all the stakeholders.

REP. REED: Thank you for your testimony.
PETER BERDON: Thank you.

REP. REED: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
SENATOR DOYLE: Thank you. Senator Witkos.

SENATOR WITKOS: Thank you. Could you describe what
the wine and spirits in the wholesale market
what -- are they territorial bound or is it wide
open?

PETER BERDON: The wine and spirits wholesaler
business has developed differently historically
than the beer distribution has. Wine and
spirits tend to be distributed on a statewide
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basis. There is one exception. There are two
houses here in the State of Connecticut that
have basically split the State in half.

One which is Allen S. Goodman over in East
Hartford has the northern and eastern portion of
the State and Eder Brothers which is located in
West Haven, Connecticut has the southern
westerly portion of the State. They do tend to
carry sister brands. So in other words if you
look at their brand representation it is fairly
similar although not identical. The balance of
the wholesalers and there are 83 wholesalers in
this State. The balance of those wholesalers
are statewide for the most part.

It is -- it is -- the determination, it is
important to note that it’s the determination of
the supplier when they are selecting a
wholesaler as to the determination as to what
geographic area the wholesaler can distribute
in. 1It’s not the wholesaler who makes the
determination. It’s in fact the supplier who
makes the determination.

SENATOR WITKOS: Could I just do a quick follow up?
So you’'re saying two entities kind of -- you
kind of defined them as having a semi lock in a
territory could you just further expound on that
in the sense I mean is it like a county where
they have 100 percent exclusivity or just with
their brand names?

PETER BERDON: With respect to Eder Brothers and
Goodman?

SENATOR WITKOS: Yes. Just more detail so I
understand how it works.

PETER BERDON: Certainly. First off it’s important
to understand that in the wine and spirits side
of the business as opposed to the beer side of
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the business and again this is mostly true with
respect to spirits as opposed to even wine.
Most of those -- many of those appointments for
most of the major brands are done on what we
call the dual basis. 1It’s called dual.

And we are a significantly dualed marketplace as
compared to other marketplaces. If you were to
go north into Massachusetts, Massachusetts has a
very different distribution marketplace than
does Connecticut. There are two major wine and
spirits in those states and those two wholesale
houses tend to have exclusivity. In other words
they solely distribute single products within
each house. There’s no crossover in terms of
brands.

Here in Connecticut on the wine and spirits side
however a large portion of the spirits
businesses is dualed, tripled, quadrupled and
even sometimes there could be five houses
selling the same -- the same brand. And
obviously in those instances where you have
multiple houses selling the same brand there is
very significant supplier input as to how that
brand is marketed, how that brand is priced and
how that brand is distributed. There is on the
other side a lot of competition inter brand. So
in other words you have Absolute Vodka competing
with Grey Goose, competing with Shmirnoff. You
end up with that kind of competition.

With respect to the Eder Goodman issue again,
they do tend to carry a very similar portfolio
of brands but they’re not identical because they
are separate companies. It’s just historically
the way their appointments have been over time.

SENATOR WITKOS: But they don’t have any -- like say
it’s five town whatever the district they are,
they’re not the only exclusive supplier by any
law or rule or anything. It’s just --
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PETER BERDON: No and in fact they’re not. So by way

of example Allen S. Goodman who is located in
East Hartford will compete with Brescome Barton.
They will compete with Connecticut Distributors.
They will compete with Hartley and Parker. They
will compete with Opici and they will compete
with Winebow.

So they are competing with, you know five or six
other major wholesalers and another, you know 80
odd wholesalers so they’re just not competing
with Eder Brothers because Eder Brothers is in a
different portion of the State. So again where
Eder Brothers is down in the southern portion of
the State they’'re competing against that same
group of wholesalers.

SENATOR WITKOS: Oh so it’s just -- you just -- Eder

Brothers has decided just to sell in a certain
portion of the State itself. 1Is that fair to
say oOr no?

PETER BERDON: Yeah. What has happened over time is

there were more locally operated wholesale
operations on the wine and spirits side. So
historically what would happen is the supplier
would appoint a wholesaler on a county by county
basis. Eder Brothers had two locations.

One was in West Haven and one was in Greenwich
and so historically they had that portion of the
State. And so as they would gain appointments
they would concentrate their business in that
portion of the State. And so they’ve not seeked
-- sought to go outside of this.

SENATOR WITKOS: So that’s their business model?

PETER BERDON: That is their business model because

you have to go ahead and you have to be able to
distribute the product. You don’t want to -- if
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you're delivering in the southwestern corner of
the State take one truck and drop off, you know,
one case in the northeast corner some place. It
just wouldn’t make sense.

SENATOR WITKOS: Okay. Thank you for the help there.
SENATOR DOYLE: Representative Taborsak.

REP. TABORSAK: How you doing, Mr. Berdon? Quick
question for you and I’'m hoping maybe you can
just explain this for the committee. Section 17
in the -- in the Governor’s bill the new section
regarding floor stock allowances.

PETER BERDON: Yes.
REP. TABORSAK: Or depletion allowances.
Yes.

Can you -- can you explain the purpose of that?
Is that something that you’d be able to just --
so that people understand that, what that
addresses.

PETER BERDON: Sure. As I -- as I understand section
17--

Sorry to put you on the spot there.

No. ©Not at all. As I understand section 17 it
expands the depletion of floor stock allowances
to beer which we already have on the wine and
spirits wholesalers side. The provision also
attempts to set up a outside payment date by
which suppliers must reimburse wholesalers for
their depletion allowances.

The way the process works is a depletion
allowance you receive for the cases that you
sell during a given set time period. 1In order
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REP.

to get that money from the supplier you have to
do some paperwork, submit an invoice to the
supplier, there has to be a reconciliation of
credits back and forth and then the supplier
will remit payment back to the wholesaler.

That process takes some time and I think there
was some concern that that time period is overly
long in certain instances and so in order to
provide some protection to local wholesalers
here in Connecticut there was an attempt to
provide a requirement in there that would
provide an outside date by which payment should
be received.

TABORSAK: Okay. So that -- you -- so that'’s
not a provision that -- that you have a problem
with per se. 1It’'s sort of to correct a -- to
speed up a payment to wholesalers for this.

PETER BERDON: 1It’s not something we had a major

REP.

concern about. It’s not something quite frankly
that we addressed in any sort of significant
way. If the committee were to keep that
provision in we’re fine with that.

TABORSAK: Okay. Thank you for your
clarification.

SENATOR DOYLE: Representative Rebimbas.

REP.

REBIMBAS: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Good
afternoon.

PETER BERDON: Good afternoon, Representative.

REP.

REBIMBAS: Following Representative Taborsak’s
last question regarding items of concern, what
other items of concern do you have regarding
this bill?
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PETER BERDON: Well like I said in the beginning of

my testimony this was a compromise that we
worked out with the Governor’'s Office. You know
we'’'re going to stand by that -- that compromise
that we did enter into with the Governor’s
Office in terms of the major concerns that we
had with respect to the bill.

There’'s obviously some issues in terms of
finalizing drafting of language that we’re going
to be hopefully having input on, the issue of
quantity of discounts is certainly going to be
one of those issues that we’re going to look to
be having some additional input on. As well as
insuring that with respect to the points that
we’'ve raised that the language is appropriate.

REP. REBIMBAS: Okay. And I'm asking because
obviously for this committee it’s -- we have the
responsibility of now taking all the testimony
and trying to craft appropriate legislation. So
I did note the quantity discounts. What is your
position regarding the medallions system?

PETER BERDON: Frankly I -- not that we really have

an issue. It’s something that the package store
folks have to deal with. But I do practice in
the beverage alcohol area and I have to be
honest with you, now that the Governor’s Office
has conceded to the -- keeping the moratorium or
keeping the per capita limit of package store
licenses in place, I'm scratching my head as to
what the medallion system either adds or takes
away from what current law.

As many folks have commented a package store
owner has the ability to go ahead and sell their
business under the current system. It is a
little bit tricky because sometimes as a lawyer
we are forced to craft these purchase and sales
agreements regarding, you know, the intangible
property that’s being transferred.
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REP.

And so certainly the medallion system gives you
something that you can refer to. So in large
respects I see it quite honestly in many
respects as codifying or providing some sort of
structure to what already exists.

So I don’t see it as hurting the current
situation. I don’'t see it necessarily as
providing an advantage with the one exception
being that I'm not clear as to whether or not
the intent is to cap the current number of
licenses. So if the intent is to cap the
current number of licenses then it does change
things because even though you’re going to
maintain the per capita ratio for towns that are
under the limit currently if you’re not issuing
additional licenses it does provide something of
value to the package stores. But that was one
point I just wasn’t particularly clear on.

REBIMBAS: Okay. And just another quick
question as a follow up. Regarding the minimum
resale pricing and the redefinition of cost.

PETER BERDON: Sure.

REP.

REBIMBAS: Do you have an opinion regarding that
as to how that may impact the package stores or
the industry in general?

PETER BERDON: Certainly. And by way -- just by way

of clarity it’s important to note that
wholesalers do not dictate that minimum resale
price. Wholesalers are statutorily required to
post two prices. One is the posted bottle price
which is the price at which a wholesaler will
sell a single bottle of a product to a package
and we do do that.

We sell quite a few single bottles to package
stores believe it or not. Not all our products
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are sold by the case. We then also post a case
price for products for which a whole -- a
package store could purchase those products at
that particular price. Statutorily the posted
bottle prices have been defined as the package
stores cost.

There has been -- there is a statutorily
mandated split case charge that wholesalers must
impose on single bottles but it’s pennies a
bottle. What has happened over time is is that
posted bottle price when you compare it to a
single bottle purchased within a case that that
price differential has ranged anywhere from
pennies now to could be as high as 30 or 40
percent of the bottle depending upon how the
wholesalers want to try to manage their bottle
versus cases case business.

So it’s a matter of economics on the wholesaling
side. Certainly for those package store that
are buying items that have what we call a high
bottle which is a big differential between the
posted bottle price versus the cost of that unit
in a case. You know there is -- there is a
revenue stream in there for package stores that
they are accustomed to.

This bill will take away that -- that
protection. It will provide -- certainly
provide flexibility in terms of pricing for
package stores that they’ve not had before in
the past. And we recognize that. We also
recognize that the original bill as proposed had
absolutely no pricing floor whatsoever. So that
by way of example if somebody wanted to sell a
case of beer for three dollars they could go
ahead and do that.

We thought that that quite frankly was not
socially responsible. 1It’s not keeping in good
practices for the distribution of beverage
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alcohol. And we were also quite frankly fearful
that there would be large public companies that
would come into this State who could engage in
long term creditory pricing that would injure
our package store customer base. If you have to
recognize that the package stores are our
customers.

These are the people that our members sell to on
a day to day basis. And certainly the vitality
of their businesses is important because it
affect the vitality of our businesses. And so
we were very pleased that the Governor’s Office,
you know recognized that particular shortfall in
the original proposal and has agreed to put in
substitute language that would provide a floor -
- a pricing floor of actual cost.

It’'s the lesser of either actual cost or the
lowest posted price in a given month which would
basically be a package store’s replacement cost.
And then there’s a certain ability to have a
very limited number of loss leaders.

And again there’s also a floor there of ten
percent below that actual cost. So there is
definitely some pricing protections that have
been added back in under the substitute
proposal. We think that is a good thing for the
package stores and we’'re pleased that the
Governor’s Office consented to that.

And I certainly appreciate your testimony and
recognizing obviously some of the issues that
the package stores had with the original
proposal and certainly still some of the
challenges with the substitute language. Thank
you.

SENATOR DOYLE: Thank you. Any further questions
from the committee? Senator -- Representative
Baram.
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REP. BARAM: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. With regard to
the posted cost that you were just talking
about, who will calculate what that posted cost
is? And under the Governor's proposed bill,
will it be accessible to everybody so they know
what the game is? How much they can -- what the
floor is for charging?

PETER BERDON: The -- the system, as I understand it,

would require wholesalers to continue to publish
and file their pricing. So the current month's
price, the best price -- that second item that I
mentioned in terms of the new definition of cost
-- that will be a published -- a published
number. Anybody will be able to see that.

In terms of the actual cost of acquisition, that
is going to be a historically published price.
So you might not know exactly what that
particular store bought that particular item at
without looking at the invoices for that item.
But, certainly, you're going to know what the
range is because you'll have the opportunity to
look at the published prices.

And for those of you who aren't aware,
wholesalers in the state of Connecticut, do
publish a -- a monthly journal with all their
prices in it. And so any -- any retailer can go
into that book, look at any wholesaler's set of
pages and take a look at what their published

prices are. It is also -- since we are now
becoming a little bit technology savvy -- it is
available online so retailers can subscribe to
it -- a pricing service which will actually

search for the best price among all the
wholesalers for a class of goods. And so, in
those senses, it will be publically available.

SENATOR DOYLE: Senator Kissel.
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SENATOR KISSEL: Thank you very much, Chairman Doyle.
Mr. Berdon -- Attorney Berdon, good to see you.
PETER BERDON: Good to see you, Senator.

SENATOR KISSEL: It's a really complicated area --
the whole three-tier system. And as much as
I've been on this committee for a lot of years
and was on it many years ago. If you could,
just walk me through a little bit of how this is
done because this is going to help me put this
into perspective.

You have -- let's say, a bottle of Chianti --
what is it, 750 milliliters for a regular
bottle. It's -- it's manufactured over in
Italy.

PETET BERDON: Uh-huh.

SENATOR KISSEL: The first stop is what? The
importer? Or the --

PETER BERDON: No. Actually probably the first --
depending upon the size of the winery, the first
stop for that bottle is probably at an
aggregator because you're going to want to bring
over a full container of goods. So mechanically
that -- that bottle is going to go from a
winery. Depending upon the size of the winery,
it's going to go to an aggregator. If the
winery is large enough to provide a full
container or half container in terms of
shipping, it will just go directly to the
winery. It will then come over through on seas
transport into the United States. There will
be, most likely, an importer involved in that,
someone who is importing those products. That
importer may or may not directly sell to a -- a
wholesaler. The importer may in turn sell to
another United States distributor. The goods,
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if they're coming into New-England, will
probably land in -- in New Jersey -- possibly
Boston, but most likely New Jersey. From there
they'll be, again, transported and sold to a
licensed out-of-state shipper for the state of
Connecticut; that out-of-state shipper could or
could not be the importer; that out-of-state
shipper in turn would sell their goods to a
licensed wholesaler within the state of
Connecticut; that licensed wholesaler would take
the inventory of goods in, stock the goods here
in the state --

SENATOR KISSEL: Okay, hold on. I don't want to be
rude. I -- I love the fact that you're bringing
me all the way here. Now when you say the --
the transporter from New Jersey now is going to
bring it into Connecticut and then give it to
the wholesalers. Am I to now assume that this
would be one of the -- what is it 83 of you
folks?

PETER BERDON: Correct.

SENATOR KISSEL: Right so -- so after it lands
probably in New Jersey, probably not Boston,
it's transported up. It's going to now the next
step is one of your 83 members.

PETER BERDON: Correct.
SENATOR KISSEL: Okay. Continue.

PETER BERDON: They have previously been appointed on
the brand. The label has been registered with
the Department of Consumer Protection here in
the state of Connecticut, already in advance of
that; otherwise, you can't bring the product in.
The label has also been registered federally
with the TTB. The wholesaler takes the product
in --
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SENATOR KISSEL: Hold on one second. When you say
the "label has been registered" --

PETER BERDON: Certainly.

SENATOR KISSEL: -- let's say there's -- I don't know
-- Yellow Tail. Australia makes all different
kinds of Australian wines. When you say "the
label," is it each individual --

PETER BERDON: Yes.
SENATOR KISSEL: -- kind of wine --
PETER BERDON: Yes.

SENATOR KISSEL: -- or is it just, you know, all
wines, so to speak?

PETER BERDON: No, and the reason I'm laughing is
there actually is a big issue with Yellow Tail
where the guy I happen to handle -- I
represented the supplier on that particular
case. It was a error on registration of one of
the particular brands. So it's kind of ironic
that you picked that one up.

And so, yes, the answer is -- and in the case
with respect to Yellow Tail -- was there is
Yellow Tail Chardonnay and there's also a Yellow
Tail Reserve Chardonnay. The Reserve had been
doubly registered here in Connecticut twice and
the actual main brand had not been -- the
renewal had not been issued. So, yes, you have
to register every single brand which includes
varietal flavors. So in the context of wines,
chardonnay, chardonnay reserves -- two separate
label registrations.

In the context of spirits -- to use some name
brands: Absolut, Absolut Citron, all separate
label approvals.
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SENATOR KISSEL: Okay. Does that apply for beer,
too?

PETER BERDON: Yes.

SENATOR KISSEL: Okay. So it's like Sam Adams has
this different thing every couple of months.
All of those have --

PETER BERDON: Sam Light, correct.

SENATOR KISSEL: -- to be registered.
So there's one area over across the street,
Department of Consumer Protection, where every
single alcoholic beverage label -- does that
apply to aperitifs and all those very fancy --

PETER BERDON: Absolutely, 33,000 of them.

SENATOR KISSEL: Okay. Wow.

PETER BERDON: Yes.

SENATOR KISSEL: Interesting job to keep track of
that.

PETER BERDON: Yes.

SENATOR KISSEL: Okay. So it goes to you guys and
then in response to Chairman Doyle, I believe
his question was it's not you folks who then
carve up the state, but it's the people -- the
suppliers that aggregate it or it's the
suppliers that --

PETER BERDON: It --

SENATOR KISSEL: -- made the contracts with the
vintners or who is --
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PETER BERDON: -- when -- when a brand is initially
coming into the state, in order to register that
label the supplier has to issue what's called a
"Letter of Appointment" to wholesalers. And the
supplier determines what wholesaler they wish to
have distribute their particular product in the
state. They can limit that appointment based
upon geography; they can also at that particular
point in time decide whether or not they wish to
have one or more wholesalers distribute their
product within the state. 1It's the supplier's
determination at that point in time.

SENATOR KISSEL: Okay. So it might not be unusual to
have, for example, the folks in -- in -- what
was it West Haven or East Hartford or --

PETER BERDON: Allan S. Goodman's over in East
Hartford.

SENATOR KISSEL: -- right. But there might be
someone else who is also a wholesaler that might
cover, like a little geographical corner of the
state, because the other ones don't tend to go
up there that much or --

PETER BERDON: No. All the other wholesalers are --
are statewide in terms of their appointments.

SENATOR KISSEL: Okay. So what sort of is the
driving force? 1Is it money agreements? Is it -
- is it long-term relationships or what -- what
drives this train at this point in time?

PETER BERDON: All of the above and more. It has to
do with portfolio mix. In other words, is that
particular product a good mix within the
portfolio of the wholesaler? 1Is -- is the
particular brand a new and unknown brand, or is
it a long established brand? There are also
industry politics that are involved. Does the
supplier or a particular executive at the
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supplier have a particular relationship with one
' or more individuals at one of the wholesalers?
All those things kind of come into the mix.

SENATOR KISSEL: So who would be the controlling

interest in that -- in that business
relationship at this point in time? 1It's the --
it sounds to me that the whole -- that your

folks are sort of competing for the business of
the folks that are bringing the product in.

PETER BERDON: The answer is yes; and the answer is
also no. It depends upon the brand and the
likely exposure of the brand compared to -- and
that's the primary issue. Certainly, there are
a lot of brands -- even though we distribute
33,000 brands here in the state of Connecticut,
entry of new brands, the innovation of new
brands is constant. New brands are constantly
coming in. Twenty-five percent of the brands
that you see out in the marketplace today did
not exist 10 years ago.

' SENATOR KISSEL: Okay, so --

PETER BERDON: And so in terms of wholesaler
attention, there is constantly a competition to
get their attention. Wholesalers, obviously,
they have limited resources. They can't take on
every single brand and distribute every single
brand.

And so to a large extent, it's like entering
into a marriage. You want to see if it's a good
fit, whether or not you're going to be
successful in that particular relationship.
Because a successful relationship is a
relationship with the wholesaler being able to
go out, take a brand, distribute it, build the
brand and be successful on behalf of the
supplier. And that's -- that's a great
relationship to have. And it is trying to make
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that gauge as to whether or not the brand is
going to be successful and whether or not the
wholesaler is going provide the proper attention
and resources to the brand. Those are the two
kind of competing interests that are going on
between the supplier and the wholesaler during
that introductory period.

SENATOR KISSEL: Okay. So whether it's imported or
domestic, the proper terminology is "supplier,"
and suppliers then deliver the product to the
wholesaler.

PETER BERDON: Correct.

SENATOR KISSEL: And then so -- so you have that
relationship that you have and it's a give and
take.

PETER BERDON: Yes.

SENATOR KISSEL: You know maybe for some of the
fabulous well known long lines you want to keep
that relationship. And if it's a new, something
new, you don't know if it's going to fit, they
have to court your folks a little bit more
because you only have so much capacity and it's
going to be pick or choose.

PETER BERDON: That -- that is correct. And
certainly, it also depends upon the wholesaler.
There are large wholesalers and there are
smaller wholesalers. Wholesalers range in --
range in a wide range of sizes. And so
sometimes a particular product might be a better
fit with a small niche wholesaler versus being a
better fit with a larger wholesaler that has a
large brand portfolio that can provide better
distribution and better penetration into a
broader based market.
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SENATOR KISSEL: Okay. And before we leave your
folks, would you say out of the -- what was it?
Eighty-three?

PETER BERDON: Eighty-three.

SENATOR KISSEL: Out of the 83, would you say most
are on the larger side? Or -- or -- I mean how
does -- how is your mix of membership?

PETER BERDON: I would say that probably 80 percent
of the spirits is delivered and distributed --
sorry -- 80 percent of the wine, beer and
spirits is sold by 20 -- 20 of the houses.

SENATOR KISSEL: Okay. So you have 20 big gobs and
you have 63 other that want to be the gobs.

PETER BERDON: Well, there's not --
SENATOR KISSEL: -- or want to play a role.

PETER BERDON: -- some of them are medium sized; some
of them are smaller in size, but they are on
mixed distributors. And quite frankly, there
are even distributors or wholesalers that sell
even single or even two or three products.

SENATOR KISSEL: And they're happy because they're
making a profit (inaudible) --

PETER BERDON: -- and they're happy and they -- they
make, you know, a living doing that.

SENATOR KISSEL: Okay. Now, after it gets to you --
your folks, and you've got these agreements with
the suppliers, now you have to turn around and
market to the restaurants and the package
stores? :

PETER BERDON: Yeah, over 5,000 licensees here in the
state of Connecticut.
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SENATOR KISSEL: Okay. So -- so out of all this

33,000 brands now get distributed out to the
5,000 licensees?

PETER BERDON: Correct.

SENATOR KISSEL: Now, one of the -- and you -- and
you said that the suppliers determine who has
rights to a product and geography --

PETER BERDON: Correct.

SENATOR KISSEL: -- and then who determines price?

PETER BERDON: The wholesalers currently establish
their prices.

SENATOR KISSEL: Okay. And one of -- and the last --
and so then the last rung on the ladder is the
retailers, restaurant and -- and package stores.

And we haven't heard a lot from restaurants so
I'm assuming that they have less concern with
this proposal. 1It's really the package stores.
And one of the things that I heard -- and you
sort of alluded to this in your testimony is
that these five lost liters. What I heard the
gentleman from Groton saying, Hey, I have such a
small -- I have a small store; I have to compete
with these other businesses right in the same
parking area, strip mall, something like that,
and that those five lost liters could really
hurt his business.

Now, I understand that the five lost liters is
probably a change from where the Governor's
office came from, but do you see that -- it
seems to me that right now we're in a very
structured system where we don't allow that and
to allow that for certain parts of the portfolio
that, let's say, the lost liter is my biggest
product and you're beating the tar out of me for
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the whole month of February. I'm taking a huge
hit. And is that -- is that something that
could potentially hurt him?

PETER BERDON: Certainly, the proposal that is on the

table represents a change from -- from the
current system. And certainly, I can't speak to
particular individuals in the circumstance.

Each circumstance is going to be unique and
different, but it does certainly present a
change from where we currently are.

SENATOR KISSEL: I really appreciate that and I

appreciate the indulgence of my colleagues and -
- and the folks that are here to testify. I
have a much better idea of how this process
works. I guess my overall concern is while I
appreciate the efforts that the Governor has
made especially regarding the aspect regarding
Sunday sales, on a lot of these other very
technical aspects, I have a concern that some
very large players -- and you had mentioned that
probably as the starting point is New Jersey --
that some of these very large players along the
way and even some of your members that are very
large in the field might -- through good
lobbying and through good negotiation have
protected their fiefdom a little bit better than
maybe the hundreds of smaller package stores
that at the end of the day are there going to be
interreaction with the public and are actually
small businesses that, you know, have a
difficult time making their -- their monthly
bills.

PETER BERDON: I would just comment, Senator, that

even though our businesses may be seen -- seem
large, most of my members in the context of the
fishbowl of the distribution of beverage
alcohol, many of my members are smaller than
some of the larger national -- well, definitely
smaller that the largest national retailers --
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and certainly smaller than many of the chain
national retailers that are out there. And so
in the context of disparity and, certainly, they
are not even as big as they are.

SENATOR KISSEL: And I -- you know what? I very much
appreciate that insight, as well. Because what
I'm trying to get my arms around is not only the
chain of distribution, but the -- the relative
power of each element in that chain. And then,
you know, I just don't think that I'm still
seeing the whole picture here as to what the
ultimate endgame of this proposal is. I
understand Sunday sales; it's easy to get our

arms around that and I almost -- I'm hoping that
that's almost off the table at this point in
time.

I understand the tax differential between us and
surrounding states. The Governor has not
proposed that which I'm very surprised about,
but I think that that's another easy to get our
arms around element of the proposal.

When I start digging down through these other
permutations, though, it gets very cloudy. And

I'm wondering, you know, who's -- who's going to
be the big winner, who's going to be the big
loser and -- and just as importantly, what are

the unintended consequences going to be, because
that's always part of when we pass legislation
it is not unusual that two, three, four years
down the road, we have to fix something because
something happened that none of us saw. And
somebody testified earlier today -- I think it
was Carroll Hughes -- that when we pass bills,
there's already somebody out there on the street
that has their game plan -- boom, ready to go.
And they've seen something that none of us have
seen as we try to get our arms around this.
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So I really appreciate your answering my
questions.

PETER BERDON: I -- I appreciate your questions.
Thank you, Senator.

SENATOR KISSEL: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
SENATOR DOYLE: Thank you.
Any further questions from the committee?
Seeing none, thank you.
Next speaker --
PETER BERDON: Thank you -- thank you, Senator Doyle.
SENATOR DOYLE: -- thank you.

Next speaker is Daniela Tristine. Is she here?
Yes, she is. Okay.

Dominic Alaimo, Craig Turner, Jan Ransford, Jay
Polk, Alan Wilensky, Nicholas Hine, Mark Wilson,
Patrick Monteleone.

DANIELA TRISTINE: Senator Doyle, Representative -B£l5ﬁﬁll——
Taborsak, honorable members of the General Law
Committee. I took the time to prepare this
whole letter that I submitted and after
listening to everything I find myself just so
incensed by certain things that are being said

that I -- I just hope you'll indulge me and read
this on your own and kind of allow me to go from
here.

{
As grateful as I am for everything that the

gentleman from the wholesalers is doing, you
have to understand that as reasonable to me as
if my daughter was trading my son's toys,
they're not his to make the rules -- they're not
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hers for him to make the rules for. Not
everything that the wholesalers have in mind
(inaudible) -- not everything that the
wholesalers have represented is in our best
interests are not, and I appreciate you
recognizing some of those issues.

The medallions stink; they're awful. It's been
-- it's a curse to this industry. The removal
of the minimum bottle, right now, I exist very
happily -- my store is down -- down the road
from Mike Cimini. He is a much larger element
than I am. I'm just shy of 3,000 square feet,
he's closer to 10. And down the road from me is
someone who's just shy of 1,000 square feet. We
all function very well in our society because of
the fact that we have this min bottles that we
place. No one is getting wealthy off of it.
This is not something that is making any one of
us -- make exuberant amount of money. The
reality of the situation is, it protects us just
as much as it protects the consumer.

I've had situations where I have purchased
something for $12.99. It was Trump Vodka. 1I'll
throw it right out there. Trump Vodka let's say
-- actually, it wasn't -- it was 19.99. I
bought it for 19.99 and the gentleman down the
street happened to have bought multiple cases of
it. The case price is cheaper than by the
bottle. He was able to put it on the shelf for
19.99 because his price was 19.91. He figured
he was going to move enough volume that the
eight cents was enough.

For me, I have to put it on the shelf for $22
but the consumer knows this is something that is
selling for about $20. If I paid much over the
20, I'm getting ripped off and I'm not going to
buy it. It also provides a gauge for the
consumer. And it gives us a little bit of a
buffer. 1In most cases, you know, the -- the
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higher recognized brand -- if we sell something

at minimum bottle, we're making about 15 percent
-- 20, if we're really lucky.

And I'm done.

SENATOR DOYLE: Well, you can summarize but that's --
the goal is three minutes so it's right on. So

DANIELA TRISTINE: Basically --

SENATOR DOYLE: -- try to stay focused. And some --
some people may asked you questions, too, so --

DANIELA TRISTINE: Okay.

SENATOR DOYLE: -- keep that in mind.
DANIELA TRISTINE: So the -- the minimum bottle is
not necessarily for that. The -- oh, my gosh, I

had so many things that I had it so organized
and now it's all rushing me.

Grocery stores can have kids selling and so can
convenience stores selling at 16. We, by law,
aren't allowed to have anyone behind our counter
that's younger than 18 years old ringing out.
There are certain inconsistencies that if you
want to make it spread across the board, there
are other -- so many other factors that you need
to sit down and work --

I don't assume to understand absolutely anything
that you do, and I don't presume that you would
assume to know what has taken us years to figure
out. This is a complicated business, and we
just need a little more time.

SENATOR DOYLE: Okay. Thank you.

Any questions?
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Representative Taborsak.

REP. TABORSAK: Hi. Well, it's a lot for us to try

to figure out -- figure and understand. And
thanks for coming to testify. If you could put
aside the entire bill, except for some of the
new concepts that are being tossed around --
because I know you mentioned minimum bottle
going away and the concern that that causes you.
Could you envision if you were just looking at -
- let's say, that we had the status quo right
now, except for that you are able to sell say a
product or two below minimum bottle, below cost
-- and I'm talking about a limited amount -- I
mean like, let's say -- let's even just use the
example of one product --

DANIELA TRISTINE: Okay.

REP.

TABORSAK: -- as like a lost liter. 1If you
wanted to say, for .instance, and this will help
us understand your business. 1If, for instance,

you wanted to get a type of wine out there to
your customer base that you think might catch on

DANIELA TRISTINE: Uh-huh.

REP.

TABORSAK: -- and you thought it was a decent
enough business gamble to sell it at a loss --
for maybe, say, one case -- not a -- you know, I

mean, obviously a percentage of a loss, you
know, meaning 10, 15 percent or something. If
you were able to do that with, say, one product,
because right now under the current law you're
not allowed to do that; you're not allowed to
put below minimum bottle.

DANIELA TRISTINE: Right.
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REP. TABORSAK: If you were able to do that with one
product, would that at all -- forget about
everything else -- if everything else stayed the
same, would that at all sound interesting to you
as a business person?

DANIELA TRISTINE: No, because --
REP. TABORSAK: And why?

DANIELA TRISTINE: -- the one product that I would
end up selling for less than cost, the consumer
would charge me buy that one item that was below
cost. He's going to have something else below
cost; he's going to have something else below
cost. They're going to drop around and find the
things that are the absolute lowest because I'm
not going to have the same prices even my cousin
is going to have down on the other side of the
street. We're not going pick the same items to
have below cost. So people will go from store
to store and they will cherry pick, and they
will be buying the items that we're losing money
on.

And I'm sorry, but that's not a great business
plan. Ideally, we're all in this to make a
little bit of money. The way that the
discounting is even worked out -- and I'm going
to take a very solid example for you -- Cabot
Pinot Grigio -- I'm pretty sure you're all
familiar with Cabot Pinot Grigio -- if I buy --
there's a posting cycle that we have so one
month it's on sale; the next month, it's month -
- it's not. 1It's on this -- this posting cycle
that is essentially what the discounting will
be. Okay? So if I buy Cabot Pinot Grigio at
the sale price, I'm paying $56. That's a great
deal. In Rhode Island, their case price is $66
for that same case, unless they buy 25 cases and
then it goes down to 58.
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REP.

The problem doesn't lie within the discounting,
the problem doesn't like within the min bottle,
the problem lies within the taxation. We are
excessively taxed -- taxed, which doesn't allow
us to compete. We compete very well with each
other. We have functioned very harmoniously
with the min bottles in place, with me buying
one case and him buying 25 cases, but it all
being the same price. So we're all on the same
playing field. And you can introduce the big
box stores and you can introduce the grocery
stores if we all have that safety net, it
doesn't matter who comes into the game. It
really doesn't.

And capitalism is wonderful. I mean people were
fighting me when I tried to move onto my street
and now we do very well together.

You have to give -- this is not a business that
allows for a lot of markup. And even though you
think this min bottle is something that we're
cheating the system in, it really isn't. If you
look at the -- grab the Beverage Journal, look
online -- I'm sure any one of these gentlemen
would be sure happy to give it to you. Look at
what our actual price is, look at what we can
actually sell things for as to how we're set up.
The consumer gets a pretty good deal by having
us all be competitive trying to keep it at that
lowest bottle.

TABORSAK: I hope you don't think we think
you're cheating the system by abiding by the
rules that the State has set up. We don't --
not this committee and we're taking our time to
really evaluate these changes and hear from you.
But let me take that one step further.

DANIELA TRISTINE: Sure.
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REP. TABORSAK: Do you ever, in your experience, in
your store, run into an issue where, say, like
you have to move a certain type of wine before
it expires. Do you ever get into a situation
like that where maybe you have too much of
something and --

DANIELA TRISTINE: I -- I --

REP. TABORSAK: -- it's outliving its shelf life.
Does that happen?

DANIELA TRISTINE: -- I buy things primarily by the
case. If it is something that has gone beyond
its age where it's no longer good, it gets --
it's gone. 1It's done. I won't sell something
that isn't drinkable. So that does, in fact,
happen, and I think it's irresponsible to sell
something that isn't a good product.
(Inaudible.)

REP. TABORSAK: Well, the reason I was asking you is
because as these ideas are getting -- getting
talked about around here, it's at least been
brought up that the concept of allowing stores,
like yours, to go below minimum bottle could
help stores that need to move a product before
it goes bad. For instance, you know I used wine
as an example. If you had an overstock of
something and you wanted to move that specific,
you know, type of wine that you had too much of
and you didn't want it to expire, you could try
to sell it more quickly and aggressively by
lowering the price below. Does that make sense

DANIELA TRISTINE: You -- you could --

REP. TABORSAK: -- that's an idea that we've heard

000365



February 28, 2012

law/cd/gbr GENERAL LAW COMMITTEE 11:00 A.M.

DANIELA TRISTINE: -- right. Essentially you -- you

-- essentially what you're saying is you would
like to do like a closeout on it to get it done.
And we do have rules in place about close-outs.
You can reduce the price on a close-out item,
however, you cannot have purchased additional
amounts of it or you cannot purchase it. If you
close something out of your store, it has to be
gone. You can't reduce the price and then
reorder it. So if somebody is -- with the way
that the rules have been rewritten. The way
that it's left to be done is, let's say -- and
I'm going to keep throwing my cousin under the
bus here whose store is much larger than mine --
let's say, he goes out and buys a hundred cases
of, you know, the Beaujolais Nouveau that comes
out for Thanksgiving. Actually, that's not a
good example. We'll do Christmas -- something
for Christmas. So if -- he buys a rose in May
and he buys a hundred cases of it. Now, six
months later according to your provision, he can
blow it out. So now Christmas is here and
everybody loves the hero at Christmas if you
come up with a sale price. He's blowing out
something that I'm still trying to sell at a
regular price because it's still a valid wine
but he's saying, Oh, you know what? I'm not
going to sell it anymore and that's his ploy to
throw it out there. 1It's -- it really is --
it's dishonest at its very base.

SENATOR DOYLE: Let me ask you this -- I'm just

jumping in. Another example, Carroll Hughes
mentioned Memorial Day weekend. If it rains --
and I can -- it makes sense --

DANIELA TRISTINE: Uh-huh.

SENATOR DOYLE: -- you buy a lot of beer in

anticipation of a nice weekend. It rains so all
of a sudden you're loaded up on beer. In that
situation, what do you do? I mean are you --
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are you in the same situation, you've got to get

rid of it --

DANIELA TRISTINE: (Inaudible.)

SENATOR DOYLE: -- or you just sit on it. You just
won't order it the next month. What -- what --

DANIELA TRISTINE: You --

VINCENZO DINATALI: I think you have to look at some
of these products. Like when you buy it for
rose, you have to look very carefully at it and
a rose has something that might expire more than
a cabernet so you're very careful about that.
And you look at the price point and say, Well, I
have a fair enough margin above with the minimum
bottle, I can still lower it a couple of dollars
and still be at the state min. It's not as big
of an issue.

If you look at beer, it's the same thing. You
don't go too far out because it can expire and
there's issues. The perishable items are not as
big of a deal as they are with grocery stores.
You know there are some seasonal beers that come
out and, you know, that's a bet that you make.
You know after you've been in it for a few
years, you have enough history, you have enough

idea of -- of what's risky and what isn't. So
it's -- it's not as a big issue --
DANIELA TRISTINE: -- you buy accordingly.
"VINCENZO DINATALI: -- right, accordingly.

DANIELA TRISTINE: So you don't end up with such
excessive overflow.

REP. TABORSAK: Just to take that one step further.
The -- for a closeout sale, you have to -- if I
understand correctly -- don't you have to do
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something with the Department of Consumer
Protection in order to do that? And is that
process difficult? 1Is that -- is it simple?
Is it --

DANIELA TRISTINE: I more often than not dump things.

That's what I normally do because it's not
something that is functional whether it be
something that I either buy for myself and take
home and cook with or we -- we rotate. We go
through our stock and we recognize things that -
- I buy things most of the time a case at a clip
so I don't have this abundance over.

But there are -- there are definitive rules set
in place that I don't think -- I don't think
many parts of what are trying to be fixed are
broken. I think they will be broken --
horrifically so in some instances.

But if it's all about trying to compete and make
the situation more effective -- and I don't sell
singles and I don't sell pints and I don't sell
half-pints and I don't sell cigarettes and I
don't sell lottery because I have a certain
standard but, you know, we all take -- we all
take our own business model and we work with it.
And we want the freedom to be able to do so
without necessarily having somebody else down
the street dictating what we have to sell
because they're selling it below what we can
even buy it for.

SENATOR DOYLE: Any further question from the

REP.

committee?

Representative Tallarita.

TALLARITA: Just to respond -- sorry. And it's
your choice not to sell cigarettes and pints and
singles, and I -- I'm glad that you have that

choice, and I think that that's personally what
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I've been trying to push with the Sunday sales
is that stores should have the choice to make
their own business decisions. So thank you --

DANIELA TRISTINE: Thank you.

REP. TALLARITA: -- and thank you for your testimony
today.

DANIELA TRISTINE: Thank you.

SSENATOR DOYLE: Any other further questions, seeing
none, all set. Thank you.

Senator Bye is up to testify
DANIELA TRISTINE: Thank you.

SENAOTR DOYLE: After Senator Bye, Dominic Alaimo,
Craig Turner, Jan Rosefeld, Jay Polk, Alan
Wilensky, Nicholas Hine, Mark Wilson, Patrick
Monteleone and Paul Riveras.

REP. BYE: Thank you, Senator Doyle and
Representative Taborsak and the rest of the
committee members. I want to, first of all,
thank you on behalf of many of my constituents
who have been here today for your patience and
your questions and how thoughtfully you're
debating this issue.

So I'm here about a particular bill, Senate Bill

59, AN ACT CONCERNING -- what's that? AN ACT

" CONCERNING -- you'd think so we've had this for
two years. This is for a gentleman who owns a
wine store in West Hartford and it's called AN
ACT CONCERNING RETAIL WINE SELLERS AND WINE
RELATED CLASSES.

My name is Beth Bye. I'm a state senator from
the Fifth District representing West Hartford,
Farmington, Burlington and Bloomfield. I'm here
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DOMINIC ALAIMO: Before I start, Mr. Chairman, I

would just like to say that I'm probably the
first person coming in front of you today that
actually owns a liquor store on the border.
I've been there for 33 years. I don't get paid
to come here today.

But the Connecticut Package Store Association
and Carroll Hughes, who was up here previously,
said that they represent X amount of stores. I
want you to know that he only represents about
22 percent of the stores in Connecticut. And
they get paid and they're trying to protect
their own interest and they get paid for that.

But let me -- let me start off here --

SENATOR DOYLE: Yeah, just -- one second. As -- as I

mentioned, as one of the ground rules we trying
to avoid, you know, directly referencing other
individuals. So let's just try to stick to your
testimony, please. Thank you.

DOMINIC ALAIMO: Good afternoon. Thank you for

letting me address you today about this most
important bill. I come before you today to
voice my support for HB 5021, the liquor reform
bill proposed by Governor Malloy.

Mr. Chairman, I've been in the liquor business
for 33 years. I'm the owner of Freshwater
Package Store in Enfield, Connecticut, located a
mile and a half from the Massachusetts border.

I appear before you today asking you to cast a
vote in favor of increased jobs and consumer
choice and competition. Also if you pass HB 20
-- 5021, you will help border stores, like mine,
to compete with stores in Massachusetts and
recapture over $507 million a year in sales that
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leave Connecticut because of our antiquated
liquor laws. Earlier you heard someone say that
the 570 million came from the Massachusetts
border. That's not true; that's for all the
borders.

When Massachusetts passes Sunday liquor sales,
it changed consumer behavior in the liquor
business. Consumers stopped stocking up and
availed themselves to the convenience and choice
offered by the Massachusetts package stores.
While package stores across the border raked in
the dough, our antiquated state laws have forced
me to sit on my hands and do nothing. I'm
already in my store, my liquor store on Sundays,
stocking shelves and doing inventory. It would
benefit me to actually be able to sell product
instead of turning away people who knock on my
door.

It's time for Connecticut to come into the 21st
century and treat consumers of liquor like
responsible adults. This bill will also give me
the opportunity to sell complimentary products
in my store. Did you know that I can sell
someone a bottle of gin and a bottle of tonic,
but I can't sell them a lime. That's how
antiquated these state laws are.

The state law banning Sunday liquor sales is
discriminatory. Mr. Chairman, restaurants and
wineries can all engage in a retail sale of
liquor on Sunday. They can sell the exact same
product I do. The only difference is the kind
of permit they have. Restaurants and bars can
sell liquor on premise on Sunday. It makes no
sense for state liquor laws to discriminate
against package stores and favor these other
permittees.

It's time for the State of Connecticut to get
out of the liquor business. The only liquor
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laws that Connecticut should have are those
prohibiting underage drinking and drunk driving.
Minimum mark up laws are nothing but corporate
welfare. There is no good reason for the State
to engage in price fixing, like it does with
public utilities. Although some might disagree
with me, liquor is not a public utility. For
that matter, neither is my store anything like
Northeast Utilities. The federal government
tried price fixing during World War II and
during the Nixon administration. Both times it
failed and left a legacy of higher prices. The
time has come for the price of a liquor bottles
to be determined by the force of supply and
demand not the minimum mark up laws.

Forty-eight other states have Sunday sales,
including all the New England states, along with
New York, New Jersey and Pennsylvania.

SENATOR DOYLE: Mr. Alaimo, please summarize. Thank
you.

DOMINIC ALAIMO: Our neighboring states allow the
sale of complimentary goods. 1Isn't it about
time that we join them in offering our citizens
a choice and freedom to buy the products they
want when they want.

I'll take any questions, and I have also made
some notes here that I think I can clear up a

few things especially with --

SENATOR DOYLE: Let's see. You'll probably get some
questions --

DOMINIC ALAIMO: Senator Musto -- I'd like to talk to
Musto, too.

SENATOR DOYLE: Okay. Well, first --

DOMINIC ALAIMO: Okay.
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SENATOR DOYLE: Senator Kissel is up first. I decide
that.

SENATOR KISSEL: Thank you very much, Chairman Doyle.

Dominic, it's great to see you here. You've
been very patient all day.

DOMINIC ALAIMO: Thank you, sir.

SENATOR KISSEL: I saw -- I was glancing over here at
Capital Reports. I guess there were 600 folks
who rallied outside the Capitol in favor of
Sunday sales and given the statement in many of

the papers today and from -- I believe I saw Mr.
Hughes here that apparently the Package Store
Association is willing to compromise on -- on

Sunday sales.

My first question, there was a gentleman that
moved his stores up to the Worchester and
Shrewsbury, and he said if you really want to
try and get some of that cross border traffic
back, that you may want to look at starting your
hours earlier on a Sunday than noontime. My
understanding is that, heretofore, you've wanted
an option for Sunday. It sounds to me that the
parties that they are negotiating what the
parameters of Sunday sales would be, for
example, noon to five or noon to six or eleven
to five -- if there were going to be some hours
that are an option, what -- what hours do you
think would be best for competing with
Massachusetts?

DOMINIC ALAIMO: Well, I don't think you can sell
liquor before eleven or twelve now on Sunday but
I'm not sure about that. But you're going to
make Sunday liquor sales, you've got to make it
for the same hours as Monday through Saturday
because Massachusetts the stores close at 11
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o'clock at night. So it wouldn't benefit
anybody to do this. Just make Sunday another
day to do business and that would be the last
day because we won't have any days of the week.
It would be over.

SENATOR KISSEL: And I know that you want free --
free market to apply. And by the way,
congratulations, I mean, you've been working
this issue for a long, long time. So I think
today is sort of an important day.

But there are also provisions in here that a lot
of your colleagues whether they're close to the
border or not are concerned with. For example,
having five lost liters and, again, the
gentleman from Groton who said, Listen, I'm in a
package store, I'm close to a large grocery
store in the same strip mall, if they -- if
they're able to do these lost liters, it's going
to take a huge cut out of some of my major
sales.

Are -- are there provisions in the Governor's
proposal, as it stands right now, that you have
concerns with?

DOMINIC ALAIMO: No. There's nothing in that that
concerns at all. I think it opens up the
market. It's good for business. It gets rid of
protectionism and the State doesn't protect any
other industry in the state.

SENATOR KISSEL: You said that you had some responses
to some of the other issues that had been
raised. Did you want --

DOMINIC ALAIMO: Yes. One is --

SENATOR KISSEL: -- then, again, with the indulgence
of the Chair, maybe if it's only a couple
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minutes just to finish what you wanted to
clarify that.

DOMINIC ALAIMO: Well, I can take the rest of the
questions first, if you want me to address a --

SENATOR DOYLE: Senator, if you could ask a question
what his concerns are or something like that.

SENATOR KISSEL: Yeah, okay, I'll --
SENATOR DOYLE: That's a better way to handle it.
SENATOR KISSEL: Thank you, Counselor.

Mr. Alaimo, what are your concerns?

DOMINIC ALAIMO: Okay. After 33 years of working on
the border, I heard a lot of stuff here today
and I'm sorry, it's just not true. Now Senator
Musto hit -- hit it perfect about territorial
rights. That's what causes these prices to go
through the roof. And let me just give you one
quick example. Sam Adams is out of Boston and
goes to Springfield. When it hits a liquor
store about three miles from me in Massachusetts
that case is $2 a case cheaper. When they go 30
miles down the road to Manchester to my
wholesaler, and then I buy it from him I have to
pay $2 more. So if you truck that beer 3,000
miles that means it costs $100,000 to truck
those cases of beer. I don't believe those
numbers are right. It's just -- that's the
problem here. It's that this territorial rights
-- this industry is nothing but corporate
welfare.

If you want to have lost liters, do it, because
you don't sell everything at a loss because if
everything was sold as a lost liter, you
wouldn't draw a pay, you couldn't pay your
electric bill, you couldn't pay your mortgage,
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you couldn't pay your rent. So you pick a few
‘ items and that's how it goes.

But the State and this liquor -- liquor control
and the wholesale level is where the prices are
skyrocketing. 1Is there some of it taxes? Sure
it is. But now last year at the end of the
session at the request of Senator Doyle -- I
sent him a survey we did with five stores in
Massachusetts compared to my store. Now, forget
about taking that one big gigantic store that
you compare everything to -- that's the biggest
store in New England. Get that -- take that out
of the mix. 1It's all the other liquor stores
over the border. Those are where there's
traffic jams that you get in on a Sunday. Not
everybody goes to the other big store. But some
of it could be taxes. Sure, it is. All these
taxes are too high as far as I'm concerned. But
the problem is in pricing and convenience.
People want to shop on Sunday. And from what I
understand -- I learned today -- is Sunday now
is the busiest shopping day of the week.

‘ SENATOR DOYLE: Mr. Alaimo, can I interrupt one sec?

DOMINIC ALAIMO: Sure.

SENATOR DOYLE: I just want to notify the public that
the cafeteria is going to close at 5:30, in 20
minutes, so if anyone is interested in eating
something after 5:30, you're done so I just --
Sorry to interrupt you, Mr. Alaimo.
You have 20 minutes.
Thank you for your --

DOMINIC ALAIMO: Yeah, okay. One other thing

somebody mentioned up there about if you own a
restaurant, you need to live in the state to be
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a permittee in the state. And my question is
what would you do with all big chain stores --
the TGIFridays, all these other ones? Would you
say move to Connecticut or you can't own a
business here anymore? I don't know how that
would work. I just want to throw that out
there.

And -- let's see -- Rep. D'Amelio had a good
point that him, being in the restaurant
business, me being in the package store
business, I can buy certain beers cheaper --
they won't sell it to his -- to his restaurant.
So that means it's taking away some of his
profit. And I'll give you an example. A 24-
pack of Budweiser, let's say, it's a loose
bottle they call it. Big -- it's called Big
Red. Well, I can buy that in a package store
but Mr. D'Amelio's restaurant can't purchase
that. He has to buy another case that's more
expensive. And that's called price fixing.

And one way with the beer guys with this post-
off system just on beer. I don't know why after
33 years they post something for $1. Why not
raise the price 50 cents and leave it the same
price all the time and you wouldn't have post-
offs? And they were cute what they did years
ago with that post-off system. 1I'll see if I
can lead you through this. Let's say in the
month of February, right now, Budweiser -- let's
say, it's $10 a case. 1It's posted $2. So come
on March 1st, the price goes back up to $12 a
case. Well, during that next month the mom and

pop stores -- which I don't even understand what
size that would be but -- they would be able to
compete because they can -- nobody can buy that

beer for $10 no more because the month of
February is over. Well, what the wholesalers
did in Connecticut was they would post that
price for one day during the next month and that
meant every big store -- big box store if you
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want to call them -- he'd keep that price at

$10. So it took away the competitive edge

already for every small liquor store right now.

That ended years ago. We're already behind the i
eight ball that way but that's competition. But |
that's what the wholesalers did to the business

people in Connecticut. They do that now.

They've been practicing this for a long, long

time.

SENATOR DOYLE: Okay. Senator Kissel, you're still

SENATOR KISSEL: I'm all set. Again, thank you so
much for coming and testifying this afternoon
and being very patient. And I think that
tremendous progress on this issue has been made.

DOMINIC ALAIMO: No, and you were a big help,
Senator, for us and you and State Rep. Kathy
Tallarita.

But also that part about buying beer on Memorial
Day weekend, I usually watch the weather
forecast. That works pretty good.

Any other questions?

SENATOR DOYLE: Yes, one second.

DOMINIC ALAIMO: Yeah.

SENATOR DOYLE: Representative Tallarita.

REP. TALLARITA: Actually, as per usual, Mr. Alaimo,
you answered all my questions before I was able
to ask them. So --

DOMINIC ALAIMO: Sorry.

REP. TALLARITA: -- but thank you for being here
today. Thank you for all your support through
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this. Again, if it wasn't for you, as a package
store owner, in my district coming to me and
asking why you couldn't open on Sunday, I never
would have realized how our liquor laws actually
were in the state of Connecticut and how
antiquated they were. So, again, thank you for
all of your work and for being here today.

DOMINIC ALAIMO: Thank you, Kathy. And without you
this wouldn't happen and you've learned very
quick. But there's one thing I want you to push
again. I want you to have Carroll Hughes give
you how many stores --

SENATOR DOYLE: Okay, Mr. Alaimo.

DOMINIC ALAIMO: -- he represents. Well, that should
be part of the record because he doesn't give
you the right numbers, Senator.

SENATOR DOYLE: Yeah, but that's up to Representative
Tallarita to pursue. Thank you.

DOMINIC ALAIMO: All right. See you. Thank you.
SENATOR DOYLE: Thank you.

All right. Next person is Craig Turner, Jan
Ransford, Jay Polk, Alan Wilensky, Nicholas
Hine, Mark Wilson, Patrick Monteleone, Paul
Riveras, Doug Rankin, Maureen Abrahamson.

Is Craig Turner here? Yes, he is.

CRAIG TURNER: Good evening.

My name is Craig Turner, and I'm here on behalf l{ﬁ55lﬁiL

of the Connecticut Coalition to Stop Underage
Drinking, where I serve as the chairman of the
Public Policy Committee for that. And by way of
association in my professional work, I am the
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director of Youth and Social Services for the
Town of Wallingford.

And I'm really here -- I'm a little confused
with my first statement because of all the
discussion that's going on with me -- what the

revisions may be so some of the ideas that I
have may no longer actually apply. I'm here to
speak in opposition to Sunday sales, to
convenience stores being able to sell beer and
to the issue of the shifting of the process of
pricing. And actually on the larger scale what
I see as a far greater picture describing all of
these components is the issue really comes down
to what I see a bit of deregulation in the
process.

And I'm very concerned when we're talking about
alcohol, as a product, that while many people
speak of it as being a product that has
historically been monitored and regulated on the
basis of either religious or moral grounds, it's
really been public health and public safety
which has driven those decisions for decades.
While it may have been rooted in those issues
and while people still hold those issues near
and dear, from a government regulation
perspective, it's really more to do with public
safety and public health.

And I'm very concerned, particularly, on the
Sunday sales with the addition of gas stations,
grocery stores and convenience stores, because
the work that we have done with the Department
of Consumer Protection here in the state for
over the last 10 years, in terms of doing
compliance checks, significantly demonstrates
that grocery stores, at this point in time, are
far more likely to provide and sell alcoholic
products, beer, to youth than package stores.
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Now, let's take that a step further. If you --
if you look at a package -- at a package store,
most of your clientele coming in there are
adults, young adults. If someone is underage
it's pretty obvious because they're not
generally going in there. That is not true of a
grocery store and certainly not going to be true
of a gas station or convenience stores. That
would be the walk-in population that consume
those products. So I think there would be an
increase concern about that accessibility.

The other thing that I'm really concerned on the
deregulation side -- and I'll close with this --
is a regular business practice. Let me just
demonstrate this. If you owned a floral
business, your business plan would be an effort
to retain, create and increase customers who --
who you want to be frequent buyers. You would
provide discounts and promotions to gain new
customers and you would advertise your products
and your store oriented to younger people so
that you could develop a future customer base.
In the alcohol industry frequent buyers include
alcoholics, heavy drinkers and underage
drinkers. Those are your frequent buyers and
they only represent about 20 percent of the
state of Connecticut. The adult population --
most people don't drink and a far larger drink
very little. So in these policies and
practices, which you deregulate, you are
increasing the likelihood and the opportunity
for underage drinkers to have access to alcohol
and now behind the wheel if they're driving to
and from gas stations or wherever.

So very -- I would strongly urge you to look at
that. And if you're looking at the larger
picture, I would -- I would take that a step

further to the process of deregulation that --
that really reduces regulations on how are
sales. What's the next step? Do we go to the
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UK where they're open 24 hours a day, seven days
a week? Dangerous precedent.

SENATOR DOYLE: All right. Thank you.

REP.

Any questions from the committee?
Representative Rebimbas.
REBIMBAS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Thank you for your testimony. And it's more of
a comment than a question because I do want to
thank you for taking the time for coming up here
and highlighting the public safety aspect of
this because we're not in the business -- this
bill that's being proposed is not in the
business of selling flowers or sneakers. This
is actually a regulated drug for a reason. And
it's certainly one that probably could be done
in a responsible way, but it's through
testimony, such as yourself and many others that
are up here that are highlighting it that
obviously we will take that to heart when we
move forward with it. So I appreciate your
testimony.

CRAIG TURNER: Thank you.

SENATOR DOYLE: Representative Baram.

REP.

BARAM: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

I asked a couple of prior speakers the same
question whether there were any studies related
to sales at gas stations -- more accidents,
youthful offenses. Nobody seems to have any
information. And then I read in the papers that
various organizations that have always been
against drunk driving and making the public
aware aren't taking a position on this. My
instinct is that there is a relationship. I'm
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trying to understand why are you speaking out
and nobody else is.

CRAIG TURNER: I can't answer that question because I
haven't asked those people that aren't speaking
out why they're not. I think if you have
children, the one thing that doesn't change is
human nature. 1It's true for all of us; it's
been true for generations. Kids make bad
decisions; they exercise poor judgment. They're
-- they're poorly influenced by their peers.

I will give -- just to give you concrete
examples. If a kid goes into a convenience
store and there's beer there, just like they
steal gum, candy, snacks -- now, that's another
opportunity to take something without paying for
it. That really doesn't exist in the package
store industry the way that it would exist in a
convenient store or grocery store. You have 15-
and 16-year-olds behind the counter selling that
product. I don't even need to discuss the
potential issues that are at hand with kids
coming in with their peers behind the counter.

I can't speak to drunk driving as an issue for
children. Certainly, there was, I guess, an
infamous report at this point with New Mexico
where they looked at what happened on Sunday
sales with the increased accidents. There are
some questions on that study but it certainly
has been one that's been quoted in the past.

I'm looking at from a much bigger picture. This
picture of if we're going to give up Sunday
sales -- now it's every day a week -- the
primary people that are going to be taking --
abusing Sunday to purchase -- if your targeting
that 20 percent of the people that are regular
drinkers, I'm not sure that's a good idea in the
essence of who those people are in terms of
their characteristics and drinking patterns.
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Those are the people that do drink and drive;
those are the people that are abusive. That's

the person that may go home and -- and create a
problem in their house or anywhere else for that
matter.

The dynamic of where do we go from that and --
and if you're looking at -- if you look at the
European Union or follow Washington state which
has basically deregulated in several manners --
the issue of alcohol as a product thanks to
Costco which really lobbied hard and long to
have that happen. They would certainly -- will
be a case study that anybody in the public
health and public policy realm dealing with
alcohol is going to look at it because they will
be the model to see if they can pull it off.

But as the price goes down we know this: kids
become more interested in purchasing it. They
have more power. That's one component.
Accessibility, that's another component. If

it's -- the other issue is how they market and
advertise those products. You know it's -- it's
a dangerous territory. And look at -- look at

what happened in certain other elements of our -
- of our society, of our capitalistic society
with deregulation. Take a look at utilities.
Where did the prices go? And who's making the
money? Take a look -- and who -- who suffered?
Take a look at the banking industry and
mortgages. Where did the prices go? Who
suffered? What happened? Who didn't suffer?
Who gained? I mean that's -- that's part of the
whole dynamic of deregulation. Who actually
makes out in the end? I'm not so sure that we
need to be conveniencing a small percentage of
the population of the whole community at the
risk of inconveniencing or putting at risk the
rest of us. Just not sure.
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SENATOR DOYLE: Representative Tallarita.
Representative Tallarita first.

REP. TALLARITA: Thank you.

You commented about grocery stores and there
being more underage alcohol being purchased
there. 1It's my understanding that in a grocery

store when you go to purchase -- and I'm trying
to remember the last time I purchased in a
grocery store. I can't. But they're -- they

cannot sell to someone without a manager coming
over who is over the age of 21 actually checking
an ID. So I -- I --

CRAIG TURNER: Wait. Can I --

REP. TALLARITA: -- I'm questioning how you feel or
why you feel that grocery stores are more of a
problem.

CRAIG TURNER: -- well, here's how this works. Not

all managers are integretous and they will have
a scanner that they scan after checking the ID
which allows that register to ring that sale up.
And they'll leave the scanner at the register
and walk away. So the person behind that
counter has access to it. And generally when
we're going through the process of a sting on
underage -- that's what we're finding. 1It's
disintegretous people. So it does happen and it
happens with more frequency than you might
think. But you're absolutely right the process
is that a manager is supposed to come over,
check the ID and then they scan the register,
which allows that register to work -- something
to that effect. And what's happening is they're
leaving that device at the register.

SENATOR DOYLE: Representative Tallarita, can I just
follow that up?

000386
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I just -- you're presenting a premise to us. Do

you have any evidence to back it up?
CRAIG TURNER: Which premise?

SENATOR DOYLE: Premise that the package stores are
selling, you know, to minors.

CRAIG TURNER: Oh yeah, we've done -- we've done
underage stings with the Department of --

SENATOR DOYLE: I'm looking for more. 1It's your
opinion. I'm just -- generally is there a study

done that provides evidence?

CRAIG TURNER: Well, the data -- we can get you the
data.

SENATOR DOYLE: I'll take you -- the committee would
like data.

CRAIG TURNER: Absolutely.

SENATOR DOYLE: (Inaudible.)

CRAIG TURNER: No problem.

SENATOR DOYLE: Representative Tallarita.

REP. TALLARITA: That's fine. That's basically where
I was getting to. If you have the data to back
that up, that would be interesting to see.

CRAIG TURNER: I'll be happy to get it.

REP. TALLARITA: Because, I mean, obviously there are
people in all industry that will do things like
that whether it be a package store, a

convenience store or a grocery store so --

CRAIG TURNER: That's absolutely true. No question.

000387
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REP. TALLARITA: Thank you.

SENATOR DOYLE: Any further questions of the
committee?

Seeing none, thank you very much.

All right just for update for the public, it's
now about 5:25 and we still have 74 people to
go. So that's just further evidence why we try

to stick to the three-minute rule so.

The next speaker, again, is Jan Ransfield. 1Is
Jan here? Yes, he is.

Then Jay Polk, Alan Wilensky, Nicholas Hine,
Mark Wilson, Patrick Monteleone, Paul Riveras,
Doug Rankin, Maureen Abrahamson and David Leon.

Is it Jim? I'm sorry. Is it Jim?

JIM RANSFORD: Yes, it's Jim. HB 503 |

SENATOR DOYLE: Sorry about that, Jim.
JIM RANSFORD: That's okay.

SENATOR DOYLE: You heard your name mispronounced
maybe 30 -- 30 times so --

JIM RANSFORD: I figured it out. No one was showing
up so I figured I'd slide in.

Thank you for listening to me. My name is Jim
Ransford. I represent Connecticut Beverage
Mart, which are large volume stores.

In the past, we have opposed Sunday sales but
this year since the Governor is strongly in
favor of it, we are supporting the Governor and
are in favor of Sunday sales and quantity
discounts for the maximum cap as to how much
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anyone is able to buy. We support the repeal of
min bottle but still have a floor cost so as not
to put too much power in the hands of big box
and chain food stores. We do not support the
idea of six licenses for many reasons. We are
one of the largest stores in Connecticut, and we
wouldn't be able to compete with chain food
stores and big box stores if this bill were to
pass.

Just remember also the domino effect that this
bill would have upon outside professionals, such
as lawyers, accountants, insurance agents, paper
good suppliers, and so on. With six individual
stores supporting six professionals instead
you'll have one company with six stores only
using one lawyer, one accountant, one insurance
agent and, most likely, they would be out of
state professionals.

It is very important that we establish some form
of cost that you cannot sell below. If being
able to sell at any price below cost would
drastically change our industry as we know it.

The changes that I am in favor of will already
have a devastating effect on smaller package
stores. What is very important that is absent
from the -- from the Governor's proposed bill is
how surrounding states limit monopolies by big
box stores. New York issues only one license
per person. Rhode Island limits control of more
than one license with a statute prohibiting the
licensing of chain stores. Massachusetts is
more permissive. Three permits now going to
nine that I believe is being phased in but they
also require individuals for the majority of a
corporation's directors to be residents. The
idea behind that is so that the state will
benefit the most in collecting taxes making sure
that owners are residents.
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The Governor clearly wants competition, and we
support him on that. But it would be good if
the competition was between Connecticut
residents and Connecticut-owned businesses and
not multinational companies such as Stop & Shop,
Costco and Walmart.

Under three minutes.

SENATOR DOYLE: Excellent job.
Any questions from the committee?
Senator Leone.

SENATOR LEONE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Just one quick question, you mentioned that you
wouldn't be to compete if -- with the purchase
of the six additional permits or medallions, if
you will. Wouldn't you or anyone else be able
to coalesce and form a group to purchase the six
to compete against the larger big box just as a
-- theoretically anyway?

JIM RANSFORD: I don't think that's in the proposal
that you can form a group to purchase. I'm
definitely against that. I don't -- I don't
want to see groups getting together and being
able to purchase.

SENATOR LEONE: Well --

JIM RANSFORD: Is that what you mean? I'm not sure.

SENATOR LEONE: -- well, maybe not so much -- well
potentially groups. You could purchase the six
personally.

JIM RANSFORD: Like I -- I'm in a position where I

can purchase large volumes.

000390
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SENATOR LEONE: Right.

JIM RANSFORD: I have that ability, the finances, the
space, but am I going to be able to compete
against a Costco or someone like that? You
know, maybe I could. 1Is it certainly going to
be difficult? There's no question, you know,
that -- that it would be. You know -- so I
mean, you know -- getting back to, you know, I
want to compete. I don't mind the open
competition. It would be nice if I was
competing against someone in Connecticut.

SENATOR LEONE: No, fair enough. Thank you.
Thank you.

SENATOR DOYLE: Any further questions?
Representative Taborsak.

REP. TABORSAK: How are you doing, Mr. Ransford?
Thanks for being here today. Would you offer
any thoughts on -- we've heard the argument
before that -- and you kind of come from a store
from what you've described that's not small, but
it's also not, you know, a box-store type model;
it's kind of in between. It's a --

JIM RANSFORD: 1It's a good size store.

REP. TABORSAK: -- good size stores. Okay. Could
you give us an idea on what you think would
happen if we were to pass this bill, as it is,
or with, I suppose, with the proposed changes
that you've -- I think you've seen or heard
about today? What sort of impact would it have
on the variety that you're able to carry in your
store like, you know -- we've heard other people
talk about the number SKUs that they have. And
we hear some really high numbers coming from
smaller to midsize stores. Is there a real
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concern, in your mind, about how changing the
pricing controls and these other -- these other
things that are special to your business what
that impact that might have on the level of
variety you would be able to provide or others?
Can you comment on that at all?

JIM RANSFORD: You know, I really think that, you
know, the variety that I have, you know -- we
have a huge variety in our store. We have
thousands of SKUs. I really would -- I have to
guess that my SKUs would go down. You know I
mean, it's the old saying, you know, 20 percent
of your items do 80 percent of your business.
So, you know, I'm going to be buying in bulk,
you know. If -- I'm assuming there's going to
be a quantity discount, and hopefully there will
be a limit on that. So I'll be tying up space,
money. And you're also now, you know, running
with items that are a bigger draw, you know.

So what will suffer are those items that -- you
know, we buy everything by the case. So if I
have to buy one case of that which -- which I
don't mean to get off base here but -- you know,
let's say right now, I'm paying a hundred
dollars for that case. When quantity discount
goes in I'm paying 120 for that case. Okay?
Because to get the hundred dollar case price
I'll need to buy five. But let's say it's not a
big selling item, so I can buy one case. Well
I'm going to raise that price because I'm not
buying that much of it because I already bought,
you know, whatever -- a thousand cases of other
stuff. So I'm going to have to raise that on
that item. Okay? I raise the price on it.
You're my customer; you came in all the time and
you -- you paid $15 a bottle for that, you know.
You come in. It's quantity discount; it goes up
to $17 a bottle, and you're looking at me like,
you know, I thought this would go down in price.
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So that's -- it's going to be a reverse effect
on a lot of items where it's actually going to
raise the price. It's not going to lower the
price. For me to pay the price that I'm paying
right now for case one, I'll have to buy 25
cases which -- okay -- that's fine, you know.
It's going to give -- give me that advantage
because I'll be able to do that. But on those
items that I don't sell that much of, you know,
that may not move in a case every three or four
months, you know, the price on that item is
going to go up.

So you tell me, you come into my store and
you've been paying $15 and now it's 17. You
going to buy that? No, you're not going to buy
that. You're going to go on to something else
and buy that I bought 25 cases of. So now that
that item sits, and in time I'm, like, okay,
this thing is a dog now. We're getting rid of
it. Well, there's going to be a lot of those
dogs because you're going to be focusing --
focusing on -- again, 20 percent of your items
that do 80 percent of your business.

TABORSAK: Thank you. That pretty much answers
my question.

SENATOR DOYLE: Thank you.

Senator Witkos.

SENATOR WITKOS: Thank you.

You spoke --

SENATOR DOYLE: Jim, Jim, you're not done. You're

not --

JIM RANSFORD: Sorry, I thought I was --

000393
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SENATOR DOYLE: -- you're still -- you're still in

the hot seat.
JIM RANSFORD: All right.

SENATOR WITKOS: You spoke to the comparison that if
a Costco were to move in and how 20 percent of
your products do 80 percent of the business.
Could you speak to what's proposed in the bill
of expanding alcohol sales to convenience stores
and how that would affect your business?

JIM RANSFORD: A beer? 1Is that about beer in
convenience stores? You know, I don't want to
be, you know, derogatory to anyone here, you
know. You guys do a great job, and I really
give you guys credit. But, boy, that is really
one of the dumbest ideas I've ever heard in a
long time of expanding your beer sales to
convenience stores.

I -- I just -- I don't really see the rationale.
The whole idea that we're here is that we're
looking to raise tax revenues. Correct? You
know, I mean that's really the idea here is so
we can compete and raise --

SENATOR DOYLE: That's the motives of some, not

everyone. That's the motive -- the Governor --
that's his main motive, but -- we're all --
we're all -- everyone is listening here
learning.

JIM RANSFORD: -- you know. I just don't think it's
a -- it's a great idea. I don't see how, number

one, the Liquor Commission is going to be able
to keep an eye on an additional 2,000 stores. I
mean, I know what we go through in our stores to
make sure we're not selling to minors. We have
an elaborate system that costs us thousands of
dollars to make sure we're not selling to
minors, you know. So you're kind of setting

000394
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yourself up to fail with this. I just don't see
the huge advantage to it.

Now, on the other side, the advantage if I owned
a convenience store would I want to be able to
sell beer? Yes, there's no question that I
would.

But in the big picture, I just don't see the
advantage to it. I really don't. I see
yourself, you know, creating headaches that down
the road you're not going to be able to reverse.
And I don't see why we're moving so fast on all
these items anyway so, you know. I mean, Sunday
sales, let's go for it. Maybe a couple of other
items. I think we're biting off a little too
much here, you know. But with the additional
stores, I just don't think it's a good idea.

SENATOR DOYLE: Thank you.
Any further questions?
Seeing none, thank you and you're dismissed.

JIM RANSFORD: Thank you.

SENATOR DOYLE: Next speaker is Jay Polk and Alan
Wilensky, Nicholas Hine, Mark Wilson, Patrick
Monteleone, Paul Riveras, Doug Rankin, Maureen
Abrahamson, David Leon, Larry Cass.

Mr. Polk.

A VOICE: (Inaudible.)

SENATOR DOYLE: Oh, he has? Okay. Is Alan Wilensky

here?
ALAN WILENSKY: Good afternoon, Senator, i
Representative, all the members of the ﬁ(b5oal

committee.
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My name is Alan Wilensky. I am president of the
Connecticut Package Store Association and I own
Max's Package Store in East Lyme, Connecticut.

A family-owned business that has been -- will
celebrate 66 years in just a few weeks. I hope
I make it to 67.

There is so much to say, and as you have just
seen over the last however many hours we've been
sitting here that the liquor industry is a
complex animal. It's a unique product that is
governed by this, Section 30 of the General
Statutes of the State of Connecticut. We sell a
unique product; we sell a controlled substance.
We sell it properly. There have been many
references to why we do what we do.

And I purchased my store and -- you have my
testimony in front of you. Let me just
backtrack just a hair. My grandfather came to
this country in about 1916 after -- he was 17 --
after a three-day pass from the Russian Army.
There's been a Wilensky selling something on my
corner since 1920.

You have in front of you my testimony. It also
includes an Office of Legislative Research
report, on sale below cost for liquor, minimum
markup. It's still in effect for cigarettes.
And the history of the hours of package stores
dating back to 1933. You have a comparison,
briefly, of different state liquor laws and the
oddities therein from around the country. You
have, as somebody had asked for, the per capita
consumption for every state for alcohol sales
and you have the DISCUS map -- right off their
website -- as to what states actually sell on
Sunday; which states don't. There are more than
two. Yes, we have a complete (inaudible) but
there are only 37 states that have full alcohol
sales on Sunday. You have that map there, too.
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I started my business -- my grandfather started

the business in Connecticut. That's where I
kept going. I decided to get into this business
when I was eight years old. I started attending
Package Store Association meetings when I was
13. I was here at the time when Carroll was
hired in 1974.

We sell a unique product. Nobody gets arrested
for sale of toothpaste to a l1l6-year-old.

Alcohol is different. Now, there's been a lot
said. There's been a lot of good said, and I
would just like to take the opportunity to go
over a few things that has been allowed over the
course of the day.

Make no mistake the prices, for the most part,
are set by the manufacturers. The wholesalers
have a small amount of say, but the
manufacturers, the distillers, DISCUS control
the sale of the price -- control the price at
the wholesale level and to the retailer.
There's very little competition.

This bill, as you've seen, is complex. The
industry is complex. It took almost 20 minutes
to describe how a product got from Italy to
Connecticut.

How are we supposed to revamp the entire liquor
industry in three months? I don't see how we
can do it. It's too much, too soon, and way too
fast.

There we go. Not bad.

I have more. 1I'll -- I'll field questions.
Sure.

SENATOR DOYLE: Any questions?
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Senator Kissel.
SENATOR KISSEL: Thank you very much, Chairman Doyle.

Well, my great grandfather was in the Russian
Army once upon a time, too.

ALAN WILENSKY: Did he get his three-day pass?

SENATOR KISSEL: No, actually he -- he left in good
order but definitely concerned about a guy named
Rasputin that had too much influence over there.

ALAN WILENSKY: Right.

SENATOR KISSEL: If we could, let's set aside Sunday
sales because I think to some extent -- and I
know you hate it -- but to some extent, I'm
concerned that that's the tail that wagging the
dog. I am far more concerned with everything
else that's in this proposal. Because it really
is changing the entire discussion and how a very
carefully crafted system will -- you know, it's
funny. 1It's like that game Pick Up Sticks where
if you pull out one all sorts of other things

can -- can happen. So setting aside Sunday
sales, Alan, if you could -- and you and I we go
way back -- not as far as you and Carroll but

pretty darn long back when I was once upon a
time co-chairman of this committee --

ALAN WILENSKY: Uh-huh.

SENATOR KISSEL: -- what are the things in this
proposal that really scare you that you feel
will really -- whether intended or unintended --

really threaten the livelihoods of the mom and
pops and, perhaps, even your own (inaudible)?

ALAN WILENSKY: Well, most of them. We were not
involved in the wine and spirits wholesalers'
negotiation and somebody referred to that as
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somebody else negotiating for us. The one per
2500 was horrifically problematic. If it's been
placed back in, that's a benefit. 1I'll pass
over the Sunday sales aspect at the moment. The
increase --

SENATOR KISSEL: You know, but without going too

ALAN

fast.

WILENSKY: Yeah.

SENATOR KISSEL: The one for 2500, just elaborate a

ALAN

little bit on that as to why -- what's the deal
with that?

WILENSKY: Once again, with alcohol being the
unique product that it is and it's one of the
reasons that many towns have zoning regulations
not just for alcohol, but my particular town,
East Lyme -- and I hope that First Selectman
Formica gets his liquor permit, also. It has to
do with balance of businesses within towns and
the nonproliferation to the detriment of the
towns of having too many of any one kind of
business in it. And in East Lyme, we have a
distance requirement on gas stations. I mean so
it -- it's a way of -- certainly, this goes back
quite -- quite a ways. I've been in this
business like a said a long time. So when
deregulation came in '79, '80 and '81, as it was
phased in, this was placed in to provide
stability and a level field so that what was to
be that upheaval in our industry was more
controlled and provided an easing in and a way
for -- for that turmoil to be assuaged.

So the one for 2500 has been -- has been spoken
is fairly small compared to, certainly, as we've
seen it in Massachusetts, is a way of making
sure that towns aren't overproliferated with --
proliferated with liquor stores, but it -- it
would be applied to almost any business. You

000399
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don't want too many. It's not good for a town;
it's not good for the industry.

SENATOR KISSEL: All right. Got it.

ALAN WILENSKY: The -- the hours have absolutely no

correlation as the OLR has stated. The
original, in 1933, the hours were 6 p.m. It
went to 11 p.m., although I was very young back

then. We all in the industry know about Mad Dog

Taborsky. We have a sufficient amount of hours
for retail. We're open 12, 13 hours a day, six
days a week.

The price posting, there's all sorts of
ramifications on this whole price posting and I
would certainly like to address at some point
today the quantity discount aspect of this that
is detrimental --

SENATOR KISSEL: Well, why don't you do that right

ALAN

now?

WILENSKY: I would love to. Thank you so much.
Thank you. I like a good softball.

Quantity discounts raise -- raises prices.

There's no question about it. You don't -- what

you do is you get your own money back. Let me
give you an example, and it's in my testimony.
In order to get the price that I pay right now
for one case of one particular pink wine -- I
don't want to name brands -- in Massachusetts,
I'd have to buy 50 cases. To get my one case
price right now at the best price that I pay.
That is an investment of some $3,000 to get the
same priceé that I get for buying one case at
some 40 or 50 dollars. That's a $3,000
investment where now you look at it and say,
Now, I can't invest in three other -- actually,
if you work it out it's probably 30 or 35
different varietals of wine that I can't buy
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because I put all my money into one brand and

one size.
So I -- I've gotten a Massachusetts book and
there isn't -- well, there's one example that I

couldn't find that we beat their prices with our
one case price. Quantity discount raises prices
because you get your own money back when you buy
the five or 10 or 25 or 50. It's a fact. You
get nothing for nothing.

SENATOR KISSEL: Okay. So -- so currently -- because
one of the things that I heard from almost --
not everybody but -- from a variety of people --
we have a governor who likes to do things in a
big way. And -- and sort of, you know, I think
that -- I forgot how Carroll Hughes phrased it
in the newspaper today -- but it was like big
ideas, sort of, an idea person, some mover and
shaker but -- what I'm hearing though is aside
from a few -- you know, the Sunday sales and the
taxes, that I wasn't -- I wasn't that aware that
the system was broke. And it appears that now
we are embarking upon fixing something that's
not broke. And when we do that we end up
breaking things that weren't broke in the first
place. And so, again, without belaboring this,
if you could nail like two or three more things
that you just specifically could point to and
say it's not broke, don't fix it, leave it
alone, strip it out of the bill.

And I appreciate the negotiations because, let's
face it, the Governor has been batting a
thousand in this building. All right? But I
think this year is a little different because
now he's taking on this whole industry, the
teachers. 1It's different battlefields. At some
point, the honeymoon is over. It may not be
now; it may not be this year. But at some
point, every governor I've ever seen at some
point that batting record comes to a halt. And
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I'm not saying that we can't do good things this
year when it comes to liquor laws, but this
seems very, very broad. And, you know, there
wasn't a task force that had all the
stakeholders meeting for a year, studying this -
- which we do in other areas. So if -- and it's
not a criticism of the Governor. With the best
of intentions, I think he wants to do certain
things. But I really think that, you know,
we're going to throw the baby out with the bath
water and that's just not a good conclusion, so

ALAN WILENSKY: My feelings exactly.
SENATOR KISSEL: -- it's my last softball to you.

ALAN WILENSKY: Thank you very much. I appreciate as
many as I can get.

My thoughts exactly. We're trying to fix
something that isn't broken and the law of
unintended consequences will absolutely take
effect if this bill is passed as it is. And I
believe I've referenced the fact that a task
force -- if any of these changes were in the
best interest, then it should take a year or two
to hammer this out. Bring everybody to the
table. Let's get everything going. Let's talk
it out. Again, it took 20 minutes to find out
how long it takes a case of wine to get from
Italy to Connecticut, and that's not even the
most complex thing that -- that we're involved
in.

The price posting, there's nothing wrong with
price posting. Price posting is good. The
chaos that would have been represented under
this bill without price posting would have meant
that prices could have changed hourly, certainly
daily. I'd have to wait until my second
salesperson comes in who has the dual item to
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say, well, this guy offered me a hundred dollars

for the case. What do you -- it's like reverse
auctioning. And -- and I'd be spending so much

time waiting for the next salesperson to come in

that I'd never be able to wait on a customer.

The sale below cost restrictions, as the OLR
states in the January 2010 article that I sent
to you, promotes monopolies. It states very
clearly that larger retailers will sell below
cost to put the smaller person out of business
thus enabling a monopoly.

The permit limit from two to nine just feeds
right in to huge retailers, and I'm not even
talking about Costco, although they are one of
the largest wine and spirits retailers in the
country. There are several huge individually
owned retailers who have just come into the
state who -- and you don't need nine, you don't
need six to control a state of this size. I
mean, if we were Texas, six doesn't mean
anything or nine doesn't mean anything.
Connecticut, geographically, you could -- you
could certainly corner the market with six or
nine stores. So we pride ourselves on being a
small individually owned business in the state
of Connecticut, and as Jim Ransford said, New
York, you can only own one store and package
stores don't sell beer in New York. In Rhode
Island, there is only one permit. 1In
Massachusetts, along with all the other things
that we've heard today, you cannot move a store
out of town. If you own a store in Lennox, it
must stay in Lennox. If I buy it, it must stay
in Lennox. I can't move it to Somerville.

So there -- there are many state laws that were
selected out of this bill and there were many
that were not. So there -- there's a lot of

things like that.
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Grocery stores owning package stores -- as was
stated, I can't own a grocery/beer permit so
there's a conflict of -- of things there.

Package stores selling food products, it's such
a nonstarter. I mean, is it the worst thing in
the world? No, but it's certainly not going to
rock my margin. For the most part, the
ancillary products that I sell now make up less
than one percent of my business and that
includes, you know, cigarettes and sodas. 1It's
just a nonstarter.

The convenience store beer permit, that's -- I'm
glad Craig spoke today on this. I'm sorry that
Matt didn't. We look at this industry. We take
it seriously. We worry about the ramifications
of alcohol use. We worry about underage
purchasing, underage drinking, drunk driving,
alcoholism, spousal abuse. Keep lifting them up
-- you know, keep adding them all together, the
problems of our product and then you say, oh,
but it should be made more available, more
accessible, more outlets. Makes no sense
whatsoever. This is a controlled product. It
needs to be controlled. The mass proliferation
of permits is -- is abhorrent to me.

The medallion system, I still haven't quite
figured that one out honestly. I -- I go back
and forth. There are times when I can look at
it and go, hmm, maybe it is an asset and there
are other times when I go I have no idea what
that means. So that's another one that could --
we could probably discuss for 30 days and not
come to an agreement on.

And the -- the allowance for price
discrimination in the form of rebates, free
goods, discounts and inducements, a lot of those
topics have been addressed. I think Carroll
spoke to some of them. The -- even the tax
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ramifications of some large wholesale -- large
retailers says they negotiate out of state.
They could, under this proposal, they negotiate
with AB or they negotiate with Diageo for a
price that comes through the state of
Connecticut in a wholesale situation, but
they've negotiated a price such that the
salesman is not going to get paid because
there's not enough margin in it so there's no
commission made. They negotiate free goods.
Where's the taxation on that? Who's paying the
income tax on that? And they say, And I've won
a trip to the Super Bowl. Where is -- where is
all that going? So there -- there's a million
things in this bill that are problematic.

SENATOR KISSEL: Well, Mr. Wilensky, it's been a
pleasure knowing you for the last -- and working
with you for the last 18 years. We're not going
to agree on everything --

ALAN WILENSKY: No, we're not.

SENATOR KISSEL: -- but, you know, if we lower taxes
and had Sunday sales, I'd probably be a happy
guy so.

ALAN WILENSKY: My manager says hello to you by the
way. Mike Feliciano -- he went to law school
with you. I believe he sent you a letter.

SENATOR KISSEL: Okay.

ALAN WILENSKY: If I can also -- if I can -- one more
fast ball or slow ball in here. I just want to
-- I'd like to say something about the distilled
spirits numbers. They've alleged that
Connecticut will generate $8 million in
increased revenue because of this. And I think
it was Carroll who said that the State of
Connecticut does about $1.3 billion in sales? I
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don't understand how we get $500 million back in
the state if we only sell 1.3 billion in total.

But let -- let me just -- and I have the actual
articles that substantiate these quotes.
They've said that in Connecticut with a
population of three and a half million, they'll
generate -- we'll generate $8 million in
additional tax revenue. Vice president of
DISCUS, David Wojnar, said about Indiana with
the population of six and a half million that
they would generate between 5.7 and 8 million
dollars in additional tax revenue because of
Sundays. Dale Szyndrowski, vice president of
DISCUS -- they have a lot of them -- in Texas
package stores do not sell on Sunday in Texas.
With a population of 25.6 million people, they
estimate $12 million in tax revenue. This is
all DISCUS numbers.

DISCUS' analysis says Minnesota, who also
doesn't sell on Sundays from package stores,
with 5.3 million people, $10.6 million in
revenue. Jay Hibbard, who spoke to you earlier,
in regard to Georgia and their numbers are
starting to come back and they're not seeing the
Sunday sales come as they thought.. Georgia,
9.8 million people, with spirits only, they
estimate between 3.4 and 4.8 million dollars in
additional revenue. And Ben Jenkins, another
vice president of DISCUS, in Tennessee, with 6.4
million people, $3 million in additional tax
revenue on spirits only. The numbers to me
don't add up.

SENATOR DOYLE: Thank you.
Representative Tallarita.

REP. TALLARITA: Thank you. Sorry. I didn't realize
-- I came in the middle. Sorry.



269 February 28, 2012 000407
law/cd/gbr GENERAL LAW COMMITTEE 11:00 A.M.

Just in regards to those numbers that you just
quoted us --

ALAN WILENSKY: Yes.

REP. TALLARITA: -- Program Review and
Investigations, which is a committee here in the
General Assembly, which is made of both
legislators from both parties -- their number
was 8.5 million. So that's where the 8.5
million came from just to let you know.

Thank you.

ALAN WILENSKY: And -- and if I just may say one last
thing in regard to that. Senator Kissel
certainly knows my personal stance, and I'm sure
many of the individual stances behind on Sunday
sales, but if you're giving me the option of
cutting off both my arms or my head, I'll take
the arms, but it still makes it very hard to
carry the product out to the customer.

Thank you.
SENATOR DOYLE: Please -- please no reaction again.
Representative Rebimbas.
REP. REBIMBAS: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
Thank you for your testimony.

ALAN WILENSKY: My pleasure.

REP. RERIMBAS: And I certainly want to extend my
gratitude for the thoughtful testimony and
research that you have done. And I am looking
forward to actually reading through all the

material that you provided because I think you
did a wonderful job in highlighting the
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ALAN

REP.

ALAN

REP.

different factors that all of the states have
when we talk about alcohol laws of which have a
direct impact on this legislation in the
representation regarding what this legislation
will be for the State of Connecticut. With that
said, because you have -- I believe you had
mentioned that you're part of the Package Store
Association; is that correct?

WILENSKY: I -- I'm president.

REBIMBAS: President of the Package Store
Association. Were you ever invited to any of
the discussions that involved the Governor's
office in putting together this proposal?

WILENSKY: That was taken care of by Carroll,
our lobbyist. I was not present at any of those
meetings. Carroll was invited.

REBIMBAS: Thank you. And I ask because you've
got a world of actual knowledge, as well as
research, and I'm sure that was conveyed.

My other question to you is, kind of, playing
hypothetical here. I guess the big headline is
this is bests for consumers. It's no longer
that this is much needed revenue for the State
of Connecticut because I think that's been
identified as being highly suspect and
questionable as to how much revenue will this
actually bring. But the headlines I'm reading
is that this is consumer based; this is best for
consumers. Conceding on the fact that there is
a certain convenience to consumers in being able
to access the purchase of alcohol on Sundays --
so putting that to a side -- if the real thing
is to get the best prices for consumers -- let's
pretend that you were invited into the office in
order to be able to dive into your expertise,
what would that be in providing the best prices
for consumers?
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ALAN WILENSKY: Good question. Let me say that I put

REP.

the consumer first, also. I -- I'm not -- I
think we go back to the "I'm not sure it's
broken." 1I'm not sure -- the -- certainly, the

sales tax and excise tax are relevant if we're
talking about the Massachusetts border. We're
talking about the bottle bill if you're talking
about the Rhode Island border. There's tax
issue at the New York border. I believe that we

are competitive with -- and again, let's go back
to Massachusetts because Mr. Cimini was here,
many of the places are there -- I believe that

with our pricing versus the Massachusetts
wholesale book that I have seen that we are
competitive with approximately 1200 package
stores in the state of Massachusetts because
they have about the same number that we have.

We'